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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered Office:  Lahore: 9 KM Multan road, Hanjerwal Lahore
Plant Locations:  Lahore: @ KM Multan road, Hanjerwal Lahore
Factory Premises 9-KM Multan Road, Lahore

Ph. No. 042-35415421-5, 354215024 UAN: (42-111-21-32-33
WWW, Wavessinger.com

Company Registration No.:  CUIN 0001286

ﬁ Bankers: Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited
“ Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited Pak Libya Holding Company Limited
Allied Bank Limited Pak Oman Investment Company Limited
Askari Bank Limited Silk Bank Limited
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GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

2019 tuned out to be a difficult year due to challenging economic and business conditions which prevailed
throughout, Despite various challenges, the company managed to post Gross Sales of Rs, 11,660 Million and
Net Profit of Rs. 378 Million during, FY'19 was characterized by rising interest rates, mflation and raw material
costs coupled with a depreciating rupee, At the same time, the government took courageouns but much needed
decisions in order to document the economy.

The continued guidance and supporthy our Board of Directorsis akey element of oursuccess, | am thank ful for
the same and look forward to this positive relationship. As always, 1 would like to thank our stakeholders;
customers, consumers, suppliers and channel partners, whose support has helped us in achieving these results.
Most of all I wish to acknowledge the hard work of our employees and wish to extend my gratitude to them and
their families for their support, The resulis are a testament to their beliefin the company and their relentiess hard
work,

Umair Khan
Chatrman
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MESSAGE FROM THE CEO

Tam pleased to present our armualreport for the year ended December 31, 2009, Hwas a challenging year fior both Pakistan’s
ecunony and the company due to significant rupee devalmtion, unprecedented increass in interest rates and by declining
GDP grow th rates. Despite these formidable challenges, the company posted profits of PKR 378 million (2018: PER 382
million). This was possible with careful operational mansgement, cost rationalization, volumetric sale and through

For our seclor, the introduction and enforcement of CNIC requirsment for purchases above a threshold and inclusion of
Home A ppliances in the drd scheduleof Sales Tax Act had the biggest impact. We believe that these are positive steps forour
sector and the overall economy forthe long term.

However, they have had a short-term negative impact on our sector, resulting in redvetion of pipeline stocks and a peneral
dampening of trade sentiment. Fortunately, Waves Singer Pakistan was able to weatherthis stonn due to the trans formation
started last vear, The twio main | egs of this transformation, strictured pricing initiative and robust cost discipling, continued
tobear fruitin thecurment year with amplified results,

We also constantly reviewed aspects of vur financial reporting framework, in onder to ensure that the company remained in
line with both the latest regulatory requirements and best practices in the industry. Athorough review of the Board and its
comimithess was also conducted through our internal Board Evaluation Process, developed in line with accepted global
practices forevaluating Board perfformance, As a resultofthis evaluation, an action planis now undemway.

[ would like to thank all Waves Singer Pakistan Limited employees and our business partners for their hard
waork throughout 2019, as well as extending our appreciation to our shareholders and customers for their
continued support.

Looking ahead, we remain optimistic and confident about the future of the Company. We have people, brand
name, excellent product line and unparalleled distribution network, which allows us to reach customers and
provide them service both in urhan and rural areas at the best possible price and terms, We look forward to
delivering for our shareholders again m 2020, despite the challenges presented by a macro-economic
environment which islikely to provide limited purchasing power to our customers.

Haroon Ahmad Khan
Chief Exeeutive Oificer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Umair Khan
Chairman

Me. Upasir Khan is from Civil Superior Services of Pakistan and has worked in a number of senior management positions
representing Government of Pakistan, within and ouside the Country. Inthe Corporate sector, be has been the Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director of Sui Southemn Gas Pipelines Limited and Alpha Insurance Company Limited. He has also
servedand is contimuing to be ot the Boards of various Government and Semi-Government Organizations.

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan
CEO
Mr. Haroon has an extensive experience in managing applinnces businesses and had previously been working as Managing
Director of one of the most renowned appliances companies of Pakistan. Me Khan's expertise mclude financial management
and business strocturing of a number of technology transfer and Joint Venture agreements. He is also a fellow member of the

Institute of Chartered Accomntants of Pak istan,

|
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan

M. Moazzam Abmad Khan is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountantsof Pak tstan { FC A ) and has worked for

anumber of Pakistani and Saudi Organizations in Senior Mana gement positions for the last two decades.

Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan |

D, Mighat Haroon Khan is a member of the teaching faculty of the Radiology dept. at Post Graduate Medical Institute, Lahore
Genetal Hospital, Lahore. She holds MBBS, MCPS and FCPS degrees and is pursuing her fellowship from Roval College of
Radiclogy, London along with years of ex perience in her profession.
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Mr. Mukhtar Ahmed,
Brig (Retd)

Brig. (Retd ) Mukhtar Abmed i1sserving as Director Admmistration and HE at Waves Smger Pakistan Limited, Brig, Mukhtar
has 8 comprehensive experience in Administration and has served in Government sector a8 Chairman of Anti-Clorruption Sindh,
Home Secretary Sindh and Director of Anti-Marcotics in Sindh and as Brigadier in Pakistan Army, Brig, (Retd ) Mukhtariza
member of BOD of Cadet Collepe Larkana and New Port University. He 13 also charman of Pakistan Employees Cooperative
Heusimg Soviety of K arachi,

Mr. Yousuf Muhammad
Farooq

Mr. Yousuf has over 6 years of experience in Pakistan's capital markets. Previously, he served as the Head of Research at 5
Investments Limited and Fortune Securities (Pvt) Lid. Mr. Yousuf is also serving asa Director on the boards of Capital Assst
Leasing Corporation and The Resource Linked (Pvt) Lid, a private FMCG distribution company based in Karachi, Yousufhas a

Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from SZABIST, and is curvently pursuing the CFA Charter.

Mr. Zafar-ud-din

Dr, Zafarnddin Mabmood after completing his education as a Doctor from China, started his career as a Banker. In his last
position, he was Head of Business Operations of BCCI in Hong Kong up to early 1990s. From then onwards, he has played a

majer role in different positions to build and strengthen the relations of Pakistani and Chinese Governments. Hehas mfroduced a
number of Chinese Organizations to Pakistan and has arranged development of dozens of Joint Ventures between Chinese and
Pakistani business groupsin the fields of Textile, Banking, Mamifacturing and numerons infr astricture projectsin Pakistan,
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VISION STATEMENTS

VISION

“To be an innovative company that is driven
by modem ideas, committed to constantly
strive for surpassing customer expectations
in Quality and Value for Money and tobea
leading home appliances company in
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MISSION STATEMENTS




CORE VALUES

Customer-Centricity

The core focus of our
business is to make our
customers’ lives better,

ﬁ
S

Internal Synergy

Cur entire human and
financial capital is
deploved to create a pro-
growth and high moral
business environment,

o

Innovative Mindset

Our Company always
works to improve the
quality of our products
through smart and
simplified sohitions,

Honesty and Integrity
Onr people adhere to the

codes of honest, moral and
responsible behavior.

Annual Report 2009

dama
S

Social Responsibility
We embody strong ethical
and cultural valuoes
befitting our status a5 a
responsible corporate
citizen by protecting the
enviromment and investing
inour communities.

Innovation through
R&D

The company has high
emphasis on research and
development.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited has committed imelf to conduct its business in an honest, ethical and legal manner,
The Company wants to be seen as a role model in the commumity by its conduct and business practices. All this depends on
the Company’s personnel, as they are the ones who are at the forefront of Company's affairs with the outside world, Every
member of the Company has to be familiar with his‘her obligations in this repard and has to conduct him/her accordingly.
This statement in general is in accordance with Company goals and principles that must be interpreted and applied within
the framework of laws and customs in which the Company operates. This code will be obligatory for each director and
employee to adhere to.

RESPECT, HONESTY AND INTEGRITY
Directors and emp loyees are expected to exercise honesty, objectivity and due diligence inthe performance of their duties and
responsibilities, They are also directed to performtheir work with dus professionalism,

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGUL ATIONS

The Company is committed to comply and take all reasonable actions for compliance with all applicable laws, mles and
regulations of state or local jurisdiction in which the Company conducts business. Every director and employee, no matter
whatposition he or she holds, isresponsible for ensuring compliance with applicable laws,

FULLANDFAIR DISCLOSURE

Directors and employees are expected to belp the Company in making full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable
disclosure, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, in all reports and documents that the Company files with,
furnishes to or otherwise submits to, any governmental authorities in the applicable jurisdiction and in all other public
communications made by the Company. Emplovees or divectors who have complaints or concerns reparding accounting,
financial reporting, internal accounting control or auditing matters are expected to report such complaints or concerns in
accordance with the proceduresestablished by the Company's Board of Directors.
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PREVENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Directors and emplovees, irrespective oftheir function, grade or standing, must svoid conflict of interestsiteations between their
director indirect (including members of immediate family) personal interests and the mterest of the Company. Employees nust
notify their direct supervisor of any actual or potential conflict of interest situation and obtam a written ruling as to their
individual case, In case of directors, such ruling canonly be given by the Board and will be disclosed to the shareholders,

TRADING INCOMPANY SHARES
Trading by directors and employees in the Company shares is possible only in accordance with the more detailed guidelines
issued from time to time by corporate managementin accordance with applicable laws.

INSIDE INFORMATION

Directors and employees may become aware of information about Company that has not been made public. The use of suchnon-
public or “inside” Directors and employees becoming aware of information which might be price sensitive with respect to the
Company'sshares have to make sure thatsuch information istreated strictly confidential and not disclosed to any colleagues or to
third parties other than on astrict need-to know basis. Potentially price sensitive information pertaining to shares musthe brought
promptly to the attention of the Management, who will deliberate on the need for public disclosure. Only the Management will
decide on such disclosure. In case of doubt, seek contact with the CFO.

MEDIA RELATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

To protect commercially sensitive information, financial details released to the media should never exceed the level of detail
provided in Quarterly And Annual Reports orofficial statements issued at the presentation of these figures. As regards topics
such as financial performance, acquisitions, divestments, joint ventures and major investments, no information should be
released to the press without prior consultation with the Management. Employees should not make statements that might make
third parties capable of “insider trading ™ on the stock market.

COMPETITION AND FAIR DEALING

The Company seeks to outperform its competition fairly and honestly, Stealing proprietary information, possessing trade secret
information that was obtained without the owner's consent or inducing such disclosures by past or present employees of other
companies is prohibited. Each director and emplovee is expected to deal fairly with Company's customers, suppliers,
competitors and other employvees. Mo one 18 to take unfair advantapge of anvone through manipulation, abuse of privileged
information or any other unfair practice. The Company is committed to selling its products and services honestly and will not
pursue @y activity that requires to act unlawfally or in violation of this Code. Bribes, kickbacks and other improper pavments
shall notbhe made on behalfof the Company nconnection with any of its businesses. However, tip, gratuity or hospitality may be
offered if such act is customary and is not illegal wnder applicable law. Any commission payment should be justified by a clear
and tracesble service rendered to the Company. The remuneration of agents, distributors and commissioners cannot exceed
normal business rates and practices. All such expenses should be reported and recorded in the Company'sbooks of accounts.

EQUALEMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Company believesin providing equal opportunity to everyone around. The Company laws i thisregard have to be complied
with and no discrimination upon race, religion, age, national origin, gender or disability is acceptable. No harassment or
discrimination of any kind will be tolerated; directors and employees need to adbere standards with regard to child labor and
forced labor,

WORKENVIRONMENT

All emplovees are to be treated with respect. The Company is highly committed to providing its emplovees and directors witha
safe, healthy and openwork environment, free from harassment, intimidation or personal behavior not conducive to a productive
work climate. In response the Company expects consummate emplovee allegiance to the Company and due dilipence in his job.
The Company alsoencourages constructive reasonable criticism by the employvees of the management and its policies. Such an
atmosphere can only be encouraged in an environment free from any prospects of retaliation due to the expression of honest

opinion.

PROTECTHEALTH, SAFETY ANDSECURITY

The Company intends to provide each director and emplovee with a safe work environment and comply with all applicable health
and safety laws. Employees and directors should avoid violence and threatening behavior and report to work in fair condition to
perform their duties.
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RECORDKEEPING

The Company is committed to comp hiance with all applicable laws and re pulations that require the Company to maintain proper
records and accounts which accurately and farly reflect the Company's transactions. It is essential that all transactions be
recorded and described truthfully, timely and accurately on the Company's books. Mo false, artificial or misleading transactions
or entries shall be reflected or made in the books or records of the Company for any reason. Becords must always be retained or
destroved according to the Company's record retention policies.

PROTECTION OF PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

All directors and employees, both during and after their employment, must respect the exclosivity and trade secrets of the
Company, its customers, suppliers and other colleagnes and may not disclose any such mformation unless the individuoal or firm
owning the information properly suthorizes therelease or disclosure, All the Company's assets (processes, data, designs, etc. ) are
considered as certified mformation of the Company. Anv disclosure will be considered as groumds, not only for termination of
serviceslemployment, but also for criminal prosecution, legal action or other legal remedies available during or after
employmentwith the Company to recover the damagesand losses sustained.

PROTECTION & FROPER USE OF COMPANY ASSETS /DATA

Each director and employee 15 expected to be the guardian of the Company’s assets and should ensure its efficient use, Theft,
carelessness and waste have a direct and negafive impact on the Company’s profitability. All the Company assets should be used
for legitimate business purposes only. The use, directly or indirectly. of Company funds for political contributions to any
organization or to any candidate for public office is strictly prohibited. Corporate funds and assets will be utilized solely for
lawful and proper purposes in line with the Company’sobjectives,

GIFT RECEIVING

Directors and employees will not accept gifts or favors from existing or potential customers, vendors or anyone doing or seeking
to do business with the Company. However, this does not prechode giving or receiving gifts or entertainment, which are
customary and proper in the circumstances, provided that no oblipation could be or be perceived to be, expected i connection
with the gifts or entertainment,

COMMUNICATION

All communications, whether internal or external, should be accurate, forthright and where ever required, confidential. The
Company is committed to conduct business in an open and honest manner and provide open communication channels that
encourage candid dialogue relative to employee concerns. The Company strongly believes in a clean desk policy and expects its
emplovees to adhere toitnotonly for neatness but also security purposes.

EMPLOYEE RETENTION

High quality emplovee's atiraction and retention is very important. The Company will offer competitive packages to the
deserving candidates. The Company strong by believes in personnel development and employee training programs are arranged
regularly.

INTERNET USE/INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

As a general rule, all Information Technology related resources and facilities are provided only for internal use andfor business-
related matters, Information Technology facilities which have been provided to employees should never be used for personal
gain or profit, should not be misused during work time and remain the property of the Company. Disclosure or dissemination of
confidential or proprietary information regarding the Company, its products or its customers outside the official commminication
structures isstrictly prohibyited.

COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS TRAVELPOLICIES

The safety of employees while on a business trip is of vital importance to the Company, The Company encourages the traveler
and his/her supervisor to exercise good judgmentwhen determining whether travel toa high-risk area is necessary and is for the
Company's business purposes. It is not permitted to combine business trips with a vacation or to take along spouse, relative or
friend with out the prior writte nauth orization from Management

COMPLIANCE
It is the responsibility of each director and employee to comply with this code, Failure to do so will result in appropriate
disciplinary action, inclhiding possible warning issuance, suspension and termination of employment, legal action and
reimbursement to the Company for any losses or damages resulting from such violation. Compliance also includes the
responsibility to promptly reportany apparent violation of the provisions of thiscode. Any person meetimg with difficulties i the
application of thiscode should refer to the Management.
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES & STRATEGIES
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Brief History of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (WSPL)

Singer's history dates back to 1850, when Baae Merritt Singer manufactured the
first ever sewing machine in Boston, TSA. I M Singer & Company was duly
mcorporated during the same year. The name of the company was changed to
Singer Manufacluring Company during 1853 when the factory of the Company
wis alio relocated to New Yook, USA, Sinpger established its presence in the
Indian sub-continent during 1877, Over the years, and after the independence of
Pakistan, Singer continued its business of sewing machines in the country, but
also started dealing in domestic consumer appliances, besides manufacturing and
assembling light engineering products, In 1985, the Company becume a public
listed company. Singer Pakistan's retail network has 140 shops in Pakistan alone,
and covers every small town znd metropolitan city of the country, Under the
Singer brand, the Company producesa variety of consumer appliances-inchuding
refrigerators, air conditioners, LED TV's, washing machines, mictowave ovens,
in addition to it more raditional offerings of sewing machines, water heaters and
gis Ovens ete.

Cool Industries (Pyvt) Limited, the owner of the WAVES brand of consumer
appliances, was established in 1971 by a family of entrepreneurs from Lahore,
Within a span of four decades, the Company became a household brand i the
country. The Company’s history is filled with many milestones. Back in 1976, it
started the production of refriperators. By 2002, the Company had become the
sole producer of Split Air Conditioners in Pakistan. The Company started
producing Microwaves in 2003, under an agresment with GALANZ, a Chiness
company. The product take-off was impressive, thanks to product durability. The
production of Washing Machines started in 2004, when Waves pioneered single-
tub and double-tub washing machines in this market. The Company continued its
growth path until 20135, when a tough competitive landscape and succession
iwsues within the sponsors family crested many bottlenecks in the smooth
opetations of the Company. Subsequently, the Company was acquired by the
aponsors of Singer Pakstan Limited.

Upon approval ofthe regulatory and legal formalities, both Companies have been

memged inte a single company, with the surviving Company being named as
Waves Singer Pakistan Limited,

= WAVeES

MNaam. Hr Kaﬁ Har

SINGER

v lN G




Annual Report 20019

TIMELINE

1877

First Singer sewing machine poes mbo sale in the Indian sube ot ment

1985

Singer gets listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (Now Pakistan
Stock Exchange)

2006

Singer broadens its product portfolio and launches retail stores with
brand name 'Singer Plus’

2007

Sinper Retail Achdemy was launched for human resounce development

2009

LD Television product is Jaunched

2010
A new assembly line for split ACs is launched and Silar water geysers
£o of Sile

2011

The Company introduces its Refrigerator products to the market

2013

“ainpger Furniture” is launched. Room cooler products are introduced

2014
The Company started focusing more on cash sales, impacting its
popauitar cradit-based sales system

2015

The company’'s peographical footprint had reached 139 retail shops
(Singer Plus outlets), 6 service centers, and 8 warehouses across
Pakistan

2016

Singer (Pakistan) B.V. Netherlands divests its entire sharcholding in
Singer Pakistan Limited

2016

Awholly owned subsidiary Electronics Management Company
(Pvi) Limited incorporaied to deal in distribution and whalesale
business of electronic appliances and its components

2017

Cilass door refrigerators and Inverter ACs lnunched in the market

2018

Retail business of Singer demerged and merpged into its wholly owned
subsidiary EMCPL. Singer memged with Cool Industries Limited (Waves),
creating Waves — Singer Pakistan Limited. Karachi factory closed, its plant
and machinery has been shifled and installed at Lahore factory.

2019

Launched Glass Door Alpha Deep Freezer - a first of its kind state of the art
Deep Freezer in Pakistan,
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PRODUCTS, QUALITY MANAGEMENT
& DISTRIBUTION

TYPES OF PRODUCTS

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited manufacture and markets the following
types of household consumer appliances:

Waves Products  Singer Products

Deep Freezer Sewing Machine B

Eﬂﬁigaratnr Refri,germnr

Air Conditioner
Microwave Oven

."Mashing Machine

A AL
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MULTI BRAND PRODUCTS

The Cotmpany through its subsidiary Electronics Marketing Company Pyt Limited (EMCPL) also deals in buying and
selling multi brand products inchuding LED/TV s, Reftigerators, Deep Freezers, Motor Bikes, Generators,

Air Conditioners, Mobile Phones and other related products of renowned brands in order to generate retailer’s margins
through its nationwide network of 140 stores with the option "Buy now and pay later” under Hire Purchase Terms,
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT

AtWaves Sinper, standardire d manufacturmg processes and rigorous quality control management procedires are followed to
achieve consisteticy in product performance and enhance customer satisfoction. Waves Singer Pakistan recognizes the
importance of Quality Management System as an integrated fune tion; combined with Innovation, Research & Developmert
attd Information Technology. The Company complies with the Tnternational Standaed IS0 %001:2015 accredited by TAF &
UKAS, The Company has developed extensive In-house Quality Checks and Controls to assure complete risk coverage from
the Dasipning to the Customer usage. The controls encompass the processes of Design & Development, Material Ondering &
Receiving, Inttial Material Inspection, Manufactunngand Product Testing to End User.

Our Philosophy

Our Quality Management system is multidimensional, emphasizing more than just verification that a inshed product meets
certain expectations, Our ngomus and focused OM system believes m highly effective implementation of proven quality
principles and techniques by controlling, monitoring, and verifying any activity or process that could affect product
conformance andaims for victwal by ertor free product s,

Research and Development

The Company's budget for research and development exceeds over marketing and other strategic functions. We allocate a
dedicated professional team of enginsers continously transform o products scconding to the evolving Tifestyles of ol
customers, Our in-house R&D Engineers also work in conjunction with the local and mternational madoat agents to incorporata
matkel feedback in designing ofa new product, Broadly, the R&D entails the use of the following:

®  Sophmsticated designing tools & software
= Stateof the art testing facilities
*  Product development tools

Quality Control & Assurance
Oursignificant quality cotitrol measurss mchude:

*  [Incoming Material Inspection

*  In-Process Inspection with state of the art equipment
o Halopen Leak detection

(] Electrical Safety Testing

a Performance Testing

a Bar coding for Product Traceab ity
Outgoing Quality Control

Process Audit

Laboratory Testing

Stafl Training & Devel oprant

Form Fit Function and Setting the Standard
The standard global best practice to achieve seamless desipn clearance 15 our holistic approach.

Forim: The feel andthe look of the design

Fitment: The tolerance s and the clearances of the tools inthe overall design,

Function: Intended use of the product scconding to its purpose and functionality,

Standards specification development: After the successful completion of o new design, the R & D specialists
davelop the specifications and standards documerntation as a guide anda testing tool to assist the quality inspection
team deploved throughout the manufacturing chain check compliance with the set standands of the design's feel, 1ook,
form, toel erance clesrance and most importantly, its functionality,
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At Waves Singer, standardized mamifacturing processes and rigorous quality control management procedures are followed to
achieve consistency in product performance and enhance customer satisfaction,

Health, Safety & Environment Management

At Waves Singer, a dedicated Health, Safety and Environment management system is in place to assure the well-being of
employees, assets as well as stake-holders, This year WSPL continual Improvement approach has resulted in a big milestone in
achieving National Award in Safety, IS0 9001:2015 QMS Certification,

Following are the last vearhighlights which resulted in improved KPT's andresultedin Zero Accident:

*  WSPL has won 9" Annual Fire Safety Award 2019 organized by FPAP (Fire Protection Association of Pakistan) &
NFEH (MNational Forum for Environment & Health) by conducting site survey, QHSE Audits, review of HSE KPTs
and arrangements of Firg safety at Factory premises.

= In-house & 3"Party Training of employees on1SO Certification of Quality, Environment & Safety.

= Successful completion of 1000+ Training hours for Engineers & Executives having in-house pool of lead Auditors on
IS0 9001:2015 QMS, ISO 14001:2015 EMS & IS0 45001:2018 OHSMS,

* Initiation of Kaizens, 5 S and Operational Excellence projects to improve QHSE, Efficiency and Process
Improvements,

s Continuation of Environmental Emission testing's of Generators, Fork lifters and ambient air as per Local
Environmental law fiom EPA Approved Lab.

*  QHSEaudits,survey ofall Pakistan WSPL Warehouses toimprove fire Safety Standards/SOPs at warehouses,

The company is aiming to achieve opertional Excellence to streamline its operations & processes as per International best

Alpha
AB LOOKS MEIN BHI
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE/
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
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KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Gross Sales
2019:Rs. 11,660 Mn

2018:Rs. 10,269 Mn

Operating Profit
2019:Rs. 1,298 Mn

2018:Rs. 783 Mn

Net Profit
2019:Rs. 378 Mn

2018:Rs. 382 Mn

Gross Profit
2019:Rs. 2,629 Mn

2018:Rs. 2,278 Mn

Net Finance Cost

2019:Rs. 677 Mn
2018:Rs. 273 Mn

Fixed Assets
2019:Rs. 8,694 Mn

2018:Rs. 7,754 Mn



KEY HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

Finance Cost
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

Total Non-Current Assets
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
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KEY OPERATING FINANCIAL DATA

Rs. T 000 2018 2017 2018
Net Sales 9483974 8516016 3685623 1399606 1487934 1414903 1847807 1.946,38]
i R 2629372 2277906 1097284 489289 298573 142041  I86322 211967

e A 378,300 382075 312032 95122 150766 285719 36259 42,079

Total Equity BIA0.054  BIROI25 8166642 1404404 1016925 909217 912317 868,626

Gt Axsita BAETO0T 6958685 5516459 1917541 1 TER205 2085523 23R3I 136 2216944

ket ninis R693208 7753985 7686631 2015791 1359453 1088998 711424 693736

170176218 147126700 13,203,080 3933332 3142658 3024521 3094560 2910680

Total Asscts

Civent Liability fi, 644 271 5196532 4116560 1719347 1836344 1944960 1005695 1673872
Fixed Liability LI19LRoD  LI127.013 019,885 RO9.5H| 2R02R0 270344 276,547 368 1R2
Total Liability mEd0, 6] 6,323.543 5036448 2 52BO3E 25733 2215304 1iR23243 2042054
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& PERFORMANCE

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Equity
Shareholders equity has increased during the kast few years due to merger of Cool Industries with Singer Pakistan. During FY
19 there has been nosignificent change from last year, Wet profits, of 2019, stood at Rs. 378 million.

Non-Current Liabilities

Total non-current labilities comprising of long term debt. deferred taxation and deferred income has inereased during FY 19
Company has obtained long term lending to finance the working capital to required to complement growth in business,
Additionally, lease iabilities have also increased due to capitalizationof rented premises asrequiredby IFRS 16.

Current Liabilities
Current lishilities of the Company, overthe last year have increased foom Rs. 5.1 hillion to Rs. 6.6 billion Fom FY 180 FY 19
respectively, Short Term Bomrowings have increased to sustain future growth requirements ofthe business.

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

MNon-curent assets of the Company including property, plant and equipment, Bight to use assets under IFRS 16, intangible
assels, long term investiments and other long-lerm assets increased by 12% over the last vear, Property, plant and equipment
increasedby Rs. 939 million whichelse includes the effect of revaluation during FY 19.

Current Assets

Current assets include inventories, trade debis short term advances, deposits, prepavments and other receivables, short term
investmenis, current tax assets and cash and bank balances. With an apgregate balance of Rs. 8,483 million at the close of
2019, the current assets recorded an increase by 22% mainly on account of increase in trade debts complementing increased
revenue, current assets recorded an increase by 22% mainly on sceount of increase in trade debts complementing increased
revenue.

PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenueand Cost of Sales

Sales revenue registered increase by 1 1% over the last yesr mainly due to volumetric increase, Costof sales increased by 1004,
Despite of sharp devaluation in exchange rate, company has been able to sustain its manzing owing to careful cost
rationalization, continuous research and development activities andsvstematic price increases throughout FY'19.

Operating Costs

The managemernt has kept a control on administmtive and selling expenses which collectively decreased by 3% despite higher
inflationrates during the year under review, The company continued to focus on intemal cost saving and opemtional eiciency
acmss the ofganization to mitigate the inflationary impact,
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RATIO ANALYSIS

Profitability Ratios
The gross profit for the year has been reported at 28% of net sales, Net profit macgin for the year has been reported at 4% of
2019 a5 comparead to 4. 5% for 2018, Consequent by, returns on equaty and returns onasset stood at 4.5% and 2. 2% respectively.

Operating Performance / Liguidity
Current mtic for 2019 ha been meorded at 1,28 times against 1.34 times for the year 2018 which reflects robust and sustainable

hquidity position of the company.

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inverntories and Receivable turnover days are 179 days and 96 days. Total assetturnover tatio recorded shight decrease s 00,02
titnes in year 2001 Sagainst (.61 times for the year 2018,

Investment / Market Ratios

The Company's earnings per share - EPS for the yvear 2019, 15 Rs, 202 per share as compared to EPS 2.04 for 2008, Price to
earnings ratio has been recorded at 12,19 at 31° Dec 2019 times as compared to 11.49 as at 31° Dec 2018 reflecting enhanced
sharehol ders confidence m the future potential of the company.

Capital Structure Ratios
A debt to equaty ratio of 1 would mean that mvestors and ereditors have an equal stake in the business assets. Atthe end of FY
2019, the ratio stood at 0.8 times m comparison to 0,5 times for the year 201 8 reflecting strong long term solvency position of

the company.
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RATIO ANALYSIS

Liguidity Ratio

Current Ratio 1.28 1.34 1.34 112 0497 105 1.25 132
OuicksAcid Test Ratio 0.73 0.74 0.71 .82 0.81 L83 092 090
Cash to Curmrent Liability 0,02 0:02 0.07 0.09 0.04 4 a7 i

Solvency Ratio

Dbt to Equity Ratio {81 0500 .43 127 144 1.a9 .66 1.66
Debit to Aszet Ratio .39 (.25 .27 {1.45 0.47 e .49 e
Equity to Asset Ratio (.40 .57 .62 136 032 029 .29 {30
Prﬂfﬁtnhiﬁr_'l.' Ratio 9 s 214

Gross Profit Margin 2T.T2% 26.T8%  29.77%  3496% 20000% 1h0d% 1 l9s 100899
Met Profit Margin 3.949% 4.49% 4T 680% -1013% S20019% 196 2.16%
EBIT Margin 15,000 9 200G 14900 1106% 17479 -3253% -T30% 578%
Retum on Assets 2.20% 2600 2.36% 2.42% =4 B0 =9 14% 1.17% 1.45%
Retum on Equity 4.54% 4 5504 IEX% 6770 -14E3SG A1.40%% 3.07% 4.84%,

Turnover Ratio
Total Assets Tumover

ok 01,50 061 1143 0.40 147 0.46 0.62 0.67
E’ﬂ"t‘l’f e 115 110 0.76 0,83 1.22 1.57 2.63 2.81
E‘:t'i::m” Tutnoves 2.03 218 167 228 3.31 2,40 247 2 44
No.of Days in Inventory  179.59 16629 21867 16043 11038 15191 14758 14953
Debtor Tumover Ratio 3179 115 229 1.2% i19 |04 ] .44 167
Mo. of Days in Debioe 0620 11579 15945 20285 30668 35006 25273 21803

Market Hatios

Price To Earning Ratio 219 1145 1937 s | -H.55 -4 {15 3005 2097
Book Value Per Share 44 .46 el B 0,06 30.93 240 2002 20,09 21404
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Horlzontal Analysis % 200% 2008

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Isswed, Subsceibe and Pasd-Lp Capiral (L 23 % (1 LLELE LB 0.0% 10.0% 0L 0%
Shure to b [ssted Amnlgamition 0.0 -1 000 1ML 0 R LR .05 e LR
Share Prémium Beserve =5 1% 420 100612 s v 0% (s LT
Capital Beserve 0.0% s 00015 0.0 s 0.0% %% 000
Reovenus Reserve 0.0% e T ~10H0L 0% LR 0%, K12 <2:1%
Surphes on Revaluation of PPE 20K, B A “H9.2% 337 43.7% 93.1% 1.8% =,3%
Unzppropriated profit/ Loss -16.3%% 14.1% =1 154, 1% =flh 3% So.500 | -T12:5% -, 8% 1H5%
TOTAL EQUITIES 6% 1,7% 481.5% 380 11.8% R L L L 23.1%

LAIBILITIES

MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Loans-Secured 9% .5% 284 T.6% 1026 7% | -H2.7% 11085 kA% 26.6%
Lese Laablity A0 g 1T 245,55, =309 14 2% -42.0% | M | EHLAP
Laong Term Dieposits 0% 1.0 0.0%% {0eG LR 0.0% =100 [4.58%
Employes Retirement Bepefits- ’ 5 " A
Obligation 333 13.4% 585 By 1 3% K%, 2Ry 17.6% ILH
Deferred Taxation-Fa 39% ] E3. 7% 25.1% B3% i} B 0% Jbte
Deferred hivcomie 2%00s | 594% A41.8% =44 445 Py | -0 By T 3 1%
Total Nan-Carrent Linhilities B4.5% 21.5% 13.6% 1T0.8% T.0% -2.2% -14.9% D%
CURRENT LAIBILITIES

Trade and Oither Payahles 4.2 Al 151%, 1 5%, -1 585 iy 2305 1%
Acerued Interesidlark-Lip 122:5% ] Rang Pl Sl 1% 178 i
Bhiort T Bl Voo Setued. | 37.9% 99 133% 1% 1% 1% 13% 1%
Unciaimed Drividend 10 S TS (e (L] e e 0% {1
Linpaick Dividend -3 1% i (1% 1o L 0% 0%
Current Partion of Non-Curren e | 2 333% S0 | -31% 39 g 3%
Liabilities

Current Partion of Finance Lease 1,085 - 1001 16T% =20%5 Hn 4% -200G S
Current Portion of D fersed Income 0.0% - 100 62% 0% 303% -5 (1% %
Total current liahilities 8% Zh%a 139%% =% 6% 1% 14%, (et
TOTAL LAIRILITIES T 1% L 105, 4% 1% % 185
TOTAL EQUITIEE AND 17%% 11% 236%G 1505 =5 1%% %% S5

LIABILITIES
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Mant and Eguipment 20009 1.6% 182:4% 265% | 269% | 607% | -15% | 06%
Intangihle Assets =k T [ 13.229.4% | -14:3% A% | =1023% [ 1816,5% | 039
m:;ﬁ‘n'::‘“"”“‘ FE 60% | 1000% | 00% 00% | 00% |-1000% | -soste | -344%
Long termn [nvestment (Properiy ) LR R i =105 LR 0% 0,0% i LI REL
Trade debis R
Long Term Deposits 11.6% -130% 46, T =) B <2 a0 -16:1% 4.6% 4 A%
Total Non-Current Assets 12.1% 1.9% 813% 48.3% 24.8% 531% 15% -14%
CURRENT ASSETS
Qv Spiores v Lnoes Toole a1.5% | 2540 | samaes | 3o | edee | moss | crs7we | -aees
Stock Tn Tradc 1I82% | wo3ng | 4osane | 74sns | oazees | -azan | -npoes | 248w
‘Trae Dt 308% | so5% | tozane | -woass | -1oaes | ssem | ozoa% | Lo
?:I:pr:r;m Advances, Deposit & 24w | osoam | o2sam | amaw | saes | -amoss | 3sae | 260w
Taxation.He o4 | -3a% 120.2% 08% | 274% | s | 3s3% | 340w
Investimenls 0% LS 0085 - 100, -1 % -111% 23.7%% 34.6%
ity s ok Blsnees 55.4% | -63.9% 94.3% 96.9% | 53% | g05m | 4 | 226%
Yot Cariot Assits 9% 261% I8T.7% 1A% -124%  -146%  TS%  Ta%
TOTAL ASSETS 16.7%  114%  1I&TY I1E2% 06% 10% 63% 500
Hortzontal Analysis %% BV L
Gross Sales 13.5% 1152% 197.2% A8 6% 2le% A% 0%
Sales Tax & Tmde Discount 242 61.2% 426.6% 26% -476% 139 04%  -2.5%
MNet sales 114% 1311%  163.3% -5.9% 5.2% -234% -51% -01%
Cost of Sales 0% 410 1B4.3% -23.5% -.6% <23.3% -4.3% -l6%
Gross Profil 154% 107.6% 124.3%  63.9% 110.2% -24.6% -11.2% 14.1%
Marketing, Selling &nd Distribation Cost | =11.3% | 43.6% 67.0% «13% | 42.0% 2200 | 4T | 15.0%
Admimstrative and General Expenses 258% | 92.4% | 188 7% -13% | 172 THe| MM 58%
Ohher Expenses 21.6% | -BA% | BXEO%G | -T96% | -TATEG | RO22% | 4T3% | 13.7%
Diher Income 321000 | -92.5% | 1734% | 11056% | -T.4% 201% | 479 | 9.8%
Total Operating Expenses -10.9%  1743%  62.9% -40.1% -73% 36.3%  04%  13.6%
Operating Profit 658% 41E%  2568%% -1596% -435% MLI%  2000% 126%
Earned Carrying Cost 21.2% | 9T | -28.7% | -E00B% | -10.7% S2A4% 2T 12.3%
Finance Cos [016% | 453% | 10R.9% | -10.4% | -20.7% B.2% | -13.2% | T.3%
148.1%  258% 612.5% -144.7%  26.7%  -TIE%  10.1%  19.2%
Profit Before Taxation 218% 522%  16%.8% -164.8% -52.8% -RIGSTR -BSTL 3A9%
_Taxation BOA%  4493% 200% -171.2% 6600 -T737.9% 4,00 26.4%
Profit After Taxufion L% 224% 22EO%  -163.0%G  -47.2% -RERAO%G -I3E% 3T.4%
Diher Comprehensive lneome 1360.4% -B3.1% 45R0.0% -116.5% 483H%  100.0% 0.0%% 00%

Total Comprehensive Income SET%  -L2%  314.5%  -150.7%  -43.5% -B93.5% -138% 3T7.4%
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS - BALANCE SHEET

Hurizonial Analysis %% 20 2018 e{ [ i) R 4
Liross Rales 13:5%  T15:2% I97.2% -4.8% -6 1% -21L6% -&1%  -DLe%
Sales Tax & Trade Discount 24 2% 61:2%  4Z6.6% 2h% 4T AW =139 4%  -2.3%
MNet sales A% 1351%  1633%  -59% 52% -234% -51% %
Cost of Sules 0.0%. 141.0% IB43% 3150 6b%  03a% A -16%
Gross Profit 15.4% 107.6% 1343% B399 100.2% -24.6% -11.2% 14.1%
Marketing, Selling and Distribution Cost L E3% | 43.6% AT.0% =1.3% 42 %% 220F% | -4.7% | 15.0%
Adrmamnsteative and General Expenses 25 Rue | ondA% | 1887 =1.30% [ 172% T | 14.7% | 5.8%
Urther Expenses -21 6% -A4% | B239% ST6% [ -7 | B3 | 47.3% | 15T
Other Income 3M 0% 925% 1 754% | 1105.6% -1.4% 20.1% | 47.9% 9.8%
Total Crperating Expenses -10.9%s  174.3% B2O%  4l% -TA% B6.3% 4% 136%
Operating Profit 65.8%  41L8%  I568% 150U -43.5%  MILI% MLDYE 12467
Earnid Carrving Cosi 2L.2% | 0B | -2B.7% | cBORY [ D00 | <32.4% | -2.7% | 12.3%
Finanice Cost 10k6% | 453% | [08:9% | -104% | -20.7% B2% | -132% ) 3%
148.1% 258% 61259 -144.7% 26T% -TLE%  100% 192%
Profit Before Taxation 21.8%  S2.2%  1o98% -led8%  -S2E% -HA6ST . BT 33.9%
Taxation g% M5 3% 2001% =1TE3%  -6h0FE =737 A0% 26.4%
Profit After Taxation 10% 224% I280% -1630%  -47.2% -BERO% -138% 3TA%
Chlier Comprehensive Income 1560.4%  -B3.01% 483009 -11635% 483.8% 100G 00% 005
Total Comprehensive Income S8.7%  -1.2% 314.5% -1507%  -43.5% -B015% -13.8% 3T4%

Vertlcal Analvzis R E]

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

lagued, Subrsertle and Pasd-Lp Capial L5 111 A% 1545 14 4%, 14.5% 14, T9% .25
Share to be [sseed Pursaant o Amalgamation LA 005 T,3%% LR 0.0% (IR 0% iy
Share Premium Reserve 26T | 3XEW | 3EIN A 0.0% (1 00 0
Capitl Beserve LLE e L (1% {195 L.2% 2% 2% X
Fevenue Reserve LR 0.0% 0,0% 0.0 1T 38% 5% 4.0%%
Surpius on Revaluation of PPE 21% 8% 9% | 2T%e | 264% | 132% St | ML
Unmppropeiated peofit / Loss B | ATIe ] 12eee ] ] -120% ] -Te% 1.3% L4%
TOTAL EQUITIES 48.6% S0 G1.%% 35.7% A2.4% 01 % 1a.5%, 29 5%
LAIBILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lomg Term Loans-Secured 3% 5.0% 4.3%% 13.4% 1.5% 246% 2% 5.0%
Lanhilities Against Assets Subject o Finsnee Lease 25% 3% 3% 1134 1. 6% 3% 3% 1.5%
Long Term Deposits 0.0 0.0% e {1.0%, 0.0 it 0% 3%
Employes Retireinent Eﬂmﬁ!s-ﬂhligntinn 2% (1,4%5 4% 1. M5 1.5% 6% 6% 0,6%
Deferned Tanation-Met |.% 1.8% 1 %% 5% 5.5% 5.1% St 3%
Deferred Income 1% 0.1% 1 % 0% 019 0% 0% 0.0%

Total Non-Current Liabiiities 118% 1. 1% T 20.6% 01% B.T% B89% 1L6%
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Total Mon Current Liahilities 12.8% TT% T0% 6% B.1% 8% A 1L.6%
CURRENT LAIBILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 1047 [ 2% 9% 12% 13% i 1684 4%
Accrued Interest/Mark-Up 1.3% % 1% 1% % 1% [0 %%
Short Tenm Funning Finarces-Secred 23.9% 0% 21%% L1 47 42% 22% 30
Unelaimed Dividend 0.5 % ("% L] %5 0% (1 s
Unpaid Dividend R 1% (%% L] LEiS 0% %% it
Current Portion of Mon-Cument Liabilities 2.46%% 2% 1% UL 2 3% B I
Current Fortion of Finance Lease 0.0 % 0% L= 0% (1% [P i
Current Portion of Deferred Icome (18K % (1 (¥ 0% (%% [ 1t
Total current liabilities 30 I5% 3% 44%% 8% 2% 62 % S8V
TOTAL LAIBILITIES 1% 43% 3% 4% 68 T1%a 1% T
TOTAL EQUITIES ANDX LIABILITIES 1% 108%% TINE % 1% 100%% T T 100%,
ARSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant wnd Eoquipment Phe | 322% | 355% | 420% | 40T | 330% ) 208 | ZZ4%
ntangible Assets 1T.% | 20:2% |  22.0% it 0.8% 1.4k Ly 1% 0:1%
Emploves Belirement Benefits-Prepayiments At 0.1% 0P (0% 0.0 ()0 01% 0.3%
Long term Investment (Properiy) (At 0.0% 0.0 B 0, LR e 0% 0.5
Trade debs 0 1% 0.0% 0.0 0% 0.0 040G 0% 0075
Long Term Deposite 0P |  02% 2% 3% 1. 7% LR 1. 0% 1. 1%
Total Mon-Current Asseis SE% SRT%. SRI% SLI% 433%  M8% 30%  138%

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools. 2% 2% 0.2% %% 11.3% 2% 0. 2% 0.2%
Stock In Trade 21.3% 21.0%% 19.6% 12.9% 0.3% 13.7% 20.4% 24 4%
Traxde Dicbis 24.7% 22.1% 16:3% 2T.0% AT.6% 42.2% A3 1% | 3994
Short term Advances, Deposit & Others LY 105 08% (B 0.59% (LG5 |.4% 2.3%
Taxation-het 1A% 2.3% 26% 4.0% 5% 4.0% 3. 7% 2 H%
[mvestments 0 0% [ 0% I.1% 1.6% b5 1.5%
Cash indd Bank Balances 1.4r% 0.7% 2.1% 3I8% A% 2.6% 4.4% 4 %
Total Current Assecis 49.4%  47.3% 41B%  4EE% S6.T% 651% TTAMN TelVe

TOTAL ASSETS TOHLE%S  DO0A%  TOOL0%  TO0AS - 100.0% TS T000%  100.0%
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS - PROFIT & LOSS

Vertical Analysis % mT 6 05
Giross Sales IOy 10008 100L0%  B00U0%:  100.0%  1000%  D000%  100.0%
Sales Tax & Trade Discount -18.7% -17.0% -228% -129% 119 -21.3% -194% -18.6%
Net sales $1.3% H29% T7.1% EB1% HRI1% TETH BbeY Bl4%
Cost of Sales =rbve =0T 343% . 36T ST -Metn T24%  -TL0%
Gross Profit 225% 22.2% 230% 30.5% 10.7% T0r% 2% 8.9%
Marketing, Selling and Distribution Cost | -B.0% | =102% | <13.3% | 271% | -26.1% | <17.3% | <11.1% | -11.2%
Admimstrative and General Expenses 1% | AT | %] -42% | 0% ) 38| -24% | -2.0%
Cither Expenses AT | L% ~253% | -0E% | -3.7% | -13:8% | -1.2% | -0&%
Other Ingome L3 | 04% ] 104% | 113% ] O0.9% 0.0% T
Total Dperating Expenses STLA% -146% -114%  -208% 330% 3354 -140%  -13.46%
Operating Profil 1L1%  7.6% 1L6%  O.6% -154% -25.6% -5.0% 4.7%
Earmned Carrying Cost 1.6% 15% | |.7% 69% | 134% | A% 163% | 16.1%
Finance Cost Td% | 42% | 62% | -8.8% | 9.4% | -F11% | -B0% | -8.9%
S8%  -27%  45%  -1.9% 4.0% A% B3% T.1%
Profit Before Tazarion 53 S50%  TH% T7% -114% -22.46% 2 24%  15%
Taxation -2 1% =13% 05% -1LB8% 2.4% 6.7% <0E% <08

Prafit After Taxation A% 3T 65% 59%  -B9% -159% 1.6%: 1.8%
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We are pleased to present the Directors’ report and audited financial statements of your Company for the
wear ended December 31, 2019 together with the auditors’ report thereon. Summary of operating resuits of
your Company is presented as hereunder:

FY19 FY18
OPERATING RESULTS Rs. in "000 Rs. in "000
Ciross Sales 11,660 266 10,268,910
Gross Profit 2,629,372 2,277,906
Admin, Marketing, selling and distribution Expenses (1,403016) (1.423,163)
Other Expenses (83,.248) {108,768)
Operating Profit 1,141,108 743,975
Finance Costs (net) (676,794} (272,827)
Other Income 157.295 37.359
Profit for the vear before taxation 621,609 510,507
Taxation {243.309) (128.,432)
Profit after taxation 378,300 382,075
Earnings Per Share 2.02 2.04

Business Overview

Company's Principle Activities

WSPL is a public listed company principally engaged in manufacturing and assembling of domestic consumer apphances
and other light engineerng products under two leading brands, Singer and Waves which are sold through dealer’s network
as well as through retail outlets owned and operated by Company's wholly owned subsidiary. Company's product line
includes:

»  Waves Brand; Deep Freezers, Reffigerators, At Conditioners, Washing Machines, Microwaves, & Water
Dispensers

« Sinper Brand: Refrigerators, Air Conditioners, Washing Machines, Microwaves, Water Dispensers, Sewing
Machines, Water Heaters and Cooking Ranges,

WSPL, presently has 16 warehouses it cities such as Lahore, Gujranwala, Multan, Peshawar, Karachi ete., anetwork of
around 1,400 + dealers, approx. 15 after sales service centers and 400 service workshops spread nationwide. Company’s
salesinfastructure is comparable to any other leading Home Appliance Company operating within Pakistan.

Operating Performance Analysis

The macroe conomic environment remaine dchallenged during 2019as the country suffered from twindeficit concerns and
inflationary pressures. To address these issues, the government turned towards tightening of monetary and fiscal policies
&3 well as a market-based exchange rate mechanism resulting in devaluation of the Pak Rupee and resulting in sizeable
increase in cost of doing business, PER slide is making imports of appliance components costlier, raising the cost of
production; the rising inflation is stoking higher operating expenditures; and fnancing costs ane getting higher as the
policy rate has gone upto 13,25 percent.
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Against this backdrop and despite difficult economic conditions and tougher business enviconment, your Company has
performed reasonably well mainly due to rigorous mansgement effons towards opemtional manapement, improved
efficiency, sinngent cash flow controls and focused marketing strategies,. The Company's consolidated revenue grew by
14% from Rs. 10,269 million during 2018 to Rs. 11,660 million mainly driven by volumettic growth while also being
complementedby systematic price increases throughout the year,

Your company achieved Gross profitof Rs. 2,629 million for the vear, an increase of 14% compared to Gross Profitof Rs,
2,277 Million achieved during FY 18, The management has kept a control on administrative and selling expenses which
collectively decreased by 3% despite higher inflation rates during the year under review. The company continued (o focus
on internal cost saving and operational efficiency across the organization to mitigate the inflationary impact. Operating
profit witnessed an increase of Rs, 515 million compared to last year onaccount of higher sales, better margins and cost
savings.

et finance costincreased by B, 404 million compared to last year on account of increase in policy rate by State Bank and
due to higher borrowings availed by the company to complement increased opemtions. Resultantly your Company was
able to-achieve net profit of Bs. 378 Million and EPS of Rs. 2.02 during FY 19 compared to net profitof Bs. 382 Million and
EPSof 2.04 during FY' 18,

Due to economic volatility this year, there has been a strong focus on monitoring cash fow, wortking capital and supply
chainmanagement by the compary,

Economic Analysis

Pakistan's economic pedormance remained subdued in FY19 as the country posted a real GDP growth rate of 3.3%, as
compared to 5.3% in FY 18, The growth i mainly atributable to agrcultural sector growth of 0.8%, mdustrial sector
growth of 1.4 and services sector growth of 4,795,

Economic challenges and unceriainty also continued in 2019 due to currency depreciation, high mflation, and rising
interest rates. Currency depreciated from PER 139 1o PER 164 by July 2019, before settling at PER 155 by year end,
resulting in net depreciation of 11%. Policy ratesincreased by 325 bps in first half of the year from 1096 to 13, 25% in July
2019 and these continued for the rest of the year, Inflation rate, which was at 5.6% i December 2018, soared to 12,6% in
December 2019, These were a consequence of measures taken by the government as a part of ils economic stabilization
program, prepared together with IMF, The government also Look measures (o stabilize its fiscal deficit which resulted in a
decline in the Public Sector Deve lopment Program (PSDP).

The macrosconomic s lowdown is depicted by the Large-Scale Manufacturing (L SM ) growth that clocked inat 3.4% Yo
it FY 19, The sector has suffered due to unfavorable interest rates leading to increased cost of debt and exchange rate
devaluation leading to significantly high raw materials prices. However, electricity generation and electricity & gas
distribution contributed positively towards industrial growth that clocked in at 1,4%.

The mounting pressure on the external front led by balance of payment crisis started to subside during FY19. The Curent
Account Deficit (CAD) asa S of GDP clocked mat 4.9% in FY 19 against 6.3% posted m FY 18. CAD shrunk to USD 3.8
billion in FY 19 ¢ ompared to USD 19.9 billionin FY 18, This was mainly onaccountof 13.5% decline in trade de ficit due to
effective imporl compression policies and currency devaluation, On the other hand, remittances withessed an increase of
9. 7% during the year to clock-inat USD 21,8 hillion

Cioing forward, some gradual recovery in economic activity is expected on the back of improved market sentiment in the
context of the IMF supported program. The rebound in the manufacturing based industries as well as povernment
incentives for import oriented industries will improve labor productivity by enabling technelogy which will help in
reviving consurmer durable industry.
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Industry Overview

Overthe past few years, the home appliance market had experienced steady growth whereas the growth momentum halled
in 2019 as consumers are now using discretion while buying home appliznee products dus to the mgoing economic
slowdown With declining disposable incomes, the middle class is expected to become more price-conscious, Other
factors that are potentially weighing on consumer propensity to purchase dumables include a major hike in power tariffs,
listless construction activities, and a squeeze in farming incomes.

In addition to this, the government took initiatives to document the sconomy. One step was making it compulsory for
CNIC of buyer to be printed on sales tax invoicesalong with inchusion of Home Appliances in the 3% schedule of Sales Tax
Act, This impacted retailer profitability and comulatively afected consumer demand and pricing. Howevet, the Company
contimedtolake internal measures for sa e guarding its revenue and profitabil ity through marging management actions,

However, thers still is a silver lining; in the hierarchy of households' appliance-related neads, refrigerators and deep
freezers occupy the prn'rm'_',rladders afu'rq:-urmrme and these are also the 2 major revenue drivers of your company.
Govemment surveys also indicate that a majority of households in Pakistan, mostly those residing in rural areas, do not
own these now-indispensable products. Coupled with this, increasing urbanization, the growing middle-class and
changing lifestyles and access to easy financing schemes is expected to lead to shortened product replacement cyeles and
increased product demandin the coming period despite major challenges ahead.

Going forward the E-Commerce segment is expectad to withess rapid growth during the forecast period owing to high
penetration of internet and smartphone, along with tschnological advancements. Accordingly, your company has also
inplemented a state-of-the-art e-commerce platform and online sales have begun, However, the specialty store sepment
dominates the market as consumer prefers to analyze and evaluate the product before purchase, since the product i
associatedwithhighstack (especially financial, & safety), Your company remains poised to reap the benefits ofboth sales'
plitform has it has the unique infrastructure of online sales as well has a network of 120 shops across spread across
Pakistan along with nation wide dealership netwod,

Company's Future Outlook/Forward Looking Statements

Our primary objective is to provide high quality and e fective home appliance products, We remain committed wwanls
enhancing shareholder value while balancing profitability and investments into projects of long-term significance.

This yvear has been marred by a challenging regulatory and economic environment, which saw multiple policy changes
relating to policy rate, exchange rate, taxation reforms, custom duties etc,, all ofwhich contributed towards the slow-down
of economic growth Despite it, your company was able to achieve double digit growth in sales. Going forward, our
marging have been continued to be adversely impacted by Bupee devaluation and milation, though vour Company 5
actively striving to improve its operational efficiencies and optimize the use of available resources,

Towards the end of March 2020, Company’s operations were disrupted by country wide lockdowns & supply chain
disruptions due to the COVID-1% cutbieak in Pakistan. This not only lad o the terporary shutdown of our manufacring
facilities, but also added muliple challenges to our supply chain & sales activities. Subsequently, after detailed
formulation of Standard Operating Procedures Government of Pakistan eased the lockdown and has allowed your
Company to resume 115 production, operations and sales activities,

Therefore, due to the partial lockdown imposed across Pakistan to combat COVID-19 and completed by alremdy
prevailing tough economic and business conditions, overall the business is expected to progress albeil at a slower pace
versus previous years, We hope that the policy reforms introduced by the Government yield economic stability in the
future,

After easing of Tockdown, robust demand has been withessed due to high temperatures coupled with a backlog of sales
during the lockdown, Resultantly, growth in sales during the remaining part of the vear is expected to compensate greatly if
not fully, the loss of sales diring lockdown, Your Company remains committed in making all efforts to improve
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After easing of lockdown, robust demand has been witnessed due to high temperatures coupled with a backlog of sales
during the lockdown. Resultantly, growth in sales duringthe remaining part of the yearis expected to compensate greatly if
not fully, the loss of sales duting lockdown, Your Company remains committed in making all efforts to improve
profitability through innovation, im proving efficiency and effective cost-containment initiatives,

Risks, Uncertainties and Mitigations

Your Company recognizes that risk isan integral part of business and s committed to mana ging the risks in a proactive and
efficient mannet. Your Company petiodicallyassessas risks, in the internal and external environment and incorporates risk
mitigation plans in its strategy and business/operational plans. Every risk is care fully lodked into, a8 in some of the cases
post-analysis it may leadto a new business opportunity.

Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The risk management framework works at
various levels from top to bottom across the enterprise. These levels form the strategic defense cover of the

Company's fisk management, Your Company’s Risk Management Committee monitors and reviews the risk mitigation
plan.

Key Business Risks Mitigants |
Operational excellence — The ability to o Your Company has initiated vendor
improve and sustain guality and drive down rationalization, emphasis on in-house
costs at the same time manufacturing and scorecard
evaluation of vendors has been put in
place,
o Your Company has put in place a

quality and process improvement
program  across the Company,
inchuding strategic vendors, during the
yvear with progress being tracked at

Branding/Innovation — The ability to cope up = Your Company has put in place a
with latest market trends and product Centralized Marketing structure during
innovation the wear, thereby strengthening its

consumer insight process and filling up
competency gaps in the concerned
function. |
s (Company’s research and developmeni
department has been strengthened and
15 continwously  looking into  and
implementing  product innovation

strategies.
Organization Excellence — Ability to attract | =  Your Company has put in place
and retain the right talent may lead to your Succession  Planming  framework
Company’s inability to achieve organization’s mapping career development and
goals. progression opportunities for suitable

employees and thereby ensuring talent
retention
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Liquidity Risk- is the risk that the Company
will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with 1ts financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset

The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed
conditions. The Company finances its
operations through equity, long term
and short term borrowings to maintain
adequate working capital. With a view
to mainiaining an appropriaie mix
between various sources of finance to
minimize risks. The management aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping regular committed credit lines
with reputed banks

Credit Risk- is the risk of financial Toss to the
Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.

Company  maintains procedures
covering the applicaton for credit
approvals, and monitoring of
exposures against credit limits. As part
of these processes the financial
viability of all counterparties 1s
regularly monitored and assessed.

Price Risk- with new entrants in the market,
there is a likelihood of price competition which
might squeeze margins.

The Company is constantly sourcing
competitive suppliers, improving its
technology, efficiency anil
productivity. Also, since WSPL has
inhouse capability to develop products
with fast turn around time, that by itself
obviates possibilities of competition
affecting WSPL.

Competition Risk- Increasing entrants
making their way into the plastic industry.

WSPL's diversified product line and
unique dealer plus retail sale structure
and technical expertise makes it
adequately prepared to face these
challenges.

Regulatory Risk- Imposition/enhancement of
duties, taxes, levies and other conditions may
adversely affect the operations.

New levies go across the board, so we
stay competitive
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Adeguacy of Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors have sat up effective internal financ ial controls ac ross all functions. The independent Intemal Audit

function of the Company regularly monitors the implementation of financial controls, whereas the Audit Committee
reviews the efectiveness of the internal control framework.

Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)

The Company ensures that the EHS commitments an understood and prevention drills' measures are adopted at all levels,
from senior management to workers so as to reduce work related risks across all operations of the Company. The company
actively trains all employess to ensure their safety at both the workplace and beyvond. Besides, our manufacturing,
distribution and retail operations have developed S0Ps that seek to redie & the riskof accidents,

Corporate Social Responsibility

WSPL takes pride in aligning its business sirategy o meet the Company’s societal needs. Our CSR policy aims to enhance
the quality of envirohment, conmmunities and above all to promote the welfare of our people. We believe in giving
aomething back to the society because we care. For us it's about more than just aligning our activities withour stakehobder's
expectatiohs whether its our clients, suppliers, the community, ouremplovess andsociety asa whole,

WSPL has been consistently running the following diverse CSR initiatives each fulfilling in achieving our goals towands
our CSR vision

Sewing/Stitching Classes

Globally and locally, Sinper sewing machines have been assisting in honing stitching and sewing talent to its customers
since decades, Tailoring s a vital source of income e many households in Pakistan, Through repular stitching classes,
Waves Singer Pakistan mms to provide eaming prospects to low income women to overcorme their financial dependence.
As aresull, thousands of Emales have not only benefitted but have also achieved successful placements in varous apparel
companies across Pakistan

Investment in Human Capital
Al Waves Singer Pakistan, we believe in attracting the best talent in the markelplace and giving them the skills and
opportunities they nesd to become high-achievers.

Human Assets

The Company treats its people as its most important asset. We are always on the lockout to recruit, train and promaote the
best human resource talent available, Besides attracti ve remuneration packages, our corporate culiure is designed to boost
employee performance. Our succession planning framework proactively guides our recruitiment and profotion activities.

WSPL has heen consistently running the following diverse CSR initiatives each fulfilling in achieving our goals towands
ourCSE vision

Learning & Organizational Development

Our workforce regulmly undergoes tainings in their respective fanctional areas, The Singer Retail Academy is
imstrumental in taking the employees through a comprehensive workforce training calendar, We also conduct workshops
o mreake our employees aware of new developments in the fiel d o rem ain abreast ofthe changing market landscape,

Adherenceto the Best Practices of Corporate Governance

The Company isdetermined to meet and wherever possible, exceed in all legal and ethical requirements andto conductall
business according to the highest professional and ethical standards and practices. The Board definesa path of continuous
improvement constantly challenging existing processes. It also requires the Company to embrace change so that the

Company is in the right place whennew oppodunities open up.




Annual Report Z019

DIRECTORS’® REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS

StatementofCompliance

The Company strictly adheres to the principles of Corporate Govemance mandated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan ( SECP) and has implemented the prescribed stipulations. The same has been duly summarized in
the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance duly reviewed by the
external auditors,

Directors' Statement
As required by the Code, we, the Directors ofthe Company, are pleased to state that:
a) - The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state ofaffairs, the vesult
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;
b} Proper books of account have been maintaited by the Company;
¢} Appropriate accounting policies have beenconsistently applied in preparation offinancial statements;
d) Theaccounting estimates are based onreasonable and prudent judgment;
e) International Accounting Standards (TAS) and IFRS, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in prepamtion
of financial staterments;
f) Thesystem of intemal control is soundindesign and has beene Mectively implementedand monitored;
g) There are no significant doubts uponthe Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; and
k) There has been no material depariire from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing
mepulations,

Meetings and Activities during the Financial Year
MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2019, six (5) Board meetings were held and the number of meetings attended by each Director is given

hereunder: -

Board of Directors
Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Umair Khan |
Mr. Harcon Ahmad Khan
Mrs. Mighat Haroon Khan
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan
Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.)

Mr. Zatar Ud Din Mehmood

Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Faroogq

Lhwhjh|Wh W A
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[

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of Corporate Governance,
Tt comprises of three members (3) Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman who i an independent Dinsctor,
Five (5) meatings of the Audit Commitiee were held during the year. Attendance of each Member is given hereunder: -

Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood- Chairman 5 4

| Mr. Umair Khan- Member 5 5
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Member 3 3

The Audit Committee has adopted its terms of reference as provided in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Goyernance) Regulations, 2019
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committes cotprises of Three (3) members, all members of the Committee are
Mon-Executive Directors, Chairinan who i an Independent Divector, One meeting of the Human Resource and
Remuneration Comimittes was hebd during the year, Attendance of each Member is given hereunder -

Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Umair Khan- Chairman 1 1
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Member 1 |
Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood | 1

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee has adopted its terms of reference as provided in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governange) Reguolations, 2019

Evaluation of the Board's Performance and Directors' Training Program

As required under the Code, the directors have developed a mechanism for the annual performance evaluation of the
Board, Every member of the Boand ensures his participation in the meetings ofthe Board. Detailed discussions are held on
strategic matters and clear directions are provided to the management, which are regularly monitored by the Boand and its
committess. The Board ensures that the Company adopts the best practices of corporate governance. The Board also
reviews performance of business sepments during each quarter with the aim to advance the opportunities of growth in all
segments. For details on the Director's Training Program, pleasé refertothe Statement of Compliance.

Pattern of Shareholding

The total munber of Company’s sharehobders as December 31, 2019 was 2,854, The pattern of shareholding as at
December 31, 2019 i included in this Annual Report, All trades in the shares of the Company, ifany, carried out by the
Directors, CEQ, CFO and Company 5 ecretary and their spouses and minor childrenare disclosed and annexed

Directors' Remuneration

The Board of Directors have formulated a Directors’ Remuneration Policy its main features include that Non-Executive
Director including Independent Dirsctoss ane entitled to mesting fee as remuneration for atténding meetings of the Board
of Directors and other Committess of the Boand, Noremunerationshall be paid for attending General Meeting)(s).

Bonus/Dividend Announcement
The Board of Drirectors of the Company antounced 15% Interim Bonus Shares in the proportion of 15 Ordinarcy shares for
every 100 Ordinary shares duting HY 19,

Investor Relations & Website

Waves Singer Pakistan is committed to providing full information and disclosures o all of its sharehobdes. We follow the
relevant statutory requirements of timely informing and facilitating both the current and potential investors about any
price sensitive or material information about the Company’s business. This is done through the timely hoisting of all
relevant information on the Company’s web site (www, wavessinger.com) such a8 the Company's financial, operational
performance, pattern of shareholding, material diselosures and any otherinformation deemed essential for the investors.
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External Auditors

The present auditors, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the upcoming Anmual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, As sugpestedby the Audit Comumittee, the Board
recommends this reappointment for FY 2020 to the shareholders.

Post Balance Sheet Event or Significant Developments

Subsequent to the year end, on 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus (COVID-19)
outhreak to be a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. Government of Pakistan imposed lockdown
effective 24 March 2020 to slow down the spread of virus that has been continuously reviewsd based on economic
conditions. However, later after formulating detailed SOPsthe lockdown was partially li fred and your company resumed
aperations understrict standard operating procedures withefect from 11 May 2020,

The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the operational and financial performance of the Group will depend on certain
future developments, including, among others, the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, public health
developments, lockdown measures taken by Fedeml and Provincial Governments in tesponse to the pandemic and its
itnpacts on economic and business activity.
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thankiful to its employess for their commitied and passionate efforts, loyalty, and dedication. We also greatly value the
support and cooperation received from our supphiems, busimess pariners, financial institutions, repulators, and all other
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To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Review report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Govemance ) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Waves Singer Pakistan
Limited(*the Company™) for the yvearended 31 December 201 9 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
respomsibility is to review whether the Sfatement of Compliance reflects the stafus of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily fo mquiries ofthe Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

Az part of our audit of financial statements we are required fo obtain an understanding of the accounting and
mternal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and developan effective audit approach. We are notrequired to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opmiononthe effectiveness of such mtemal controls, the Company's corporate govemance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Commitiee, and upon recommendanon of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, of its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, We are
only required and have ensured comphance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures o determine whether therelated party transactions wereundertakenatamm’s length price ornot.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our atiention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company forthe yearended 3 1 December 2019,

Further. we highlightbelow instances of non-compliances with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in
the paragraphs where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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Reference Description

L Paragraph 5 As required under clause 10 (4) of the regnlations, the board shall ensure that
complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their dates of
approval or updating is mamfained by the company, however, complete record of
particulars of the significant policies were approved in subsequent meeting of the
Boardheld on 30 May 2020.

ii. Paragraph & As required under chapter V of the Regulations, the Board of Directors shall have in
place a formal policy and transparent procedures for fixing the rermmeration of
mdividual directors, however, formal policy and procedures for fixing remuneration
of mdividual directors wereapproved m subsequent meeting of the Board heldon 30
May 2020.

i1, Paragraph 9 As required under clause 19 (1 )i) ofthe regulations, it is encouraged that by 30 June
2020 at least half of the directors on their boards have acquired the prescribed
cerfification under any director fraining program offered by institutions, local or
foreign, that meet the criteria specified by the commission and approved by it,
however, only two directors have acquired prescribed certification till now.

v Paragraph 13 As required under clause 27(3) and 28 (6) of the Regulations, the Board of directors
of every company shall determine the terms of reference of the audit committee and
human resource and remnmeration committee. Updated terms of references as per
these repulations have not been formally determined and advised to relevant
committees.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: 08 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.  The total number of directors are Seven (7) as per the following:

a. Male: Seven (6)
b, Female: One (1)
2. The composition of board is as follows:
| Category Names
: Independent Director{s) i, Mt Umair Khan
| ii. Mr. Yousaf Muhammad Faroog
| 1, Mr. Zafar Ud [hn Mahmood
Executive Directors 1. Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan
Non-Executive Directors 1. Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan
i, Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan
iii. Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.)

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

4. The company has prepareda Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.
A complete record of particulars of significant policies approved in Board Meecting held on May
30, 2020,

6. Al the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7.  The meetings ofthe board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by adirector
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
board.
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8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Repulations and approved in the Board of
Directors meeting held on May 30, 2020,

9. Twodirectors have obtained the directors' training program certification in prior years. Further,

the Company is in process to arrange Director Training Program for remaining directors and be
complied asrequired CCG 2019,

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Intemal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements ofthe Regulations.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the board.

12. The board hasformed commitiees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Names Designation
I, Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mahmood Chairman/Independent
ii. Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Director
ii. Mr. Umair Khan Member/MNon-Executive
iv., Rana Shakeel Shaukat Director
Member/Independent Director
Secretary of Audit Committee

b) HR and Remuneration Committec

Names Designation
i.. Mr. Umair Khan Chairman/Independent Director
1. Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Member/Non-Executive Director
iii. Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.) MemberNon-Executive Director
iv. Rana Shakeel Shaukat Secretary of HR & R Committee

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance. These terms of reference published in Annual Report 2019 and
upload on Company's websiteaccordingly.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the commitiee were as per
following:




Annual Report 2019

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Meetings Frequency

Four quarterly meetings were held during the
financial year ended December 31, 2019,

One meeting was held during the financial year
ended December 31, 2019

Audit Committee

HE & Remuneration Committee

15, Theboard has setup an effective internal audit function which i3 considered suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose and are conversant with the policies and proce dures ofthe company,

I6.  The statwiory anditors of the company have confimed that they have been given a satisfactory rating iunmder the
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registerad with Audit
Owversight Boand of Pakistan, that they and all their partiers are i compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelinés on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the pariners of the firm invol ved in the audit are not 2 close relative (spouses, parent, dependent
and noredependent childen) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or Divectorof the Company.

I7. The statutory anditars or the persons associated with them have not been appoitited to provide other sarvices
excepl in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmedthat they have ohserve d IFAC guidelines inthis regard,

18. Weconfirm that all otherrequirements of the Repulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with,

(MR. UMAIR KHAN)
Chatrman
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Waves Singer Pakistan Limived
Pattern of Shareholding dated 31" December 2019

S hareholdings-—

Mo. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
407 | Li1i] 10,627
71 101 S0 LLE R4
4300 501 1000 308,688

100 .00l 5,000 2.327.949
240 3,001 10,000 1,747,144
110 10K | 5,00K) 1,365 138

30 15,0411 20,000 893,019
g 20,0011 25,000 BER.517
23 25,001 30,000 633,041
20 30,001 35,000 0, 091G
15 35,001 400 00 STE25]
11 40,001 45,000 461,96
14 45,001 51,0000 090,287
5 50,001 55,000 261 308
= 55,001 A, 000 409 512
7 o0 5,000 438,177
4 05,0011 70,000 267 856
(i} FLIALLH 75,000 437,241
il 75,0411 B0, (00 405,392
2 80,00 5,000 163,699
| B3.001 0,000 BY.500
| 00,00 1 95,000 94 875
1] 95,001 00,000 398,367
4 100,00 105,000 408,625
3 105,001 1 10,000 318,596
3 110,001 115,000 340, 100
2 115,001 1 20,0080 230,672
| 120,001 1 25,000 122,187
i 130,001 135,000 267250
2 135,001 140,000 277075
2 140,001 145,000 283,628
5] 145,001 150,000 442933
| 155,001 a0, 000 155,365
| 170,001 175,000 170,500
3 195,001 200,000 593,650
| 200,001 205 000 200,933
| 205,001 210,000 207,870
1 210,001 215,000 2100938
|

225,001 230,000 226250
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

======Shareholdings------

MNo. of Sharcholders From Tw Total Shares Held
| A3 00 0 435,000 431,796
4 440,001 a5 000 1,766,972
| 445 001 450,000 446,343
| 455,001 460000 458 618
| 295,001 S00,000 SO0, Chbh
i 520,001 525,000 521,495
| 535,001 S, 000 534327
i 545,001 S50 000 548190
| B0, 001 655 000 054,637
1 60,001 s, (00 1,250
| 695,001 F00 000 GOT 2HE
| B 10000 B15.000 213,000
| RR3.001 Ha0, 000 dH6,075
1 1.0k 0N [ 005,00 1.001,012
| IR 10T, 000 1006467
2 1015001 I, 020,000 2034 528
l 1 OR0001 | ORS5, 000 [O83, 300
| 1. 170,001 [,175,000 1172500
| 1,180,001 I, LES 000 1,183,637
1 1,215,001 1,220,000 1,215,550
1 1,340,001 [,345,000 [,341,500
| 1385001 1,390,000 1386468
| 1,480,000 1 485,000 1481 200
| 1,495 001 L, 300,000 | LS00, 000
| 1,520,001 [,525.000 1520875
| 1,385,001 [, 390000 1.5%7.000
3 1, 501 (101 1,595,000 4783314
| 1,730,000 1,735,000 |, 73] 660

2,135,000 2140000 2,135,508
| 2. 770,001 2,775,000 2772937
1 3,185,001 3,190,000 3 18R ETT
| 3,835,001 3,840 000 3,835,250
1 4 390,001 4,395,000 4,394,773
| 10350000 LTO.355.000 10,350,392
| 11 250,001 L1255 000 11,253,183
| 24,855,001 24 Rl (00 24 856,387
| 31,640,001 31,645,000 31.643,524
| 40,245,001 40,250,000 0,250,000

2,854 187,604,059
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED
Catepories of Sharcholding reqguired under Code of Corporate Governance {CC0G)

Az on December 31, 2009
Sr ™o of
h © MName Shares Percentage
b Held
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise);
1 POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 11255 183 59984
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
1 CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND (CDC) 4. (M) 2]
Directars, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise):
1 ME. UMAIR KHAN (D) 1,322 0.0007
s ME. HARCON AHMAD KEHAN (CIH) THLBSE 524 IRA219
3 MES. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN 29 346 274 156427
4 ME, MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN 1731877 {19232
3 ME: MUEHTAR AHMED (CDCY Laad 00007
(i) ME. ZAFAR UDDIN MEHMOOD (CDC) T3 043043
i ME. YOUSUF MUHAMMATL FAROCR) {CTIC) L3 0.0007
Exeeutives: e L0007
Public Sector Companivs & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finunce Institutions, Non Banking Finance | 526,000 B EL
Companics, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the lsted company (Name
Wise)
| ME, HARCON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 71,593,524 L] g L
2 MES. MIGHAT HAROQDN EEHAMN {CINC) 29 346,274 156427
3 ME, JAVAID AKTAR BUTT (CDC) 10,350,392 b |
4 FOSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD, (CDC) 11.253,153 59084

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor children:

Opening 15 %  Closing
5. No. Mame Designation Balance Sale - Purchase Bonus  Balance
| ME UbALR KHAN (CDC) {Chairman 1150 = = 172 1,522
3 MR HAROON AHMAD KHAN ?;‘E;’:m"““ 61916108 - HOO000 937746 TIES3524
3 MRS, NIGHAT HARODN KHAN Director 25518500 - - 3E27774 29346274
4 MR MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN Dircetor 1,505,981 : . 225896  LTILETT
5 MR MUEHTAR AHMED (CDC) Director 1.150 o 5 172 E322
i MR ZAFAR UDDIN MEHMOOD (CDC)Y  Director SO0 - . 75 575
ME YOUSUF MUHAMMAD FARCHH)
v, (CDCY Drirector 1,150 . - 172 e
b ME NADEEM MAHMOOD BUTT Director Finanee 1,150 = = 172 1322
CFOVCompany

9 MR TAUSEEF AHMAD ZAKAl Secretary - - 2 <
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STATUTORY NOTICES

WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that Annuol General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held on Monday, June 29, 2020 ot

11:00 AM. ot Factory Premises, 9 KM Multan Road, Lahore the Registered Office of the Company to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSIMESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and odopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the Year Ended December 31, 2019, together with
the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereen.

2. To oppoini External Auditers of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2020 and fo fix their remuneration. The refiring
Auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, hove offered themselves for re-appointment.

OTHER BUSINESS:

:;1 IlTl:l Irflisurl ﬂ;‘j'a u?.;rg hll;.lsineﬁ with the permission af the Chair. t::r:::::;:l;h?:kr:ﬂ
e m::f' une g, Company Secretary

1. The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from June 22, 2020 to June 29, 2020 (both days inclusive).
Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcode, 1-K, Commerdial
Model Town, Lohore of the close of business on June 20, 2020 will be freoted in fime for the purposes of entitlement to the
ransferees.

2. AMember entitled to ottend and vote ot the Meeting may appoint another Member os his/her Proxy fo ottend, speak and vote of
the Meeting on his/her behalf. Instrument appainting Praxy must be deposited af the Office of the Company not less thon 48
hours before the fime of holding the meeting. (DC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines os laid down in
Circular 1 dated Jonuary 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Proxy form is ovailable ot the
Company's website i.e.www.wavessinger.com

3. Shareholders are requested to notify the Company’s Share Registrar if there is any change in their registered postal addresses.

4. Pursuant o SECP's Girculor No 10 dated 21 Moy 2014, if the Company receives consent from members holding in aggrequte 10%
or mare shoreholding residing ot o geographical location other than the ity of the meefing, to porficipate in the meefing
through video conference ot least 10 days prior fo the dote of meeting, the Compony will arrange video conference fucility in that
ity subject to availability of such facility in that city. In this regard please fill the following and submit to registered address of
the Company of least 10 days before the date of AGM.

I/We of , being member(s) of Woves Singer Pakistan Limited holder

Ordinary share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video conference

focility ot
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
9 KM, Multan Road, Hanjarwal,
Lahore

I/ We

of

being a member of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited hereby appoint

of

or failing him

of

as my proxy in my absence to attend, speak and vote for me on my behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday June 29, 2020 at 11:00 AM and at any adjournment
thereof.

As witness my / our hand this day of 2020. Ra,0fs
Revenue

Witness No.l Stamy

Name:

Address:

CNIC No.: Signature of Memben(s)
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Witness No. 2

MName :
Address :

CNIC No.:

Important:

{Name in Block letters)

Folio No.
Participant ID No.
Account No. in CDC

CDC Account Holders are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the

Notice of Meeting.

A Member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to

attend and vote instead of him/her.

Members are requested:

{a) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/ at the place indicated above.

(b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered
with the Company.

{c) To write down their Folio Numbers.

This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/- revenue stamp, must

be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the

time for holding the meeting.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cpinion

We have audited the annexed Consolidated financial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
{“the Company™) and its subsidianies (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consohdated statement of changes m equity. the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and 1ts
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15Ag) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor ¥ Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements section of our repori. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accounfants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key andit matters:

Annual Report

2019

Refer to note &.1.1, 4.13 and 25 to the
consolidated financial stalcments.

The Group principally generates revenuc
from manufacturing and assembly of
domestic consumer appliances along-with
retailing and trading of the same.

We wdentified revenue recogmition as a key
audit matter because it iz one of the key
performance indicator of the Group and
gives rise fo a risk that révenue is recognized
without transferming of control.

ﬁ‘n Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
(1. | Impairment of intangible assets ‘Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
Fefer to note 4.3, 19 and 44 to the Do g
consolidated financial statements. *  Agsessing the appropriateness of the Group's
. . accounting pehey for impairment testing of
T:.E Gf.m}.ﬁ"n"aél}r.t?m ﬂﬁ c:arr:.ﬂntf ?E.‘TI%E intangible assets and goodwill and compliance
SR GRS O A D @ of the pohey with applicable accounting and
testing is subject to estimates and judgments St At i
made by the management of the Group with P B ;
respect. to future sales prowth and |+ discussing with the Group's management key
profitability, cash flow projection and assumptions used in valuation model and
selection of approproiate discount rate. testing the mathematical accuracy of the
: . : del;
We identified the impairment testing of Tm Ef o : S
separately identifiable intangible assets and | * 1nvolving our internal valuation specialists to
goodwill as a key audit matter because assist us In assessing the mgn:lfu:ﬂnt_cstu:lmtcs,
Erifeatts g e assumptions and judgements applied in the
;i g o, E ' ; £ valuation of infangible assets and goodwill,
assessment and in forecasting the future cash value and attrition rate, with reference fo
flows which are inherently uncertain. available market information;
= comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized to
identify impaimment, if any; and
» assessing the adequacy of disclosure made n
the consolidated financial stitements in
accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.
1. | Sales Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:

* obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording ol sales and testing the
design, implementation and  operating
effectivencss of relevant key internal controls;

* assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
accounting policy for recording of sales and
compliance of the policy with applicable
accounting and reporting standards;

« comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlying documents;

* comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded near the vear end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans and
other relevant underlying documentation (o
assess if the sale was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period,

* inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to vear end to
evaluate whether the adjustments to sales had
been accurately recorded in the appropriate
accounting period; and

* scanning for any manpal journal entries
relating to sales recorded during and near the
year end which were considered to be material
or mel other specific risk based criteria for
inspecting underlying documentation,
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No Key aundit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
3. | Revaluation of property, plant and | Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
equipment following:

Refer notes 4.2, 7, 18 and 44 to the | » obtaining and mspecting the valuation reports
consolidated financial statements. prepared by the external expert engaged by the
g - Company and on which the management's
The Group follows the revaluation model for assessment of the valuation of property, plant
subsequent measurement of land, buildings and equipment was based:

Ani plit snd maskinery. » gyaluating the information provided by the

Company to the external professional valuer by
Latest revaluation was carried out on 31 inspecting  the  relevant  underlying
December 2019. The valuation was documentation;

performed by an external professional valuer | » jnvolving property, plant and equipment
engaged by the Company. valuation expert engaged by us to assist
evaluating the appropriateness of wvaluation
methodology and assessing the reasonableness
We identified the revaluation of the Group's of key E&tiﬁ!‘cs anid “an%tims adopted in the
property, plant and equipment as a key audit valuations report by the valuer engaged by the
matter because the valuation inmvolves a Group: and

significant  degree  of judgment and |, assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made

estimation. in consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

4. | Valuation of trade debts Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
Refer fotés 4.1.2; 4.16, 22 and 44 to the | POWing
consolidated financial statements. + reviewing the methodology developed and

applied by the management to estimate the ECL
in relation to trade debts, evaluating the key
assumptions used (historical and forward
looking), the policies applied to assess ECL in
respect of trade debts and testing the
mathematical accuracy of the ECL model by re-
performing calculations on test basis;

Ag at 31 December 2019, the Company’s
gross trade debts amount to Rs. --— million.
Pursuant to adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments” and using the modified
retrospective  approach, the Group has
recognized Expected Credit Loss (“ECL™)of
Rs. — million in opening retained earnings

as at 01 January 2019 and reversal of Rs. —- | = involving our specialists to assess the ECL
million for the vear ended 31 December model and significant estimates, assumptions
2019, and judgments applied in developing ECL;

+ assessing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
data used for ECL computation; and

| IFRS 9 requires the Group to make provision | = assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in
for financial assets (wade debis) using the consolidated fnancial statements  in

| Expected Credit Loss (ECL) approach as |  accordance with the requirements of the

- against the Incurred Loss Model previoushy applicable accounting and reporting standards.

- applied by the Group. The Group has applied

the BECL model for determination of trade

debts as explained in note 4.1.2.

| Determination of ECL provision for trade
debis requires significant judgement and
assumptions including consideration of
| factors such as  historical credit  loss
EXperience and forward-looking
macroeconomie information,

| We have considered this as a key audit
matter due to significance of the change in
accounting methodology and involvement of
estimates and judpements in this regard.
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Information than the Financial Stare, and Auditor rt T

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the vear ended 31 December 2019, but does not include the consolidated
and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
cxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing se, consider whether the other information 1s materially meonsisient with the
financial staternents or our knowledpe obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

R ment and Board of Diveciors

nxibilities of Man

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
stalements in accordance with the accounting and reperting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 20017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

I preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporiing process.

Anditor’s R asthifities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report
that mcludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
sudit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= [dentify and assess the risks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to frand or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain aedit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal
control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
ehtectiveness of the Group’s mternal conirol
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the andil evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to evenis or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continge as a gomg concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtaimed up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
golng CONCEn.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opimion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a staternent that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
reparding mdependence. and to commumicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audilt matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circomstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Bilal Ali

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 08 June 2020
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019
FLIL 2018
ASSETS Nanp —— (Rupzes in 00 ——
MNon-current aveets
Property, plant and eguspemer) ik 5,704,666 4754 Bl
Intanpihie assvis and oodwill I 26174 200560
Empéoyes rétirement benefits il 1388 2350
Trade debis iy 12,493 -
Lang tenn deposits 20 26,388 23,637
B 693.209 T. 153,985
Cufrai aEsts
Stores, spancs and Jooss toods AT, 705 3,035
Stock-in-rads 4 LW LRSS 3001,
Trade debits 22
- Hetnil W07 Bl 125
- Whalesale 3,344,553 2388358
Aglvances, deposils, prepayiments
andl ather recoivalles 23 145,546 1497549
I'frsatiom -+ et 234,095 334 460
Cash &nd bank balsnees 24 163,56% 15247
483007 BA5R.6RS
17,176,216 14,712,670
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
e Capital and Regerves
Austhoriged capitsl 200,000,000 (2018, |75 000,000
ordinary ghares of B 10 cach 3 &, e, I PRt
Issued, subscribed nnd pard-up caputal -] 1ETE041 1.631.340
Share premium resere i 4. 581,03 4825764
Capital reserve WY 5,00
Revemue reserve = unappropriaded Tn.'nﬁ: LE1535% | B 624
Surplas on revaluntion of property,
plant and equipment - net-of tnx F Ik 544 17 5%5
B350, 9 HAR, 125
Deip-corrent Mibifivies.
Lo ey | - secuned H 1,417,271 32T
Liase Babdlitics W 43T A3 42 454
Emplengee retiresnent betefit i 41,211 & 8
Drefierred tan Hability - net i ZHOLTT 27251
Drederred inecome i 15574 24
2,191 %Y 1123015
Cirrent liahilifies
Trade uml other payablis i3 LE64.513 1 TERalT
Mark-up scerued oo borrowings i 216,566 07338
Short term bomrawings « secured and umseenned 5 4111 58] 24905 THs
Linclnmed cividend - 1.325
Ulnpasd dividendd 1457 1517
Current portion of long term lishilitics ¢ 448211 il].449
6,644,325 5,1 96,532
Cantingencies amd commitments f7
17T.176,216 14712670
The sneemed nones 1 oo #4 foom an iemegral par of these consolidmed financial ssanements,
Moazzam A Khan Haroon A. Khan MNadeem M. Buit

Diirector Chief Executive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

29 2018
Mate {Rupees in "(MNY)
Sales - net of sales retum 11,660,266 10,268,910
Sales tax and trade discount on invoices (2,176,292} (1,752,894)
Sales - net 25 9,483,974 BA16,016
Cost ol sales 26 (6.854.602) (6,238,110}
Giross profit 2629372 2.277.906
Marketing, selling and distribution costs s (927,606} [ (1.045.245)
Administrative expenses 28 (4754100 (377.918)
(ther expenses 29 (B5,248) {108, 768)
Other income a0 157,295 37,350
(1,330.9649) {(1.494,572)
1,298,403 TE3334
Eamed carrying charges 191,056 157,676
Finanece costs 2] (867 H50) {430, 503)
(676,794) (272 %27}
Profit before taxation 621,609 510,507
Faxation 32 (243.30M) (128.432)
Profit for the vear AT8.300 382,075
(Restared)
Eamings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

33 2.02 204

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an intepral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan Nadeem M. Butt

Director Chief Executive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2008

201% 2018
{(Rupees in "000)

Frofil for the year 378,300 AB2.075

Dther comprehiensive income

frem thar will nor be reclassified to profit and loss;

- Surplus on revaluation of property. plant and equipment 355,409 -
- Related deferred tax on sumplus (10,012) -
Actuanal (loss) / gain on employee retirement benefits (2,070) 15,197
252,327 15,197

Total comprehensive income for the vear 630,627 397,272

The annexed notes | to 44 form an mtegral part of these consolidated Anancial statements,

Moazzam A. Khan Hareon A. Khan MNadeem M. Buit
Director Chief Executive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fok the vear enbed 31 December 2009

Note L 2014
{Rupees inm "))
Profit hefore taxation 11605 JE050T
Adiasimenty for now-cash Seeue:
Digpreciation on progerty, phant.aml couipme w4 Erall ] 193,829
Ansitisation of iangible dsse It AT +0, 185
Finance cosls ) H&T RS0 A3 503
Meat |oss-om insarinee claim of Tised assels wrstton off due by fre - B H3E
Loss of mveriary e to fire - {156,095)
($Fain) { boss an sale of properry, plant and eguipment (1.9 5,350
Liahilities mo longer payable writen back - (21134
Workere” Poodi Partscipation Fusd A233 27331
Amartisation of deferred noome [ 10T) [, 32Z)
Pravisicn aguinst irade debts and other receivables - 10,388
Workers Welfare Fund 4,243 L HEE
Revereal of loss alkvwance against rode debis (133,065) -
Provision for ensploye: retirement benefits- ne (24,352) 13113
Prafit before working caphial changes 1,735,084 1035 s
E aier gl fTavcs aliws i 1 it i
(lnerpreh S deereane fd curienl ivels
Srores, spares amd loass tools [B,673) (E117)
Spock-in-trade {561,761) (400 3T
Trade dehis {1,324 R56) {1,100, 8580)
Aubvanges, deposits, prepayments und odber receivables 4203 (42 R
Incresae in trade and other payvablos T1.716 BOT. 647
{1H17.353) {1042 TRE)
Cash wsed in operations (81,155 [R,57T)
[mcomss La - net {135,080) (90,385)
Workers' Profit Parncspadeon Fund paid (27.331) (12,245
Warrkers' Wellare Fund paid (% J1E) (BT L)
Emplovee retirement benefits {refund) ¢ paid 6305 [543
Lomg term deposits - net (2,781} 3,528
Met cash psed in operating activities (250,234) [120.05165)
T
Capital cxpenditure {AT1.05T) (521400
Mot proceeds against insurance claim against pssets written ofCdoc 1o fine - 4240037
Prawceads from disposal ol property, plant and equipment 16,067 12600
et cash Mows from investing activities {4:44.990) (7%, 764)
sl s from financing agrivities
Lense remtals paid {130, 94010) (13,639
Finmnee eosgts prid {748,021) (206531
Drividend paid {203,09T) {173.801)
Short term finamees availed - net 11518401 (404,985
Ling term boans reseived 10, (W 445,312
Luag term laurs repaid (2R1,2500 (81,349
Met cash flows fram financing sctivitics TET NS (647,295
Mel (decrease)  Increase in cash and cash cquivalents iR (B47.750)
Cash aml cash eguivalents af beginning of the year {1.424.61%) {576 H60)
Cash aond cash eiquivalents af end of the year 54 (1332, 791) {1.424.619)
The armexed oodes | o 44 formeas imepral part of thess conselidated finmneial statemems
Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan MNadeem M. Buit

Director Chief Executive Diractor Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited {formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Cemsolidated Statemont of Changes in Exquity

For et putar eochd 31 Evomdier 2009

Annual Report 2019

Capilal Rnihli _;I_ihl"h;l- HRiscive
T, Shmrw ta by Surpluy v
subseribod smd  issmed purssani Share prombium Ovkercaprisl | revninpties ol Ueappropniaied Total
ol wp L1 e T land wmd perails
_ capital  amakmmatian Il ing
Hapees b ")
As st 1 Janogry WK A%, 1rkn el M) 100,448 S0 IRLRIL [ AL ERLTEE]
Toral remnrebensive uromys for the peay
P, sl 1w lin - - - TR TS e
Chnvte Commoiniive frcaant fae (e sl
Hermmauresem of | ofimed hariefe shbgaiinn - - - - 149,197 18,007
4 s = Lyl § 1 e
Sprp eaerferrod s accamadased prefs
Tradier apamai =k of fnd snd beildng - net of s - - - P || 96T wT =
Ingremeermal depreciation relarmg o
werphins on mesvaludling - el ol lix - - - [R5 N 2. 18R -
Effect of changs m inx mbe on sacom of sarphse
Do Dy, i hasl aned ol sl 5 z pELT 5 2530
1 LFELS 2550
rpneycilons sl ownery of tie Cospony
Begpiriial dieechle b el
Shoeres: bved under schem of moalpamaine ] 0, ST} - - - -
Shimres. beiied o Silly g B Slidesd 6 150 212,744 . 202,784 - -
Fizal dbvalend fr the yer el
3§ Deoomber 3006 @ Ks 134 per share . . {17050 A b |
1177134 {0 S04 (1L, 7R - - {177,320 (17732
Ralanoe a6 it 31 Mecember TRIE 1ATE 0 o4 M5 Thd 5 17388 (R k] A.330.128
Dta by o 0 Sepuarw 20149, a3 proviomsdy ropomad 1A% 0 A EE T RE ] 117 B BB L AL
Irmgeact ol chanpe w secomiing policy a8 axplamal
imonghe 1,12 LETS UL LETA 20
Adpmed Habace s al (1 Jomesry 2019 1631 =0 4,535, Thi 5500 117598 1,534,423 eRCTLE, -5
Tatad comprelansive (npawye jor the pear
Prrodl adber. e liom - - - - “ - JTR. 300 IR0
e gt imism fir sy e
Remmeymrement of dofined benedit ohlgalion . . " . - £2,000) LN
Sl o fewalestion of propany gl and
ared s - - - - IR5 A - 55400
Higlaied dieferrad room reveiaation serpdos - : = . [ELENIE R - gl
- - - - 54397 ¥I6.230 BI0EET
Trarsfior aguisal sk of boldng - Gel ol b - - - - {07 LR (IET] -
Incremspmal dopres katksn relging (o
serphiss on revalidting - et of b ’ a {380%) 3,005 .
Eifizet nf changs & ipx raty oo sceoen ol =ephes - - - - 1651 - 853
o property plael nd equipme
. = - - (L] As15 LEE]]
Trpusyowlans wih ovners of the Company
onnigoviznd dirrtle de egwit
Shemes i e milly padd Bons shares W 5 24, 1| 244 ) " x
Fizal dvilend fir the year éndind
M Drwcrmbar 300 0.0 B | 25 per sharg - - - - - LRI T (hEAIT)
T4, T A244,T00 a 4 5 %) [IE5IT)
Bakance aa at 31 Iecomber 019 1ATH - 4,561 863 5,00 e i,515.31 A1
The amcxed notes | oodd Tomm i ilogred pan of these ilairal fesncial
Moazrzam A. Khan Harpon A Khan Nadeem M. Buii
Directar Chicf Executive Derector Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

i Status and nature of business
The Group comprises of!
Halding Company
- Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

019 2018
Subsidiary Companies {Holding percentage)
- Waves Marketing (Frivate) Limited L1 100
= Electronics Marketing Company {Private) Limited 1 109

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public company limited by shares and is quoted on
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Holding Company 15 principally engaged in the manufacturing and assembly of
domestic comsumer applinnces alongwith retnifing and trading of the same and other light engineering products.
The registered office of the company is located at 9-K. M. Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Group are located at:

- -k M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.
- [hnga Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur,

Wives Marketing (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Comparny

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) is a private limited company which was mcorporated on 10 Apnil
2017 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017T). The registered office of the
company is located at 15/3 A Model Town, Lahore. The principal activity of the company is the sale, distribution
and marketing of consumer appliances being & trading concern, Subsequent ta 01 July 2009, due to change in
taxation regime wherehy electronic products drg charged to sales tax on retail price under third schedule, sales are
being made by the Holding Company disectly to the customers/dealers. The subsidiary company has niot made any
significant sales during the second half of this year and it i3 not expected to make any sipnificant sales in the
foreseeable future, The Board of Directors of the Holding Company are gvaluating viable business options to
continue the subsidisry company as o going concern and is committed (o provide full financial support as and
when required,

Elecironics Marketing Company (Privare) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Electronics Marketing Company  (Private}) Limited (EMCPL) is a private hmited company which was
incorporated on 09 September 2006 under the repealéd Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017).
The principal activity of the the company is to cammy oot distribution ¢ wholesales ¢ retail business of all kinds of
clectronic appliences, its commponents and accessoricy, etc,

z Basis of preparation
21 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
repirting standards as applicable m Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards as applicable m
Pakistan comprise of

—  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Intermational
Accounting Standands Board (1ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 201 7;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007; and
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—  [Islamie Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Fakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Aect, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards. the provisions of and directives {ssued under the Companies Act, 2007 have been Tollowed.

L.z Bazis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for land, buildings (including the investment property) and plant and machinery which are stated at
revalued amounts less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses as referred o in noe |8,
recognition of lease liability and certain employes retirement bencfits as refermed to o note @ and 10 at
present value respectively.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Thess consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Group's
fungtional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand

2.4 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2019, These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared from the information available in the audited separate financial statements of the Holding
Company for the vear ended 31 December 2019 and the audited financial statements of the subsidiarics
fior the vear ended 31 December 2019,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structored entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable retums from its mvolvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity, The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Holding Company obtains control, and continue o be consolidated until the date that such control
Ceases,

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basiz and
the carrving values of the investments held by the Holding Company have been eliminated against the
shareholders’ equity in the subsidiary companies, The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting vear as of the Holding Company, using consistent gecounting policies,

Intra - Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra -
group fransactions, are eliminated in full,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and labilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
af any non-controlling interest. The cxcess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment.
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Now-controfling interest

Non-controlling interest 15 that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the subsidianies
which are nof owned by the Holding Company either directly or indirectly. Non-controlling inferest is
presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial statements. The Group applies a policy of
[reating transactions with non-controlling meerests a5 transactions with parties external to the Group.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
cquity transaction,

Loss of controf

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, amy nom
controlling interesis and other components of equity related to the subsidiary, Any surplus or defici
arising on the loss of control 15 recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, any
amounis  previouzly recognized inother comprehensive imcome in respect of thar subsidiary are
reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss, 1f the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary,
then such intercst is messured at fair valoe at the date that control is lost. Subsequently that retained
mterest is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee, jomnt venture or as an available for sale
financial asset depending on the level of influence retained,

3 Lise of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statemments it conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience amd vanous other factors that are belisved to bé reasonsble under circumstances, and the
results of which form the basiz for making judgment abhowt carrving valse of assets and liabilities that are not
readily: apparent from other sources. Actual results may différ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis, Revisions 10 accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and futere periods.

The areas where astumplions and estimates are sipnificant to the Group's financial statements or where judgment
was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note
- Rezidual valoe, market values and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment 4.2
Useful lives of imangible assets 4.3
Investment propery 4.3
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans 4.6
= Stock in trade and stores and spares and loose tools
at nel realizable value [ net of impairment losses 47k 48
= Provisions 4.0
= Prowision for warranty obligation 412
- Taxation 4. 14
- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 417

4 Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
finamcial statements, except as disclosed in note 4.1,
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4.1 Change in accounting policies

The Groep has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, IFRS 9 'Financial
Instruments’ and [FRS 16 'Leases’ from 0 January 2009 which are effective from the periods beginning
o or after 01 July 2018, perods ending on or after 30 June 2019 and periods beginning on or after 01
January 2019 respectively. Due to the transition methods chosen by the Group in applying these
standards, comparative information throughout these consolidated financial statements has not been
restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards. The details of new significant accounting
policies adopted and the nature and ¢ffect of the changes from previous accounting policies are set out
below:

4.1.1 IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue
iz recognized. It replaced 1AS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obiains control of the goods or services.
Determining the Gming of the transfer of control at a point i fime or over tme requires judgment, The
Group is engaged in the sale of domestic consumer appliances. The contracts with customers for the sale
of goods generally includes single performance obligation, Management has concluded that revenue
from sale of goods be recognized al the point in time when conirol of the asset is transferred to the
customer. The above is generally consistent with the timing and smounts of revenue the Group
recognized in accordance with the previous standard, [AS 18, Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which
has replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations at 01 January
20015, did not have a material impact on the amounts of revenoe récognized in the consolidated financial
statements,

Upon adoption of [FRS 15 amounts received for futere sale of goods were reclassified 1o 'contract
habilities’. Previously, these amounts were classified as "advances from customers”

fmipact on ,l_'fnnnr."a.!‘ slalemenis

Az at 0] January 2019, contract liabilities were mereased by Rs. 11,37 million and advance from dealers
decreased by the same amount,

4.1.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaced the prosisions of IAS 39 ' Financial Instruments; Becognition and Measurement' that
refates to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecoenition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The details
of new significanl accounting policies adopled and the nature and the effect of the changes w the
previous accounting policies are st out below;

4.1.2.1  Classiffcarion and measurement af financial assets and financial liabifities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing regquirements in [AS 39 for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities., However, it eliminates the previous TAS 39 categories for the financial assets of
held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRE 9, on initial recognition, the
Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorics:

- Those to be measured subscquently at fair value erther through consolidated Other Comprehensive
lncome ("FVOCT") or through consolidated statement of profit or loss ("FVTPLY); and

- Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends upon entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measuned at fair value, gams and losses will either be reconded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or consolidated other comprehensive income, For investments in equoity instruments that
dre not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irmevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investmenl ai FVOCL Dividend income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss., However, the above had no effect on the
financial statements as the Group has no investments af the reporting date. The Group's accounting
policy tefating to fnancial instruments: 5 explained in note 4.16 of these consolidated financial
statements,

41.2.2  Impaci of change in classification and measurement of financial asseis due to adoprion of IFRS 9

The following table explains the original measuremént calegories under 1AS 39 and the new
measurement categorics under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial assets at 01 January 201%;

Financinl Assetx Dm:“ﬂ:;‘r;;‘;;th. :Inu:;i::uﬂnn ﬂnrr::il::iﬂn::lun'l ::“‘::i::?':?r
umder IFRS 9 under LAS 39 IFR5 Y
Rupees Rupees
Security deposits Loans and receia bl Arnoried cost 4T 545 47049
Trade debis - unsecured, considered  Loans and recenable Amorieeed oot 3246483 2582585
Criher receivabies Lowas and receivabic Amomizacd cost 18,728 1R, 728
4123 gﬁ%ﬂ“f?mb; balnces Loans and recevable Amarimed cost 105247 105247

The adoption of IFRS ¥ has changed the Group's impairment model by replacing the TAS 39 “incurred
loss model” with a forwand looking *expected credit loss® (ECL) model when assessing the impainment
of financial assets in the scope of IFRS 9. Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. IFRS
9 requires the Group to recognize ECLs for trade debts earlier than LAS 39. Cash and bank balances,
security deposits and other receivables are subject to ECLs model but there 15 no or immaterial
impairment for the current year,

Linder IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the following bases:

I2 months ECLS, these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs, these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial mstroment,

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Loss allowance on bank balances and other receivables is measured at 12 months expected credit losses.
Since they are short 1erm in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the banks where the
balances are maintained, therefore no credit foss is expected on these balances,
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1 d af ECL

The Company has applied IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is nol restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 is
recognized in retamed camings at the date of initial application, Considering the quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
assessment including forward-looking information, the Company has recognized loss allowance
amounting to Rs, 66389 million against trade debts upon transition to IFRS 9 as of 01 Tanvary 20019
with @ corresponding effect in opening retained camings and deferred taxation amounting to Rs, 475,15
million and Rs. 18869 million respectively.

4.1.3 IFRS 16 - Leases

The Group has initially applied [FRS 16 from 01 January 2019, [FRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use assel representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability represeating its obligation to make lease payments. There
are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items, Lessor accoumting
remains gimilar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify. leases a= finance or operating
leases.

Under IFRS 16, o contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a penod of tme in exchange for consideration,

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply practical expedient to grandfather the assessment
of which transactions are leases. The Greoup applied IFRS 15 only to contracts that were previously
identified as lenses, Contracts that were not identified s Jeases under TAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not
reassessed for whether there is 3 lesse under IFRS 146, Therefore, the definition of a lease under [FRE 16
was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 01 January 2019

As g fessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the nsks and rewands of ownership, Under IFRS 16,
the Group recognizes Tight of usc assets and lease liabilities for material leases i.¢. these leases are on
balance sheet.

The Group presents right-of-use asscts in ‘property, plant and equipment’, the same line item as it
presents underlying assets of the same nature that it owns.

The Group has presented non-current amd curment portion of related lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position considering their due dates for payment.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the comiract to each lease component on the hasis of its relative value. The Group's
accounting policy refating to leascs is explamed in notes of these consolidated financial statements,

Transiti

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases préviously
classified as operating leases under [AS 17,

- did not recognize right-of-use assets and habilities for leases for which the Tease term ends within
I 2 months of the date of initial application;
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~ did not recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low valoe itoms;
— Excluded initial direct costs froim measuring the right-oi-use asset at the date of initial application;

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term.

The Group leases a number of vehicles and machinery. These leases were classified as finance leases
under IAS 17, For these finance lesses, the carmving amount of the right of use asset and the lease
liability at 01 January 2019 were determined at the carrying of the lease asset and lease liability under
1AL 17 immediately before that date.

The Group has elected not to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low valus
assers and leases of short term (warchouses). The Group recogniees the lease paymenls associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight ling basis over the lease term,

Impact of financial statements

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modifed metrospective approach, On transition to IFRS 16,
the Group recogmized additional K= 44777 million of lease liabilities and B=. 447.77 million night of
use assets equivalent to lease liability. When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease
pavments using its incremental borrowing rate applicable at the time of initial application of standdrd,
However, there are some warchouse leases prior fo 1 Janvary 2009 that have not been considered as
significant for the purpose of application of IFRS |6 and accordingly has no impact on the opening
retained earnings as at 01 January 2019,

The result of initial application of IFRS 16 has been disclosed in mote 18 to these consolidated financial
statemenis respectively.

Also in relation 1o those leases under IFRS 16, the Group has recognized depreciation and interest costs,
instead of operating lease expense. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognized Rs,
112.4 million of depreciation charges and Rs. 34.79 million of interest costs from these leases.

4.2 Property. plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less sccumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any, and buildings
and plant and machinery which are stated at the revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, Cost inchudes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.

Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinéry are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the net cammying amount does not differ matenally from the fair value (market
value). In case of revalued assets, any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated at the revalued amount of the
asset,

Increase in the cammying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Each
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued: carrving amount of the asset charged (o
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets
being sold is transferred o retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property.
plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred tax,
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LUsefal lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical
wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence. legal and simvilar limits on the use of the assets
amd other similar factors.

Depreciation 15 charged to the consolidated stitement of profit or loss applying the straight-line method
whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on
additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and up to the month of
disposal, The raves af depreciation are stated in note 18.1 1o thess consolidated fnancial statements.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its property, plant
and equipment as at reporting date has not required -any adjustmnet as. its impact s considered
insignificant.

Subsequent expenditure is capitelized only when it increases the future econemic benefits embodied in
the wem of property. plant and equipment. MNormal repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incwrred. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are
taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

Capital work i _

It is stated at cost less impairment losses, ifany. Tt includes expenditure incurred and advances made in
respict of assets o the course of their construction and mstallation, These cost are transferred 1o
relevant assets category as and when assets are available for intended use.

4.3 Intangible assets and goodwill
Groodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business represents future economic bencfits arsing from assets
that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is initially
recognized al cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, Tabilities and contingent Habilities of the
acquiree. Subseguent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured ai cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Goodwill is annually tested for impairment.

Crther Intangible asset

Oither intangible assers, that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumualated impaimment losses. Intangible assets such as brand
value that have infinite lives are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Following 1nitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated wseful hives and is gencerally recognized in profit or loss, The rates of amortization are
statod o pote 191 to these consolidated financial statements,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economie bensfits embodied in
the specific asset to which 1t relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on intemally
penerated poodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss ag incurred.
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Amortization method, vseful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Cranin or Toss from derecognition of intangible assets 15 recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or Joss.

4.4 Business combination

As per the requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards 3. business combinations are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses | entities under
common control unless it 15 transitory in mature). The cost of acquisition is measured at the fair valee of
assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition.
The econsideration transferred includes the fair value of any liability resulting from o contingent
conzideration amangement; if any.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incwrred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, The exeess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired iz recorded as goodwill, I this iz less than the fair value of the net assets acquired inthe
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recogmized directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss:

4.5 Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation o
both are classified as investmeant property. These are not held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Group's business model i.e. the Group's intentions
regarding the use of property 1s the primary cnterion for elassification as-an myvestment property.

[nvestment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when an
awner occupied property camried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use has
changed, the transfer to the investment property i at fair value on the date of ransfer and any balance of
surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues to be maintained
in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and equpment. Upon disposal, any surplus
previcusly recorded in the revaluation surplus account is directly transferred to retained eamings /
accumulated losses and the transfer is not made through the statement of profit or loss. However any
wain or less on disposal of investment property (caleulatéd as the difference between the net proceedsy
from dispozal and the carrving amount of the item) is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there 15 a change in use, evidenced by
the end of owner occupation. In case of dual purpose properies. the same is classified as investment
property, enly ilthe portion could be sold or leased out separately under fnance lease.

Subsequent to mitial recognition. the Group measures the investment property at fiair value at each
reporting date gnd any subsequent change in fair value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
(i.e. in case where the owner oceupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property,
the fair value gain to be recognized in the statement of profit or loss would be the difference between the
fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property and fair value at the time of
subsequent remeasurement). The revaluation of investment properties are carried out by independent
proféssionally gualilied valuers on the basis of active market price.
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4.6 Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined bene, Tares

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and manapgers
(old Singer Pakistan Limited emplovees) and a funded gratnty scheme for all of its eligible employees
(old Singer Pakiztan Limited's emplovees), The Group also operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its
eligible field staff. Benefits under the scheme are payable to staff on the completion of prescribed
qualifying period of service. Provisions | contributions are made in the consolidated financial statements
to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

Amount recognized in statement of fAnancial position represents the present value of defined benefit
obligations as reduced by the fair valoe of the plan assets, if any. All actuvanal gains and losses are
recognized in 'Other Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. Past service cost resulting from the changes
ter defined benefit plan is immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Current
service cost together with net mterest cost are also charged o the consolidated statement of profit or
| s,

Calculation of gratuity and pension reguire assumpticns to be made of future outcomes which mainly
includes increase in remunetation, expected long term return on plan assets and the discount ate used to
convert future cash flows to current values. Caleolations are seositive 1o changes in the underlying
assumptions.

Defined sbution pl

The Group opérates a recopmized provident fund scheme covering all eligible employees. The Group and
employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Staff Compensated absences

The Group recognizes the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in
which they are ¢amed up to the reporting date on the basis of un-availed camed leaves balance at the
end of the vear.

4.7 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and impaimment losses if any.
ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is delermined based on
management'’s cstimates. These are based on their future usability, Provision is made for any excess of
carrying value over the estimated net realizable walue and is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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4.8 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net realizable
value except for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up
to the reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured finished goods represent
direct cost of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of mamufactunng overheads. Cost of
goods purchased for resale comprises of purchase price, import duties. taxes {other than those
subsequently recoverable by the entity from tax suthorities) and other directly attributable cost wherever
apphicable,

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
mventones fo their present location and condition. Wet realizable value signifies the estimated selling
price i the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost
niecessary 1o be incurred 1o make the sale.

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have became
absolete. Provision 15 made for slow moving inventory based on management’s estimation. These are
based on histoncal eéxperience and are continuously reviewisd,

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash i hand, and deposits held with banks with original
maturities of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash
commitrments rather than for investments or other purposes. Shost term running finance facilities availed
by the Group are also mcluded as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of consolidated
statement of cash flows,

4.10 Trade and other payahles

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current liabilities if
pavment i% due within one year or Tess (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). [f not,
they are classified as non-current habilities.

Trade and other payables are recopnized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and |osses arising on translation in respect of
liahilities in foreign currency are added to the carrving amount of the fespective liabilities.

4.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of finaneial position when the Group has a legal
or comstructive obligation as a result of a2 past event, it s probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic bencfits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 1o
reflect current best estimates.

4.12 Warranty obligations

The Group accounts for its warmanty obligations based on historical trends when the underlyving products
or services are sold.
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4.13 Revenue Recognition

- Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net of
sales fax, sales returns and related discounts. Revenue is recognized when or as performance
obligation 15 satisfied by transferring control of promised goods or services to a customer and
control either transfers overtime or point in time,

- Eamed carmmying charges representing the difference between the cash sale price and hire purchase
price are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective nterest rate
method over the period of the sale under the hire purchase arrangement.

= Income on profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognized on acerual basis using the effective
interest rate method,

4.14 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense 1s recognized m the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that il relates to ftems recognized directly in equity /
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets or in other comprebensive income.

Hrrent

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the vear, using tax rates emacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous
years, Provasion for current tax s based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into acecoumnt
tax credils, rebates and exemptions available, if any, The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the
current or prior periods is recognized as a liability, Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the
current or prior periods 18 recognized 45 an asset.

The Helding Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 52AA of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. Under this approach. the Group is accounting for the related taxes under standalone taxpayer
approach: Under this approach, eurrent and deferred taxes are recognized as if the entity was taxable in
its owm right.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences
atiging from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the laxable profit
However, deferred tax 15 not accounted for if it arises from imitial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differcnces and deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits will
be available against whicli the deductible temporary: differences. unused tax losses and tax credits can
be utilized.

Deferred tax is caleulated ut the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax mies (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date, The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferrad tax assets to'be utilized, Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or cquity in
which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.
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4.15 Borrowings

Al interest bearing borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received
less directly atiributable ransaction costs, Afler initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate: method, Bormowings are
classified as current liabilities unless- the Group has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an acernal basis and are included in acerued fingnce cost to the exlent
of the remaining amount unpaid,

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifving assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended wse or sale, are added o the cost of those assets, until such fime a8 the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other bormowing costs are recogmized 0 the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,

4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and lnancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party
1o the contractual provisions of the instruments,

A financial assct {unless it s a frade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable withoul a significanl Gnancing
component 15 initially measured at the transaction price,

4.16.2  Classification and subsequent measarement

On initial recognition. a financial asset 15 classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through
consolidated other comprehensive income (FVOCT), fair value through consolidated statement of profit
or loss (FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOCT or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Ariaris cosl

A financial asset 15 measurcd at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 15 not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

= its contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Thesa assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost usmg the effective mtersst method. The
amortized cost 15 reduced by impairment losses. [nterest income, foreign exchange gains and losscs and
impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts
and other recervahles.

Debi Tnxtrament - FVOCT

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income caleulated uwsing the effective
mierest method, foreign exchange gains and fosses and impairment are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCIL On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the
Group has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Egquity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recogmition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may imevocably
elect to present subseguent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
mvestment-hy-investment basis,

These assets are subsequently measured at farr value. Dividends are recogmized as income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OC1 and these investments are never
reclassified to statement of profit or loss. However, the Group has no such instrument at the reporting
dare.

Fuair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not ¢lassified as measured at amortized cost or FYVOC as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FYOC] as at FVTPL if doing so0 eliminates or
sigmbicantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise anise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Group has no such investments at
the reporting date.

Financial asseis — Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.z. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
coensiders the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the fnancial asset
containg a contraciual term that could change the timimg or amount of contractual cash fows such thad it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash lows:

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, mcluding variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features: and

- terms that limit the Group®s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g non-recourse features).
Financial liabilities

Financial liabalities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is
classified as at FVW'TPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it 15 a derivative or it is designated as such
on inifial recopnition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in the consohdated statement of profit or loss. Other
financial habilitics are subscquently moasured at amortized cost osing the effective interest method,
while the mterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profil or loss, Any gain or loss on derecogmition is also recognized in the consolidated
staternent of profit or loss.

The Group's financial labilitics comprise trade and other payables, long and short term borrowings,
lease liahilities accrued markuop and dividend payvable.

4.16.3  Derecognition

Financial axsety

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash lows from the
financial asset expire, or il transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in & transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
it does not retam control of the financial azsat.

The Group might enter into transactions whereby il transfers assets recognized in 115 consolidared
statement of financial position, but retams either all or substantially &ll of the nsks and rewards of the
transferved assets. [n these cases; the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial fiabiliries

The Group derccognizes a fnencial hability when s contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derccognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognized ot fair value. On derecognition of a financial Tiability, the
differénce between the carmying amount extinguished and the consideration paid {including any non-
cazh asscts transferred or Habilities assumed) is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

4.16.4  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial ligbilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the consolidated
financial statements only when the Group has a legally enforceable right o set off the recopnized
amounts and the Group intends cither to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability sinmultaneously.
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4.17 Impairment

Financial assets

The Crroup recapgnizes loss allowances for ECLs on!

financial assets measured at amortized cost;
debt investments measured at FYOCT; and
- confract asscts,

The Group measures loss allowances al an amount egeal to lifefime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at |2-month ECLs;

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- pther debt securities, hank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (ie, the risk of
defanlt occumring over the expected life of the financial instroment) has not ncreased significantly
since mitial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
maonths after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
maotiths ).

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets” original effective interest rate.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitative
information: and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-leoking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past duge for a reasonable period of time; Lozs allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion
of ECLs that result from defanlt events that are possible within the 12 months after the réporting date {or
# shorter period if the expected life of the instrament is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maxinum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carmang
ampunt of the assets,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is wrilten off when the Group has no reasonable
cxpectations of recovening of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group mdividually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
of L However, financial assets that are written off could stll be :iuhjii:l.."l to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calenlated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience. adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the ceonomic environmient, The Group reviews the recoverability ofits trade debis, deposils,
advances and other receivibles to assess amount of loss allowance required on an annual basis,
Impairment of cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents
have low credit sk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Now - Financial assers

The carmying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than invéntories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, [T any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The récoverable amount of an
assel or cash generating unil 18 the gréater of it valoe in use and its faic value less cost to sell, In
assessing valoe in use, the cstimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values nsing a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating Lnit.

An impairment loss 15 recognized if the carrving amount of the assets or its cash penerating umt exceeds
its estimated recoverable amouni. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, Impainment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocaied o reduce
the carmying amounts of the assets in & unit on a pro rata basis, Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or wo longer
exists. An umpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, An impairment loss 15 reversed only 1o that extent that the asset’s carrying amount
after the reversal does not exceed the camying amount that would have becn determined, net of
depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

4.1%8 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions and balances

All monetery assers and labilities i fordign currencies are translated imo Pak Rupees using the
cxchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translations at the vear end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated m foreign curtencies are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetiry assels and habilities
denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are tmnslated vsing the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial fransactions. MNon-monetary asscts. and labilities
denominated in foreipn currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates
al the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are generally included in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss.

4.19 Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and sppropriation to reserves are recognized m the: consolidated financial statements in the
period in which these are approved, Transfer between reserves approved subscquent to the reporting
date is considered as non-adjusting event and is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which such transfers are made.
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4.20 Earnings per share

A required under International Accounting Standard 33 Eamings Per Share, basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit afler tax attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. The Group is not exposed to the dilutive effect
on EPS.

4.21 Common control tranzactions

A business combination (or & demerger for that purpose) mvolving entities or businesses under common
control is & business combimation in which afl of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination. Such common control
transactions have been excluded from the seope of Intemnational Financial Reporting Standands 3 dealing
with Business Combinations. Accordingly, as an accounting policy choice, the assels acquired and
liabilities assumed [ assets and liabilities transferred are recognized under the book value basis (carmry-
aver basis) of accounting.

4.22 Cirant in aid (deferred income)

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a projeet to phase out the Ozone
Depleting Substances (0DS] by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufsctures such products
which are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferréd income and is being amortized
over the useful life of such asset.

4.23 Leases

Al the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether & confract is or contains lease. A contragt is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right fo control the use of an identified asset for a penod of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease m IFRE 16

The Group recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right of use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease Hability
adjusted for any lease paymients made at or before the commencement date plus any imitial dircct cost
incurred less any lease incentive received. The right of use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment logses. and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability, 1F any. The right of wse assets 15 depreciated wsing the strmght line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or cost of the right of use asset reflects that the Group
will exercise a purchase option. In that case the night of use assel will be depreciated over the useful lite
of the underlying asset, which 15 determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. Right of use asset is disclosed in the property, plant and equipment as referred to in 18,1 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental bomowing rate. The Group has wsed it incremental
bomowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate 15 not readily available. The lease liability 15
subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease hability and decreased by lease payment made,
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The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in rate or & change in the terms of
the lease arrangement, if there is change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected (o be payvable
under a residual value puarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercize a
purchase, extension of termination oplion or if there is a revised in-substance fxed lease payment
When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carmying
amount of the nght of use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or Toss if the camying amount of the
right of use asset has been reduced to zero. Reter note 9 to these tinancial statements for disclosure of
lease labihity,

Short term leases and leases of low valne gsyefs

The Group has elected mot to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low value
assets, The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term,

Sale and lease hack

Whete the sale and lease back transactions result in a lease lability, any excess of sale proceeds over the
carrying amount is defierred and amortised over the lease term. However, sale proceeds less than the
carrying value is immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

4.24 Operating segments

Clperating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker, The chief operating decision-maker, wheo is responsible for allocating
resources and pssessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Durectors of the Holding Company that makes the strafepic decisions. These consolidated financial
statements are prepared on the basis of single reportable secgment a: the Board of Dircctors views the
Company's operations as one repotable segment,

4.15 Standards, interpretations and amendments fo published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be ‘effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 Janoary 2020:

— Amendment to IFRS 3 '‘Business Combinations® — Definition of a Bosiness {effective for business
combinations for which the acqpusition date 15 on or after the beginning of annual period beginning
on or after 01 Jamuary 2020, The IASB has 1ssped amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties
that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business ot a group of assets: The
amendments clarfy that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assels must
include, at a mimimum, an input and & substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to'use a concentration test. The
standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past
financial staternents.

- Amendments to TAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and TAS 8 Accounting - Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in ITAS 1 easier o
understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards, In
addition, the [ASE has also 1ssued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing
their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.




WSPL Consolidated FS 2019 Annual Report 2019

- O 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the [ASB) has issued @ revised
Conceptual Framéwork [or Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately containg chanpges
that will set a new dircetion for IFRS in the fiture.. The Conceptual Framewark primarily serves as
A tool for the IASB (o develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interprefations Commitiee in
interpreting: them, It does not owvernide the requirements of individual 1IFRSs and any
inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to'the usual due process — this means
that the overall impact on standard setting may take some tme to crystallise. The companics may
use the Framework as a teference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific
IFRS requirements. [n these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new
guidance retrospectively as of 01 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope
outs.

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, 1AS 3% and IFRS 7 15 applicable for
annual Tinancial periods beginming on or afler 01 Janwary 2020. The G20 asked the Financial
Stahility. Board (F5B) to undertake a fundamental review of major intercst rate benmchmarks,
Following. the réview, the FSB published a report setting outl ils recommended reforms of some
major interest rate benchmarks such as [BORs, Public authoritics in many jurisdictions have since
taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in tum led o uncertainty about the long-
term wiability of some mterest rate benchmarks. In these amendments. the term Sinferest rate
benchmark reform! reéfers 1o the marker-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark including its
replacement with an - alternative  benchmark rate, such as that resulting from  the FSH's
recommendations set out in its July 2014 repont '"Reforming Major Interesi Rate Benchmarks' (the
refiem), The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused
by the reform. The Group shall apply the exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected
by interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments are not Hkely to affect the financial statements
of the Group,

— IFRS 14 Repulatory Deferral Accounts - {effective for annual periods: beginning on or aftes 01 July
20019y provides interim puidarce on accounting for regulatory defermal accounts balances while
[ASB considers more comprehenzive puidance on accounting fior the effects of rate regulation. In
arder to apply the mterim standard, an entity has to be rate regulated — 1.0 the establishment of
prices that can be charped 1o itz costomers for goods or services is subject 1o oversight and/or
approved by an anthorized body. The term “regulatory deferral account balance” has been chosen as
a neutral descriptor for expense (income) or variange account that is included or is expected 1o be
included by the mte regulator in establishing the rate(s) that can be charged to customers and
would not otherwise be recognized as @n asset or liability under other IFRSs. The standard 15 not
likely to have any effect on Group's financial statemsnts.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 fanuary 2020 and are
not likely to have an impact on Group's financial statements.

2019 M8 2019 20IE
Nerde (Mumber of shares) {Rupees in "(44))
5 Share capital

5.1 Authorized share capital e i m&nnwuﬂ 175, (000,000 2,000,000 17540, 00

1.1 Druring the year, the Holding Company has increased its authorized share capital by 235 000,000 shanes,
The authorized share capital thus stands enbanced at Rs. 2000 million, divided into 200,000,000 shares
of fs. [0 each, and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Holding Company
have been amended.
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521 lssued, suhscribed and paid-up capital
2019 2018 2619 2018
Fully pai ariinary shares o {Number of shares) (Rupees in "(MH1)
I each
Issued for cash 11461568 11461 568 114,616 114,616
Issued for consideration other than cash TH3.733 03,733 7037 1.037
Issued as paid bonws shares 78,988,759 54,518,664 TH9 B4R 545,187
Issped under scheme of amelgamation B6,450,000 S, 450,000 D64, 500 G54, 500
187,604,060 163,133,965 1,876,041 1,631,340
5.3 Reconciliation of ordinary shares
Maove
Balance as at 0] January 163,113,965 45 405,622 1,631,340 434,056
Chdinary shares issued
under scheme of arrangement F.3 - 6,450,000 - 264,500
Ordinary shares issued
a5 fully paid bonus shares 5.8 24,470,095 21,278.343 244,701 212,784
Balance as at 31 December 18T D60 163,133,965 1,876,041 1631340

5.4 Ordinary shares of the Holding Company held by assomated persons and undertaking at year-end arc as

[ollows:

2019 2018 29 2018

{Percentage held) {Number of shares)
*Poseidon Synereies { Private) Limited 0% 6.00% 11,253,153 9,785 377

Chief Executive Officer-and
fix spowre amd minor children

- Haroon Ahmad Khan (CEQ) I8 3T% AT 95% 71,893,524 61,916,108
- Mighat Haroon Khan (Wife of CEC) 15.64% 564 % 219,346,274 25,518,500
- Dependent children of CEO 1.66% |.66% 3,107,875 2,702 30
6l.62% ],.25% 115,604,856 09,9232 485

* Omed by Chiet Executive Officer and his wife

55 Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, approved by Honourable Sindh High Court through its Order dated
22 May 2018, Singer Pakistan Limited was merged and combined with Cool Industnes (Private)
Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited. The Holding Company issued 96,450,000 shares 1o the
sharcholders of Cool Industries (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited pursuant to the sume
scheme

Sb During the year, the Holding Company has anncunced 15% (2008: 15%) bonus shares in liew of
dividend to its existing sharegholders, in proportion of their sharcholding,

5.7 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any). and are entitled to
one yote per share at meetings of the Holding Company.

58 13,509,024 shares having face value of Rs. 10 each are pledged as securty with a financial institution,
6 Share premimm

This represents excess of markes value over the face value of skares issued under the scheme of arrangement. This
reserve can only be utilized by the Group for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017,
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iy DE
Mare {Rmpees n “BiHK

Surplus om revalustion of praperty, plont and equipmest - net of tax
Revalmtion Surples - &= on 01 Janury BS EY | A5 124
Surplus on revalmation orisen daring the vear 3554 "
Sarplus on sale of busllings o froetold nd transforred o relained camings A4y (1.24H)
Trremental deprecintion trmsfemsd 1o eguily (RN (LT

07381 163,083
Dirfisrrend tao, linhélity - ax om {H Jaousry' 145,688} (LR
Dieliarmed fax om revakustion ansen during thi vt {INL.BET} -
T gl Tict um eale of Bulldtigs on frechold bind tanslizrred w retmed e mings L4 ZH1
T effoct on eransler of incrementnl deprotation b retimisd sarmings 1,64 13481
Adjssimend resulting from change of 1ax mic (633} 253
Diglerned tax liabslicy {144,538 145 AHH]

R R IhZ544 |17 345

.1 Balmee as af 31 Decemaber inchodes surplus on ked of Bs. mil (2008 8 plfion), boiklicg on feehold lend of B 100747 oilkion (2005 Bs | 1633 mllion) and
plant and marininery of e 25571 milbon (2008 RS, mll

T2 Tho Group rivadusd s fechold lund. budldmg-om Trochish] e and plast and machinery during the Gnamclal vear 2017 wsd 2019 Latest resaluanson was: casciod
guton 5| December 2019 This was comdomed by Mis Asil Associates (Private) Lismted: Freebald lisd wos revalued on the basis of current market value wherens
athér daans were revalied om the busia of deprocisied market values, The il algeificant fopus miooilies vabastion spprosch (& prive per kamal for land, price per
square foot for buildings end present: eperstiomal condition and age of plant end machizecy.

o F1iLE
Marg i Kapsees in D00
Lang term laans - Secured
Long term lpams. - Basoing Cospany E N whs, T b
Long serma Jouns - Mos-banking Company &4 $n 283 445312
Carrent maturity presenbed snder carrent Tinhilities it {315, iy [2RL.25(0

1417271 ERPe]

Long ferm finances witlized under mark-up amasgoments from basking g nom banking conpaire ang somposid aft

s el L MR Teanre amnd hasis of principal
Mote  Bank Name Facility Hiises " Mark-up 35 per Agroement PG
d Balence payable m 5 eéni-
E
810 Sindh Bank Limised Term Finance 405,708 sig g | 2 Mowiha KIBOR plie 5% per o islly nstaloonis ending oy
amnei piyabbe quartery il
1 Mareh J2E
Balance payuble after expiry of
Dukai Elamic Bark i 3 Muowths KIBOR plus 2% por 15 moath - gmoe’ pennd in 16
L2 e ek Evesest 400,800 | ennamy, payubls quarterly. quarberly’ instulments beginming
Lo O Famwary 2020,
B TIE Sk, 2049
: = - Balance payable in 11 quametly
R13 ::.’k S Term Finunce 326,563 445,33y | ? Mowis KIBOR plus Bper o oinerits ending . on 30
ampaeny Lingied anmamm, paynhie quarterky.
Augmst 2002
Halsnee paynble afler expary of
Fake D Tnvestmen) ) 3 Monihs KIBOR plus 2.5% per 12 momih grace perind o 16
BLA  Company Linkitd S Py " | i poyabie quartrly guarterdy instabments beymmning
Firrm (16 Daecervbor 202
Ralance payalde after expirg of
Pak Litryn hevesineemt A i Moaths KIBOR plus 2.5% per 12 mosith - prace period  in 20
o Coompany Limited S e © | snvams payahle quanterly quartery insinlments begming
firoomy (15 Cazanpheer W20,
926503 445312

This Tacility & secuned by way of Hre part] passa charge of B3 1267 million oo present and fonne fixed asseie of tio Holding Compazny and pirsonsl gaasaniees of
the directors of the Holding Compasyy, This facibite has been obtamed i mess long teem working capsinl reguirensenie of the Group

This faclbivy 1= secunsd by way of frst pan pasaw charge of R 534 mallion on presens and furure: fiead assas of the Holdmp Company and Cross eorporate
gutmramoes of group coneermni This facility has been obismned 1o e fong term wWorking capital requinensnts aod balance shosf re-profiling of the Growp,

This Meifity is secured by woy of first parn passe charge of Bs, 96T million on prese sod fosre fixed asseis of she Holding Company snd perscoal geananiecs of
the directars of the Hnlding, Company. This facility has been obtnired to meet loag term working capetnl requiremenis snd halince sheet resprofiling of the Holding
Company.
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.14 This facility s sevured by sy of 25% margin aver fimanceng amuust related fo preseot asd foiuee fxed assets of the Holding Compniy. and personal guamnsecs. of
the, finecions of the Hobdieg Company, This 1ciliy has been obialeed o mees fong e working <apsial nequinensns and CAFEX for shifting of exiscing

mamifecturing facility.

BI1S  This ity f& seeured by way ol fisst pan péss Clargo of Fa. 400 millkon on-peesesi and fubene fixed sssais-of the Holding Compriy. Thes facilliy has bam
obinied tn acguire 1end ioshift the peoductzon facalities (oo lrge new premises

Bi6  Suksecuen to the vear end, the Hobding Conmpasy has svailed the. rogaliney relict given by Smte Bank of Pakistn theowsh i siroalasr lerer bo, 130l 2020
deferning the the doe paymenis installments of long torm loans by 360 dayx with a restricon impased by fnenciz] mstetutions on compenies availing relssf for oot

making dividesd payment Saring the period of retizl

BIT Aa pit whe Financing simangements, the Holding Cosmpany B requined o comply adib cenain fnancial covsmns and othee condinmg {mposed by the providers of

Fnance.

% Laase liahiliries

Leasad amsets - seonred
Lessel building - tmeecmre:d

Carreni maturity

The Funare mamieoams kease paymenis and iheir present valoees inowhich the Group is conemitiad under venious lease srmngements are as follaws:

a1 Lznsed nssels - secumed

Ml kater then ane yeir
Lastir Sham ome year and oot kaber
than five wars

e i
e (Hupeas in K
01 b, H0W (=]
9.1 S9N, 425 -
Sh5, 205 5,528
{127,562 123,074)
437,661 41454
P11k 2008
TP T Finance Presemt Mimirnum Finamee Prosent
bease charge value of Tz charge vahre.af
paymEnts md i paymenis NI
lease lemse
Py mEnds pRyTIETS
(Hmpees in D}
37,737 9,102 IR34% Z8.RES 5811 134074
44,948 6,693 IBIS5 44,950 449 42454
81,685 I5BRS G500 75835 10,307 55524

The abeve represents france beases enterad mo with cortain fnmeinl mstitution. foe plant asd machisery and vebaches. Monibly payments of leases cirmy mark-up s a1
KIHOR plus 1 5%, w0 5% por samom (200E: KIBOR pdns 1.5 % ta 3% per anmem: KIBOR is one, three s six monshs svernge msk side &1 the yeor-end the applicobbs
rates rangpel betwwen 3433 1o L4095 (2016 & 45% o 14,0996} per annimm

Dummg the cumeni yoar, the Tiekling Camgpany enieesd iole euse arranpements of assels amounting 10 Ba 241 million. These obligalions are payable m monthly
retallmwents He 0453 dublion to Ba 0083 naillion ad carry  mark ap eeie b 3 o KIBOE + 2.5% pér atmuin

4.2  Leased building - unsceured

Mt laler than poe year

Lwter tham tme year and nes lakes than five years

2019 2018

Mimlmum Finands Present Mlinimism Fimamee Freseni
e charge value of kst hafps: vl af°
payments mimimum pavimends IE LT,

Biease lense
pavments pasamenta

(Rupeees im M1
154 40K 55,351 95,017 . .

511,155 121,747 ELER L - - -
675,523 177,008 4UR 425 - . -

Az gaplained i mote 413 b0 ke finonesal sintements, the Group bas recognized lesse buildings during the yesr on accoant of shope anid wanckouses remed out. The
remnmiiig tepire of eoniracts ranges from 18 tor | 20 month payvable mosthly, quarterty and anmually, Lease liabdliy is caloulated st discount rate mnging from 12.00% 0

([ Sl
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19 2018
Note (Rupees in "(00)
12 Deferred income
Balance as at 01 January
Ciross balance of deferred imcome 50.529 32580
Accumuiated amortisation (23,1910 |16, 65
Unamortized balance of deferred income as on 01 January 27339 15,712
Transactions during the year
Sale and lease back armangement 233 - 17,945
Amortivation for the vear
- om sale and lease back amrangement 121 {4, 956) (3,236)
- on grant 122 (1,161} (1,086)
(6,117) (6,322}
Unamortized balance of deferred income 21222 23339
Crrrent portion of deferred income
- om sale and lease back amangement 121 {4, 487) (4,9535)
- on grant 122 {1,161} (2,170)
(5.648) [7.125)
Balance as at 31 December 15574 20.214
Reconciliation:
Giross balance of defemed mcome Z0.529 50,529
Accumulated amortisation (29.307) (23, 190)
[ Mnamorized balance of deferred income S1.22T 27339
Details of the closing balance
Unamortized balance of the excess of sale proceeds over the
carrying value of assels 121 11,181 15,137
Unamortized balance of grant 122 10,041 11,202
21,222 27,339

12.1 The Group had entered in sale and lease back arrangements of specific items of plant and machinery
resulting in a deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the carrying amownt of
respective assets). The deferred income has been amortized and recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the lease term,

12.2 Grant in - aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project 1o phase out the
Orone [Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring assel (production facility) which mamifactures
products that are free from such substances. This grant s classified as deferred income and is being
amortized over the usefil life of the asset. Amontization for the yvear is based on 8.33% of the balance
in-accordance with the depreciation charged on plant and machinery for which the grant was received,
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2019 2018
13 T'rade and other payables Note (Rupees in "4}

Trade creditors 1.018,712 739,901
Bills payable 155,481 519,182
Accrucd liabilities 224.188 223,586
Advance from dealers - 11,371
Contract habilities i, THY -
security deposits from dealers 13.f 14,838 12,815
Retention from employees I3z 100,130 88,023
Provisions in respect of warranty obligations 18864 12922
Workers' profits participation fund 133 31,313 27,331
Workers' wellare fund 0.243 9,118
Advance from emplovees against vehicle 17,013 10,835
Income tax deducted at source i34 126,862 55,774
Payable to the provident fund i5 6497 # 434
Others 135 T3.583 i, 725

1,864,513 I.780.617

13.1 The Group is in the process of transferring thiz amount to a separate bank sccount to comply with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017,

13.2 This reprezents deposits of emplovess held by the Group and 1= paid at the time of final settlement..

iy 2018
133 Workers' profits participation fund Nt (Rupees in "000)
Balance as at (1] January 27331 12,248
Add: Allocation for the vear 2a 32313 27,331
Interest on WPPF accrued during the year - 498
S0.644 4007
Less: Payment made durning the year (27.331) (12,746)
Balance as at 31 December 32313 27331

13.4 Amount of Fs. Nil million (2018: 2531 million) has been paid subsequent to vear emnd.

13.5 Included in other liabilitics arc provisions aggregating to Hs, 61.74 million (201%: Bs 61,74 million)
vespect of probable loss from pending litigation of the Holding Company against Income Tax, Sales
Tax and Custom Authorities (the aothoritigs). The above provisions have been made as per the
manapements best estimale against varous demands raised by the authorities that are being contested
by the Holding Company at various forums as explained in note 17.

2019 2018
14 Mark-up accrued on borrowings (Rupecs in "(4I0)

Mavf-tip haxed borriwings from banking companies

- Long term loans - secured 30,937 19,655

- Short term borrowings - secured 147,197 fid 837

Mark-up bosed borrowings from mon-banking conpanies

- Long term doan from fnancial mstitubion 21.79% 5,101

fedamic mode of horvowings

= Short term borrowings - secuted 16636 9,745

216,566 97,338
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019 2018
15 Short term borrowings Nowrer (Rupees in "000)
From banking companies - secured
Running finance under mark-up arrangements 152 1,496 361 [, 529 866
Finance apainst irust receipt 133 1,873,765 1,032,528
Cash finance 154 403455 -
Shiort term borrowings under Murahaba arrangement }5.5 280,001 307 803
4,113,581 2,960,286
From non banking companies
Short term borrowings from associated undertaking - mwrecuired J5F - 38,000
4,113,581 2005246
151 Particulars of borrowings
Interest / mark-up based borrowings 3,833,580 2,597,394
Islamic mode of borrowings 280,001 397 892

4,113,581 2,005 286

15.2 Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term runming finance facilities under mark-up amangements
availed from various commercial banks aperegating to ®s. 1,506.72 million {2018: Rs. 1.536 million).
These facilities are secured by way of equitable mortgage charge on owned shops, frechold land and
building on frechold land of the Holding Company, charge over all current asseis and  fixed assets of
the Holding Company and persomal guarantees of the directors of the Holding Company and earry
mitrk-up ranging from [2.05% to 16.86% (2018 8.91%, 1o | 1.88%) per annum, payable monthly and
gquarterly in arrears. These facilities are expinng on various dates (Latest by January 2020 and
maximum by September 2020),

15.3 Finance against trust receipt

This represents Finance Agamst Trust Receipt (FATR) available from commercial banks agpreganng
o Rs. 276395 million (2008: 1,854 million). These facilities are secured agomst charge over all
current assets and fixed sssets of the Holding Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the
Holding Company and carnes mark-up rate’ rangng bebween 1156% o 17.01% (2018: 8.66% to
12.94%) per annum payable on maturity. monthly and gqoarterly in amears. These botrowings are
repayable on different dates startmg from January 20200 June 2020,

154 Cash finance

This represents utilized amount of cash finance tacilities under mark-up arranpements availed from
commercial banks aggregating to Rs, 475 million (2018; Rs. Nil million). These facilities are secured
by way of pledge-of Holding Company stock with 25% of margin, charge over all current assets of the
Holding Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Holding Company and cirmy mark-up
ranging from' 16.36% to 18.54% (2018 Nil} per annum, payable quarerly in amears, These facilities
dre expiring on various dates {Latest by June 2020 and maximum December 2020).

15.5 Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents utilized amounm of Murabaha / Istisna borrowings available from banks aggrepating to
Rs. 280 mallion (2008; Rs. 417 million). These facilities are secured agamst charge over all current
assets and fixed assets of the Holding Company and personal gusrantees of the directors of the Holding
Company &nd carrying mark-up rates ranging from 12.30% to 16.653% (2018: 7.66% to 12.41%) per
annum payable quarterly in arrears. These borrowings are repayable between April 2020 to June 2020

15.6 Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter.of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2019 amounted to Rs.
1,526.4% milliom of which remaining unutilized amount was Rs, 890, 18 million.
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15.7 Short term borrowings from associated undertaking

This represents an interest free loan oblamed from Poséidon Synergies (Private) Limited, an associated
underaking, for working capital reguirement and is repaid during the year

15.8 Subsequent to the year end. the Holding Company has availed the regulatory relief given by State Bank
of Pakistan through its BPRD circular fetter no. 13 of 2020 deférring the the principal payments due
under facilitics by 360 days with a resitriction imposed by finanical institutions for not making
dividend payment during the period of relicf,

15.9 As per the financing arrangements. the Holding Company is required to comply with cértain financial
covenants and other conditions imposed by the providers of finance,

2019 2018
16 Current portion of long term liahilities Note (Rupees in (N0}
Long term loans - secured ¥ 315,000 281,250
Lease liabilities g 127.563 23,074
Deferred income 12 5.648 123
448.211 311,449

17 Contingencies and commitments
172 Contingencies - Holding Company

17.1.1  The Holding Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honourable Sindh High Court at
Karachi, challenging the vires of Rule 38T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules refating to 2%
extra sales tax on certain home appliances, This is based on the view that the said vires are not
applicable on the Holding Company. The case is pending before the Honourable Sindh High Court, An
mtenm arder was recerved m favour of the Holding Company, The Holding Company 18 confident
that no lisbility is expected (o ocour: Amoust involved is Rs. 84.80 million as of 31 December 2019
against which no provision has been made as the Holding Company, based on the legal advisor's
advice, is conhdent of & favourable decision.

During the finanmal year 20004, the Holding Company received a show cause notice from the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) in respect of short payment of 2% extra sales tax under the Sales Tax
Procedures Rultez, 2007 gz amended by SRO. $96(112013 dated 4 October 2013 and deduction of input
tax miore than the limit defined ander scetion B read with chapter 1V of Sales Tax Rules, 2006, The tax
authority in the said notice raised a demand of Bs. 12,91 million and Bs. F1.15 million tespectively for
the period from | January 2014 fo 30 September 2014, The Helding Company after consultation with
its s advisors has replied and submitted explanation with the tax authorities along with revised
workings for the apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Holding Company for the above
preriod was R, 0052 million {regarding the 2% extra sales tax matter, please refer the above paragraph).
Since then, no further action has been initiated by the tax authorities

The Holding Company had carlier received a =ales tax recovery order from the sales 1ax authorities
amounting to Rs. 19563 million, for the financial year ended 31 December 20010 against which the
Hobding Company had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals {CIR-A). CIR-
A had delcted one item while the remaining matters were set aside, Moreowver, the management, based
o consgultation with it tax advisor, is of the view that matter would be decided in favour of the
Holding Company. However, CIR has filed an appeal against Holding Company on the matters of
SRO 6472007 regarding input tax adjustments against 90% output tax and payment of sales ax on
instalment sales at the time of receipt of instalment instead at the time when instalment sales are
actually being made for which no hearing has vet taken place. Amount involved is Rs, 171,71 million,
However, based on advice of legal consultant, management is of the view that that no potential liabilicy
is expected toocour,




WSPL Consolidated FS 2019 Annual Report 1019

17.1.2  Income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year
2007, The Holding Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax years from 2006 to 2011,
[mcome tax refund orders were garlier determined for the tax years 2009, 20010 and 2011 Income tax
refund was released for the tax yvear 2009, However, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue
(ACTR) arnended the deemed assessed orders under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for the tax years from 2009 to 2012 and mised additional income tax demand of Rs, 1998
million. However, the Holding Company had filed an application for the rectification of orders after
which the net tax additional demand was reduced to Rs. 2.02 million (after the adjustment of the
refind of related vears) under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Appeals have been filed
1o Commissiongr Inland Revesue - Appeals (CIR-A) againsi these onders.

The Holding Company has received appellate orders Tor the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated 29
June 2015, where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and
maintained certain disallowances. The financial impact of the items set aside for reasscssment and
continued disallowances amount to Rs. 43.72 million, Appeal has been filed with Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The Holding Company based on the mernits of matters is
of the view that ultimate decisions are expected in its favour, However, adequate provision is held in
the consolidated financial statements m respect of the above balance.

17.13 The Finance Act. 2017 introduced a tax under section 3A of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001 on every
pubic Holding Company other than a scheduled bank or Modarba, that derves profit for the lax year
and does ot distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the end of said tax year
through cash or bonus issue, Under the earlier section tax was not mandatorily leviable in case the
Holding Company’s reserves were not in excess of the paid up capital {(which was the case with the
Holding Company as it had accumulated losses). Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Bs.
9.35 million has not been paid as the Holding Company's management is of the wview that the
amendment was made afier the closure of Holding Company's finencial vear ended 31 December 2016
and for certain ather legal reasons. The Holding Company has filed a Constitutional petition belore the
Honourable Sindh High Court st Karachi challenging the vires of Section 5A of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and a stay order has been granted against any coercive action against the Holding
Company under the newly inserted Section A,

17.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DUIR). wvia order dated 30 April 2004, under section
1&1(1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax vear 2014 raised a tax demand of Rs.
(1.83 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from 01 Movember 2013 to 30
April 2014 under section 236(G) and 236(H) of the aforesaid Ordinance. The Holding Company filed
an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was remanded back 1o
DCIR. The Holding Company filed an appeal against the order of CTR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenwe [(ATIR), which is pending adjudication. However, adeguate provision is held in the
consolidated financial siatements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.5 During the financial year 2014, the Holding Company received a nodice by Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Zone | for sclection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 20012, The Holding
Company filed an appeal against the said notice before Honourable Lahore High Count which was
decided against the Holding Company and audit proceadings were initiated, The Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenue issued an amended assessment arder under section 122(1) and 122{5) through which
certain additions were made and demand order was raised amounting 1o Bs. 4810 million. Being
apgrieved, the Holding Company has Aled an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CTR-A) apainst the sbove order which is pending adjudication,

17.1.6 Durng the financial year 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed penalty vide
order dated 27 April 2014 pnder section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ovdinance, 2001 amounting Rs.
(.91 million for the tix year 2003 for the late filling of income tax retum under sechon 114 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Holding Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the above order. The CIR-A decided the matter against the
Company vide order dated 25 March 2014, The Holding Company filed an appeal before Appeliate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However,
adeguate provision is held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above halance.
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17.1.7 During the financial year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue {ACIR) vide order
dated 30 April 2015, under section 122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2010,
raised an amended demand of Rs: 7.85 million after disallowing certain expenses amounting to Rs:
2915 milliocn. The Holding Company filed an appeal for the rectification of order before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeéals (CTR-A) who vide its order dated 30 December 2015 deleted
certain items amounting o Ra, 1994 million. ACIR has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate
provision is held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.8 During the fnancial vear 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACTR) amended the
deemed assessed retum vide its order dated |9 Jung 2007 under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the tax vear 2011, The ACIR disallowed certain expenses amounting to Rs. 9.58
million and raised the additional income tax demand of Rs. 1.02 mitlion, The Holding Company filed
an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Hevenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which is pending for
adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the above balance.

17.1.8  During the financial yvear 2017, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended
assessment order under section 161205 of the Tncome Tax Ordinance, 2001 and certain additions were
made due to non-deduction of withholding tax amounting Ra 122,54 million for tax vear 2005 The
Holding Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) againsi the
order where the Company was granted stay of tax demand. The CIR-A passed an order in which
demand against purchases and discounts have been deleted and amended demand of Rs. 33.85 million
has been raised. The Holding Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order which iz pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated financial stalements in respect of the above balance.

17,110 During the financial year 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended
aszessment order under seetion 122(1) of the Ineome Tax Ordinance, 2001 raising a tax demand of Rs.
3041 million for the tax year 2015, Being apgrieved, the Holding Company filed an appeal before
Commtissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CTR-A) apainst the order. The CIR-A, via order dated 27
July 2018, direcied DCIR 1o apply minimuom tax under section 113 at the rate of 0.2%% instead of 1%
and remanded back the case to DOTR. The Holding Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tnbunal
[nland Bevenue (ATIR) against the order which is pending adjudication.

17.1.11 During the financial yvear 2018, the Holding Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue under sectionm 161 for the tax wear 2017 on non deduction of
withholding tax amounting to Rs, 6.03 million on payments againsi purchase of plant and machinery,
packing material and othet miscellaneous payments. The Holding Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was remanded back to the
Department. Being agerieved, the Holding Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication,

17.1.12 During the financial year 2008, the Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section 177 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an amended assessment
order under section 122 of the Ordinance raising rax demands of Rs. 2529 million alleging that the
Holding Company suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible expenses. Being agprieved, the
Holding Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIT
Appeal vide order, deleted certain additions amounting to Bs. 80 million and the rest of the addinons
amounting to Rs. 26 million were eonfimmed. Hence nothing 15 outstanding or payable against the
Hodding Company, The department fled an appeal before ITAT which is pending for adjudication and
a favorable outcome is expected.
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17.1.13 During the financial yvear 20016, the Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue saised an order under
section 161205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax amountmg Rs. 6.45
million and Rs. 376 million for tax years 2000 and 2010 respectively. Company filed an appeal before
the Commissionar Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided against the Holding
Company. The Holding Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appeliate Trbinal
Inland Bevente (ATIR), which is pending for adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.14 During the year, the Holding Company received & show cause notice from Collector of Customs dated
05 April 2019 and respective order dated 17 October 20019 in which the Holding Company was
directed to deposit an amount of Rz 14.70 milion for the consignment of Polvmethylenc
palyphenylens isocynate which was cleared through erroneous applicason of SRO 6592007 dated 30
June 2007. The Holding Company has filed an appeal against the order which is in progress.

17.1.15 During the year, a special customs reference was filed by before the Honorable Sindh High Court
Karachi against order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in the
Hodding Company was dirceted to deposit an amount of R, 8.32 million and penalty of Es, (.50
million alleging that from July 2013 to June 2016 the Holding Company imponed two consignments
of Polvethylene lsocynates under PCT heading 3524, 9091 wherein custom duty charged @@ (%% instead
of 20%, The relference 15 under adjudication.

17.1.16  During the vear, a special customs reference way filed before the Honorable Sindh High Court Karachi
apainst order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in Company
was directed to deposit an amount of Rs, 22.52 million and penalty of Rs, (00530 million alleging that
from Fuly 2013 1o June 2006 the Company imported two consignments of Palyethylene Tsocynates
under PCT heading 3824,909] wherein custom duty chareed (@ 0% instead of 20%. The reference is
under adjudication,

17.1.17 During the year. the Holding Company recéived & show cause notice from Collector of Customs dated
05 Aprd 2019 and respective order dated 17 October 2149 m which the Holding Company was
directed. to deposit an amount of Rs. 942 million for the consignment of Polymethylene
polyphenylene isocynate which was ¢leared through erroneous applicaion of SRO 6392007 dated 30
June 2007. The Holding Company has filed an appeal against the order which is progress.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management believes that
the Holding Company has sirong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability s expected o
accrue, Accordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of certain cases of the Holding
Comparny) has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

172 Commitments - Holding Company

17.2.1  Commitments, for the mmpor of stock in trade, oulstanding at yvenr end were for Rs. 31939 million
(2018: Rs. 247.88 million).

17.2.2 Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irevocable letters of credit outstanding at year end were
for Rs. 1.09 million (2018: Rs. 14.33 million).

2019 2018
Property, plant and equipment Note (Rupees in "0}
Operating fixed assets ol 5,084,452 4. 721,191
Ripht of use assets 181 574009 -
Capital work-in-progress 182 46,204 33,507

5,7 i 4,754,698
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15.1.1

18.1.2

15.1.3

18.1.4

15.2

Annual Report 2019

Had there been no revaluation of the freehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery therin, the net book
value as of 31 December 2009 would have been as follows:

Land
Buildings
Plant and Machinery

9 2018
{(Hupees in "000)
2,364,500 2364 500
456,243 SOTIST
1,433,154 -
4,253,897 ltﬂ?] IH&‘:‘

The |atest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2019 by Asif Associates (Private) Limited. As per the
revaluation report, forced =ale value of freehold land, buildings on free hold land and plant and machinery was Rs,
2128 million, Re 34470 and Rs. 1.433.95 million respectively.

Particulars of immovable propenty (L, land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Total area Covered area
Locati U I iy abl ert
e G i srinst ol (Kanals) {Square Feet)
G-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.  Head Office and manofacturing
facility 6190 340,154
Dhina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serm Cheenba,

Tehsil Parok:. District Kasur. Muanufacmring facility E45 18065
335- Shahrah=e-Fatima Jinnah Lahore Shop .14 754
Ground floar, Marhaba Center Opposite  Shop .36 1,943
Muhammad bin Qozim Park, Taluka and
distnet Sukkar
Ground floor, AL- AMNA Complex, Shop 017 013
Ciwvil Lines Hyderahad
Land no 23A, Block-6, PECHS Shop .32 1,717
Karachi
Plot Mo 34 and 35, 5adar Bazar ahop (k0 350
Karachi
Shop Bearing survey no 13, Sadar Shop .47 TATS
Bazar quarters Karachi

2019 2018
Note (Rupees in "000)
Depreciation fior the vear has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 2l 134,887 108,080
Marketing, selling and distribution costs a7 144,737 47217
Administrative expenscs 23 44,502 38,532

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at 01 Jamgary
Additions during the year
Transfers during the vear
Balanee as at 31 December

Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:

- Building

- Plant and machinery

- Eleciric mstallation

= Advance against parchase of land

329,126

193 829

—_— RIS DN

13,507 6,363
266,959 128,853
{254,262) (181,709)
46,204 33,507
4,851 3770
15,845 18,400
5,508 1.155

: 10,182
46,204 33,507
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2019 Hii%
Newet (Rupees in 008}
19 Iniangible assets and goodwill
Softuare 47906 36678
Groodwill LOT02 G L 00 2
Brand valae LSRL 14T 1. SR2. 147
Customer relatonships 145,915 ITh.654
%] L9d6,274 2 DS 00
191 Reconciliation of carrying amounis
Deseription Soltware Goodwill Brand valne ;;:::‘;: : Total
{Rupees in “(HH1}
Lt
Batimoe at (k] Janaury 20018 44, Th1 Tk 20H 1,542,147 AT T 3,34, K83
Additions during the year 426 - - - 18426
Balunce ns at 31 December 2018 TH IET L2006 1,582,147 3L TR 3.053. 308
Audlatios dirimg the yer 211 e - . 21001
Balance at 31 December 2019 B0 198 170 206 1542147 311 Te0 3074320
Avenniilored wmoriieation amd
Inipiringin forres
Balance at 01 January 2018 (31.045) - - {13,376) (46.421)
Aimortisiteon bor the year Ik - - {0, T (41,198}
Balance a1 31 December 2018 (41,509 - - {46 11 (HTLG1)
Amortisaeon for the year {653 - - {30,734 (A2 T)
Halunce ol 31 December 2014 {51,202} - . {76,844 {128.046)
Carrying amounms:
At 31 December 20018 G TH 1LOTa206 1.582,147 27665 L0656
At 31 December 2009 47, 5% 1070, 206 1,582,147 145,918 L046,274
Rates of smortieation S=10 yenrs il il LS years

192 Goedwill and other intangible assets acquired ln business combination

Effective 01 July 2017, Waves Simer Pakistan Linnted {"the Compuny™) completed u Scheme of Armengement” == apprives) by the
Honorabde Samth High Court theough its Order dated 22 Moy 2018 for the amalamation of Cool Indiesdnes {Private) Limided [C1FL)
and Lmk Wel {Privite) Limited [LWFL] with and mte the Company and demerger of retail busimess: from the Company and
amalgumate the same mio the subsidiory, The excess umount paid over the fair vahse of the net ossetz of CIPL and LWTPL on its
acquisition as of the starf of busmess on O July 2017 represents goodwill. The far valustion exescise of the recorded tangible assets
and labilities was completed at the time of acqusinon resulhng m recopnition of provisional goodwill amounbng to Bs: 297502
millicn which. after completion of exercise for determination of separntely idennfiasble assets, has been allocnted w ‘CGoodwill’
amaunting io B 007021 million, 'Brand valve’ omeunting to Bs. 1538205 million and 'Costomers relations’ amounting to Bs. 3277
millicn inling with the requirements of Intermational Accouniing Standard 35, {LAS-38) “Intangible Asses”

; ; 3
The recoverable amount of poodwill including intanpibie assets (brand value and customer relationships) acquired through a bukiness
combination kas been tested for mapaimmen: a3 at 31 December 2009 by allocating the amoum of goodwill and intangible assets fo
respective asscts on which it arose, kased on value in wse m accordance with EAS 36 "Impairment of Assets® The recoverable amoant
was calonlated on the basis of five years business plan approved by the Board of Directors which ivcledes a comprebensive analyses of
cxisting operational deployments of the Company along with steategic: business plans and business growdi The walos in use
calentations are based on cash flow projections. derived from afosessld bustnvess plan, whach have been extrapolated beyond five years,
by wming o siesdy 30000 growih rte; The cash flows are discounted uskng a discouni mie of 13.31% (goadwill) amd 5200
{miangibles | for use tn caleulntion of value in use which is sensitive o dizcount rate and local inflation mies. Based on this caleulation
- impirment 15 neguited b be sccounted For against the carryng amsount of goodwill and other intingible assets.

2009 2018
9.3 Amortisateon for the vear las been allocated as fiollows: Noe {Rupees in "I}
Murketing, seliing and distribation costs ¥ i 0,734 8276
Admimdstrative axpendes 26 LA 1S

0427 3155
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R L 2018
I Long term depasits Naie (Rupess Ln 000
Dhepainy
- Jeanes 5373 2758
- olfier bong term deposis 21,0015 20,883
L6348 2363T
1 Siock-in-trade
Reve amad packing munieriol
- i stiwres (m hond b T 637,537
« 1 honded warchouse 240 A8 ART ML N54
« i il % BIFATH
1,704, 751 1,615,010
‘Wark in process 112,851 164,841
Fimished goods
= fwm s fciured Z1.2 LOZE 119 LO76, 713
- purchased far résale TAT.611 262,005
LTG5, T30 EI3ETIE
Prowvision for slow moving and damagesd stock {29 H6E) ({20 R68)
ir3 3,653,464 1091, 701

LD Ssock amcamieng v Be, 22490 mellion (2008 Ra. 65635 mellion) was cleared subseguen o the year ¢nd.

2.2 Fmished goods having cost of Rs Nil millicn (2018: ®x. 424,16 millica) have been writlen down by Rs: Mil million (2400 8 Bs. 554 milbea)
tor its et pealizabbe valoe

1.3 Finished goods having cost of Bs. 49828 million (2018 Rs Mil million) were pledged agains fnancinl facility obtained as veferred in note

154
P 2 &
12 Trude debis Note (Rupees in "}
251 Retall network - nnsecured
Congidered gond
Hire purchase
= Retai] Ly T80 756
« Irssticutional {emplovess of the carparale antifies) [l 124,007
Oithers 4,000 -
12680 413,763
Unerned camyaiig charpes 224 {128, 124) (53, B3R
g ¥1d.565 #al, 125
Comsidered doubtful 457,451 240,544
LATZ006 I, L%
Loss pllownnce ngains trade delbis 223 {45T.451) (230544,
Fi4,565 R60, 123
Less : Long teren portlon of irade debis 225 {12,493
Current partion of trade debis WL B0, 125
211 Whalesale - umsecured
Bealery
Considered good 3,344,553 386,354
Comsidered doubtfal AT HIT 33,8l
369370 TA20, 17
Loss allowance agains made dibas 213 (34T H1T) (33,021
3,344,553 1.38R358
253 Movement [n loss allowanee against trade debis
Balamee a5 a1 0] Jamary 274,365 3T
Effect of mithil application of TFRS-% {12 i3, HHH -
Laoss allowance for the year - 10,388
Latgs allowance reversed diring the vear A {133,165} -
Balance a5 a1 3] Decomber HIS, 188 274,365

114 Hepresents unesrnad carryimg charges an the cuistanding bolance of sabes under the hire purchase srvangements. Earmed carryimg charges for
thie yiar amoured to B 19706 mullion (2015 Bs. 15768 million),

125 The remaining nstalmend period of above rade debis are generally for a period ranging from thres momibs o twenty four months- carming
interest rates Taoging berseen 6% in 314%
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23 Advances, deposits, prepavments and other receivables

2019 2018
Note {Rupees in "000)
Advarces - considered pood
- Employees and executives 23.1 12,330 6,527
- Suppliers 4,966 5,054
- Expense to store - 5,977
- Against letter of credit 52,180 4,107
T4476 21,665
Dheposits
- Shops and leases 29,026 24312
- Customs - 5.761
- (ihers - 621
29,0246 A0 644
Prepayments 8,159 9,711
(her recervahies
- Claims 232 2,642 12,201
- Bales tax refundable 33,585 B7.060
36,227 99,261
Loss allowances against other receivables 23.3 (2,342} (11,572)
234 145.546 149,759

23.1 At 3] December 2019, the advances due from cxecutives amounted to Bs. (057 million (2018; Rs.0.12
million). The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from executives at the end of any month
during the year was Rs.0L57 million (201 8: Bz, 0.29 mallion),

23.2  This represents claims receivable from insurance companies, suppliers and product claims anounting
to Rs. 2.64 million (Z018: Rs. 12.20 million) against which provision of Bs. 2,34 million (2018 Rs.
11,57 million) is held.

2019 2008
{Rupees in ")
3.3 Movement in loss allowance against other receivables
Balance as at 01 January 11,572 1,572
Loss allowance [or the year - =
Reversal of loss allowance (9.230) =
Balance as al 31 December 2,342 l a7

3.4  All the above balances are interest free and unscoured,
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24

25

16

Cash and bank balances

Balances with banks
- i current accounts

- in profit and loss sharing account

Cash in hand

Annual Report Z019

2019 2018
Note {Rupees in "000)
4.7 137,823 47808
242 - 40,349
137,823 BB.157
243 25,746 17.090
163,569 105247

24.1 These melude bank account of Rs. 0.31 million (20018 Rs. 0.31) mamtained under Shariah

compliant arrangement.

24.2 Rate of return on saving accounts is Mil (2008: ranged from 3.5% to 5%) per annum.

4.3 This includes cash in transit of Bz, Nil million (2008: Rs. 9.25 million).

Net revenue

Sales

- local

- BXPOTE
Sales return

Sales tax
Trade disconnt

2019

2018

{Rupees in '000)

11,795,618 10,284,933
18,160 14,186
(153,512) {30.209)
11,660,266 10,268,910
(1,190,362) (972,008)
(985,930) (780,886)
(2,176,292) (1,752,8094)
9,483,974 8,516,016

25.1 Revenue from contracts with costomers relates to both Jocal (Pakistan) and foreign (Afghanistan)
markets and represents sale of domestic consumer products.

Cost of sales

Ooening stock - finished goods

- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

Purchases
Cost of goods manufactured

Closing stock - finished goods

= own manufactured
- purchased [or resale

Less: Export rebate

2009 2018
Nore {Rupees in "000)
1,076,713 1,058 505
262,004 192,055
1.338.717 1,250,560
1,616,031 1,425,517
264 5065584 4. 9(0) 84
£,620.332 7,576,881
(1028119 (1076713}
(737.611) {262,004)
(1,765.730) (1338717
- {34)
6,854,602 6238110
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27

26.1

26.1.1

Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials and stores consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Fuel and power

Freight churges

Insurance expense

Repairs and maimtenance

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Commuiication

Entertainment

Work-im-process

Cipening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

NMate

i I O
i8.1.4

Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
(Rupees in "000)

5 018,674 4,110,226
371,963 383,298
134,887 108,080

88,223 67,215
49,197 116,299
7.636 18,433
22,740 JZA1T
15,248 16,183
3,562 3,408
- 46,736
446 BR6
518 T8

713,59 4,903,699

164,841 161,946

{212,851) {164,841}
(48,010) (2.893)

5,005,584 4, 5HM)

These include reversal / provision of Ra. (7.63) million (2018; Rs 284 million), Rs. (8.52) million
(201%; R, 184 million) and Ks. 10.26 million (2018: Rs, 451 million} in respect of gratuity, pension

and provident funds respectively.

Marketing, selling and distribution costs

Salaries and benefits

Rent, rates and taxes

Publicity and sales promotion

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Warrunty obligations

Freight charges

Liilities

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Amortisation of intangible assets
Communication

Repair and mamtenance
Training and sundres

Insurance expense

Oithers

Py A

Nate

L

(814

19.3

2019 2018

{Ruopees in "000)
405,919 447070
52,740 156,296
120651 191 442
144,737 47217
67,964 67,940
27678 30,028
B.154 10,940
48313 37,374
30,74 38,276
5,835 O824
5174 1.145
- 2004
4,037 2,547
2,670 1.934
927,606 1,045,245

These include reversal | provision of Rs. (2.94) million (201%: Rs. 523 million), Rs. (3.28) million
(2018 Rz, 1.55 million) and Rs. 4.95 million (2018; Rs. 4.47 mullion) in respect of gramity, pension

and provident funds respectively,
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2019 2018
28 Administrative expenses Note (Rupees in "(400)

Salaries and benefits 281 280,766 214,385
Legal and professional charges 31848 46,827
Aunditors’ remuneration 283 5,104 4,590
Depreciation on property, plant ind equipnient 1814 49,502 38,532
Communication 16,345 10,464
Travelling and conveyance 17,889 14,012
Repair and maintenance 4,782 5987
Litilities 13,607 EE1D
Pronting and stationery 9,200 ROT6
Rent, rates and 1axes 8.285 7441
Insurance expense 13,953 8.7
Entertainment expense 3670 3,147
Fees and subscriplion 5,003 RliT
Amuortisation of intangible assets 1e3 9,693 [.909
Charity and donations 6.2 a6l 470
Others 4.503 2642

475,410 37798

28.1  These include reversal / provision of Rs. (1.17) million {201%: Bs. 2.4 million), Bs. {1.31) million (20018:
Rs. 1.55 million) and Bs. 3.53 million (2008:; Rs. 1.87 mllion) in respect of grafmity, pension and
provident funds respectively.

8.2  Noneof the donations were made 1o an entity in which any director or his / her spouse had an interest.

2019 20K
(Rupees in "00H))
283 Auditors’ remuneration
Aundit fee 1750 2500
Audit fee for the financial statementz of subgidiary companics 840 B
Fee for the review of interim financial information 424 3H5
Fee for the réview of code of corporate povernance and
other certifications! reports under agreed upon procedurcs 352 320
Out of pocket expenses 73R 545
5,104 4 500
29 Other expenses Note
Provision for doubtful debis and others assets - net 22534233 - [,388
Workers' profits participation fumd (WEPE) I3.3 32,313 27,351
Exchange loss - net 33,796 44,459
Research and development expenditure 4097 3,637
ljarah rentals - [ 447
Workers' welfare fund 9,243 9118
Lais on property, plant and equipment and equipment
= due to fire - 6238
= due o disposal - 3,550
(ther expenses 5,799 -

B5.248 108,768
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2019 2018
I Other income Note (Rupees in "000)
Income from financial ax
Prafit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance 4 46
Income from non-financial instruments
Crain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment- net 1.940 -
Service income and others - 63749
Reversal of loss allowance against trade debis 133,065 =
Liabilities no longer payable written back 8,062 21,134
Scrap sales 7,107 3,408
Amaortisation of deferred mcome 12 6117 6,322
Others - 70
157,291 37.313
157,205 37359
31 Finance costs
Islamtic mode of financing
- Short term bomowings 49,507 25420
Inferest f mark-up o fntevest S mark-up based loans
- Long term loans 183,524 #3.865
- Shaort term bormowings 546,091 273,932
- Lease liabilities 62,229 6,825
Interest on employes retention monesy - 4. 260
Interest on workers' profits participation. fund - 498
Bank charges 26,499 35,703
867,850 430,503
32 Taxation
Current:
- fior the vecar 32t 146,349 [07.452
= pFIOr Vear - (5.649)
Deferred for the year il 96,960 26,629

243,309 128,432
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33

32.1 Represents the tax charge under the final tax regime and "™Minimum Tax on Tumnover’ under section
113 of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 {201%: normal tax regime) under Group taxation as the
Holding Company has opted for Group taxation.

2.2  Tax charge reconciliation
Mumerical reconciliation betwesn tax expense and accounting profit;

2019 2018
(Hupees in "0y

Profit before tax 621,609 510,507

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2018: 29%) 180,267 148,047

Tax effect of permanent differences:

- In respect of differential under normal tax and final tax regime (17.604) 1040
- Other permanent differences (163) (136)
Tax credit - (41,742)
Change in tax rate 55.188 (56,519
Prior year tax charge - G662
Super tax - 11,493
Others 25,611 5,587
243,309 128432

323  In prior years, the Company has not recorded provision for minimum tax under the Income Tax
Ordinance, 20011 (Ordinance) amounting to Rs. 44.60 million and Rs. 15.10 million in respect of year
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2015 respectively as the management expects to-adjust
the same against its future tax liability under the normal tax regune within the time himit as specified
for adjustments of minimum tax m the Ordinance. Similarly for the vear ended 31 December 20016,
provision for Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) (being higher than the minimum tax) amounting to Rs.
23.07 has also not been recorded on the same basis,

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The calculation of earnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on eamings attributable to the owners of
ordinary shares of the Group.

Mo figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any instruments
carrying options which would have an impact on éamings per share when exercised,

Group's eamings per share have been caleulated as follows:

2019 2008
(Restated)
Profit for the year Rupees in "G00 378,300 IR2.075
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Shares 187,604 187,604

Earmnings per share - basic and diluted Rupees 202 204
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40 Financial instruments

The Group’s Board of Directors ("the Board™) has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk management framework, The Board has developed a nisk policy that sets out fundamentals of nsk
management framework. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial Instruments:

= Credit risk
- Ligquidity risk
= Market risk

This note preseats information about the Group’s exposure to eachi of the above risks, the Group®s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital,

41 Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the nsk that the counterparty to # financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
Ciroup by failing to discharge an obligation.

40.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from trude debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and bank
balances.

The carmmying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure, The maximum exposure
to credit risk before any credit enhancements at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

2019 2018
(Rupees in "000)
Security deposits 85,414 48,570
Trade debis 4,246,625 3,246,483
Other receivables 1111} 629
Balances with banks 137,823 88,157
4,440,162 3,383,839

40.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk ansed when a number of counter parlies are engaped in aimilar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation
to be similarly effected by the changes in econemic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance for developments affecting a particular
indfustry, Maximum exposure to credit sk by type of counterparty is a5 follows:

Met receivahle

(met of provisions})
2019 2018
{Rupees in "MKy

Trode debis

- Retail 902,072 B0, 125
- Wholesale 3,344,553 2,386,358
Security degasits

- individuals s0.041 45 536
- lease 5373 3.034
Insurance company (claims) 2.042 12,201
Banks 137,823 BB 157

4,442,504 3395411
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4013 Credit quality and Impatrment

Credit quality of financeal azse1s is assesaed by peference fo exiernal credin ratinge, where aeailable, or historical inforeanion abous
the countarparty defaolt mtes; All counterporties, with the excoption of customers, bave extemal credit ratings dedermined by
various credit rating apencies: and ofher regulatory authonties. Credit qualiny of customer 15 assessed by reference to histarical
dedauli rates and present ages.

AL Al Cansrmterpariies with exiernal credit ratings

These mclude bankimg compames and Ananceal mstiunons, which sre counterparties 1o bank Salances and deposity, Credil sk s
copsidered minimal 4% these coutterpanies bave reasonsbly high éredit notmas as detérnaned by wigrons credil rating agencies,
st b stamcding business relitmnships wiih these counterpatties anad considermg (hetr strotg Goanedal stamding, managérmsn
diis - . @xpect 'I:Ii,lﬂ-Pf.'l'ﬁ'll'l'n.M;:l! by [hese coumierparties on thear obligatiens (o the Grup: Following are the credil. ratings of
courlerprries with external credit ratings:

Rating Shart Long 2019 20018
Hanks Apency ferm term (Rupees in "K0)
AlBaraka Bank (Pokistan) Timied TFACRA Al A LI a1
Allicd Bank Limited PACEA Al= AAA 10,299 5,625
Askan Bank Limiteed PACRA Al AAF 1.3 1968
Bunk Alfalah Timited PACRA Al- A 4.4 16k
Bank lzlami Pakistan Linaived PACEA Al At 1 i
The Bank of Khyber PACREA Al A 13,523 214
The Bank of Pugjab PACREA Al+ Ad A.8%4 1515
Crubn Islarmue Bank Limited R-VIS Al AA 53 163
Faysal Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al= AM 1,295 1328
Fimeie Micrafinanoe Bank Lansted JUR-VIS Al M 3,040 .
Habib Bank Limibad ICR-VIS Al= A 43,0406 40,452
Habab Metzopolian Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Ad- 236 28R
J5 Bank Limitesd PACRA Al A 4 4
MOCHB Bank Limined PACEA Al= AAA 4,028 Q9T
Meemn Bank JOR-VIS Al A 8 254
National Bank OF Pakistan PACREA Al+ AAN 42,459 1921
Silk Bank Lamibed ICR-Y15 Al Hie 303 393
Seneri Bank Limited PACRA Al AA- oHE 1046
Stanclard Chartered HBank {Pakisan) Limaed PACRA Al AAA 1111 211
Limited Bonk Limited ICR-VIS Al= AAA 1,300 T, Tl
137 823 28,147
Sevurrity Deposits
The Bank of Punjgalb PACRA Al= AA [ 283
Askart Bank [emited PACREA Al= A 2412 .
Sindh Leasing Company Limited JCR-VIS At Al 1,752 3752
5373 3034
143,196 9], 191

AL 3t Cognterpariies withent external credit rasings

These melude customers which are counter parties o trade debis. The Group's exposare o credit nsk 15 influenced mamly by the
mdivicdunl charereristice of each customer | dealers, As explained m note 4.1.2.3 and 4146, the Gromp applies the [FRS 2
simplified approach 1o mensure expected credit losses. The onabysiz of ages of tmde debis ood |oss sllowance using ihe
nlarementioned approach was detenmined o follows; -

2010 204

Carnss Tmpairmeni loss Ciroes Imparrmint boss

------- (Rupees o '000) ------- —= ===~ [Rupees in D} - - -----
Mot yet duoe 1807 638 14,888 LEL1ATY 2,997
Pat clise 1 - 30 days TU7.1949 14,276 E15.354 2aTI
st dloe 21 days = 90 days T20.393 26,854 LI 118 LRE S
Past due 91 - |80 dave 2037541 S, 134 36304 14,32]
Past doe 181 < 360 days TSR 2192 91,288 FALUR 5 1] 13,97
Past due-by more than 1 year 77880 547,745 8, 753 488155
Tstal i, THE 243 LR B o 530,705

The management has esmbhished o credit policy amder which each new customer s annbysed mdividuatly for credit wortbimess,

Mewe of the financal sesets of the Ciroup are secured o impatred excepl as those menfioned m these congolidated Anancaal stateménts, Deposns
aml other recevables are mosthy due from bamks and individuzls. Based on past expersence the management believes that no impaimment
allowance i8 mecessary in respect of these financial asseis. There are reasonable grounds o bebeve thal ihese amounis will be recovered |n shan
wonrie of Linme.
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403 Murket risk
Market risk is the nzk that changes i market price, such oz foreign cxchange rates; mterest rates and equity prices

will effect the Group'’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Gooup 15 exposed to coreency
risk and interest rate sk,

40,31 Currency risk
The Group 15 exposed to currency sk to the extent that there 15 a mismatch between the cumrencies i which sales
and purchases are denominated amd the respective functional currency of the Group: The funcuonal currency of the
Girourp 15 Pak Rupee, The currencies in which these transaciions are primarily dencminated are Euros and US dollars.

403, Ifa) Exposire to currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk on import of raw materials and merchandise denominated in TS
dollars. The Group's exposure to foreign curmency risk ar the reporting date is a8 follows:

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in "0}
Trade creditors (LS in "0y 850 2,150 133,274 3238
Trade creditors {Euro in "000) = 14 - 2227
([ siarem TR Ii]
Outstanding leticrs of eredis (L/ST) in (NN} 1056 1,782 J1B974 247876
Cutstanding letters of credit (Euro in 000} [ - 1.088 =
Following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Average rate Reporting date Spot rafe

1§ ) 2018 019 2008
USD o PKR 150,04} 121,62 155,15 R0
EUR 1o PER 168.02 14335 174.00 159.10

Sensitivity analysis

Al repotting date, if the PKR had arengthened by 10% against the US Dollar and Buro with all other variables held
constant, profit for the vear wonld have been lower by the amount shown below!, a5 a3 result of net foreign exchange
gain on translation of foreign curmency bills payables,

2019 2018
{Rupees in "0(H1)

Effect on statement of profit or luss 13327 30,547
L - ——1

The weakening of the PER by 10% agamst US Dollar would have had an equal bur-cpposite impact on the profif for
the year,

The sensitivity analysis prepared is nod necessanly indicative of the effecis on profit for the yvear and habilities of the
Caroup.

40.3.2 Interest rate risk
Interest raie risk is the sk that fair values or future cash flovws of & Gnancial instrument will Moectuate becanse of

changes in mterest rates. Sensitivity to nberest rate rsk anses from mismatch of financial sssets and financial
Liabilities that mature or re-price m & gaven penod
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40.3, 2y Fair valne sersitieity analysis for fived rafe instramenty

The Group docs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and lighilitics at fair value through statement of profit
of loss, Therelore a change in interest rate al the reporting date woald ned affect statement of profit or loss.

03270 Mismatch of interest rate sensitive financial assety and financial Babilities

The Group's interest /| mark-up and non-interest ¢ mark-up bearing hearing financial instruments as &t the reporting
dute are s follows:

019
Carrying Interest bearing / MNon-interest
amouni variable bearing / fixed
rate financial rate financial
instromenis instroments

(Rupees in "0040)
Fimancial assets

Security deposits 55414 - 55414
Trade debts 4. 140,615 - 4,246,625
{Other recervables 300 - i}
Cush and bank balances 163,569 - 163,569
4465508 - 4,465,908
Financial labilities
Long term loans - secured (1,732,271} (1.732.271) -
Lense liabilitics (565,126) (565,226) =
Employee retirement benefit (41,211) - (41.211)
Trade and other payahles (1 A490,828) - {LAMLR2IR)
Mark-up accrued on borrowings {216,566) . {216,566)
Short term borrowings = secured and unsecured i4.113,581) (4,113,581} -
i8,159,683) (6,411,078} {1,748.605)
{3.693,775) {6.,411,07H) 2.717.303
2018
Carrying Interest bearing / Noa-imlerest
amount variahle bearing
rate financial fimancial
nstnEmenis Insrumenis
Financial asses (Rupees in D) ————————eeee .-
Secunty. deposits #3570 - 48,570
Trade debis 3,246,453 - 31246483
Caber receivables 629 . 629
Cash and bank balancs 105247 40,345 fd BOE
3400 520 40345 3.360.580
Finmancial liabilities
Long term oins - secured (L013,521) (1.013,521)
Leaze liakdlities (05,528 (65.528) -
Employee retirement beneltl (6l,823) - {61 B23)
Trade and other payables (1,577 876) (88.623) {1,489 253)
Mark-tep accrued on borrowings (97 338) - {97 338)
Short term horowings - secured and unsecured (2995 TR (2,095 286) -
(3,811,372) (4. 162,958) (1.648.414)

(2.410,443) (4,122 60%) 1,712,166
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40.3.2.1 Effective interest { mark-up rates for the financial asses and financial liabilities are as follows:

2019 2018
Percentage
Financial lahilities
Long term loans - secured 12.60% Lo 16.86% 9:16% 1o 13.40%
Lease liabilities L0 to 17.09% BA3% to 14.07%
Short term bormmowings - secured and unsecured 10.56% to 18.54% T.66% to 12.94%

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
(decreased) profit for the year by Rs. 61.33 mullion (2017: Rs, 40,34 million}, This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign curreéncy rates, remain constant, The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018,

40.3.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial mstrument will
Muctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate nisk or
currency risk). At reporting date the Group did not have financial instruments exposed 1o ather price
risk.

40.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a Hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without
any mtention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to underfake a
transaction on adverse temms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are
based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The guoted market
prices used for financial assets held by the Group is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Messurements' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements,
The fair value higrarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2),

«  Unobservable mputs for the asset.or liability (level 3).
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41  Capital risk management
The Group's ehjectives when managing capital are:

a) tio safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a poing concern, so that it can continue to provide retums
for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

i3] to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure o the comtext of cconomic conditions and the nsk
characteristics of the underlving assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital strocture, the Group
miay, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio calculated as total debt
(current and non-current bormowings ) o debt plus equity,

The debt to equity ratios were as follows: 2019 KB
(Rupees in "000)

Total debn 5,845 852 4008 507

Total equity and debt 14,185,851 12,397,932

Debi to equity ratio 41% 32%

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
42  Subsequent event - Impact of COVID-12

Subsequent to the year end, om Il March 2020, the World Health Orpanization declared the Coronavirns
(COVID-19} outbreak to be a pandemic in recognition of s rapid spread across the globe. The potential
impacts from COVID-1% rematn uncertain, meluding, among other things, on cconomic conditions, busingsses
and consumers. Many governmeents are taking increasingly stingent steps to help contain or delay the spread of
the wirus including orders 1o close all businesses oot decmed essentinl, Iockdowns, travel restrictions and
practice social distancing when engaging in essential activities. Like other countries, the Government of
Pakistan also imposed lockdown effective 24 March 2020 to slow the spread of vings that has been continuously
reviewed based on economic conditions, The Group has been allowed to resume operations under strict
standard operating procedures with efféct from 11 May 2020

Governments and regulators in Pakistan have taken different operational and financial measures sa that the
temporary lockdowns required fo slow the spread of the virus does not disrupt the economy permanently. In
context of financial reporting and areas which may impact the financial statements and offer businesses to
manage operational lquidity, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) have provided guidance and offered companies regulatory reliefs, SECP, among other measures
related to financial réporting, through circular 6 and 10 of 2020, provided relaxation from certain provisions of
Companies Act including birt not limited to general retaxation in holding of annual peneral meeting and fillmg
of statutory returns for Companies having vear end of 31 December 2009, SBP, among other measures, through
BPRD circolar fetter no 13 of 2020 provided comimon relief to borrowers and  allowed banks/financial
institutions to defer the repayment of principal loan on Gnancing facilities availed for one vear on wrilten
request, The Holding Company has obtained this repulatory relief on itz financing facilities (hoth long and short
term) to manage s operational liquidity, Smilarly the Holding Company has also obtained financing for
payments of salaries to employees in respect of relief granted by SBP
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Dus to lockdown, the Group anticipates slower consumer demand, constrained supply and reduced economic
activity and conzequently have taken various financial measures (as refemred Lo above) to manage operational
liquidity as a result of business dismuption caused. However, the extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the
operational and financial performance of the Group will depend on certain future developments, including,
among others, the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, public health developments, lockdown
measures taken by Federal and Prowincial Governmenls in response to the pandemic and iis impacls on
economic and business activity, all of whach are uncertain. The Group could experience matenal impacts due 1o
COVID-19 on the carrying value of 5 assets and habilities, including,: but not hmited to, valuaton of
intangibles, trade debtors, retirement plans and deferred taxation but for the Group’s 31 December 2019
finarcial statements, the Coronavirus outbreak and the related impacts are considered non-adjusting events.
Consequently, there is no impact on the recognifion and measurement of assets and liabilities. Due to the
uncertainty of the outcome of the current events including the duration and impact, the Group cannot reasonably
estimate the impact these events will have on the Group’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows
in the future.

43  Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-armanged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison
and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been made,

44  Dare of authorization of issue

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 08 June 2020,

Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan Madeem M. Butt
Director Chief Execotive Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated linancial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
(“the Company™), which cemprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us; the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows topether with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 201 7). in the manner so required and réspectively givea true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the profit, the
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basix for Opinion

We conducted pur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor 5 Responsibilities
Jfor the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of eur report. We are mdependent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. m our professional judgment, were of most sigmficance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,




WEPL StandAlone FE 2019

Following are the Key audit matters:

Annual Report 2019

5. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Impairment of intangible assets Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
R the following:
efer to note 4.3, 19 and 44 to the
unconsolidated financial statements. = Assessing the appropnateness of the
The Company amually tss the caring | (ontOnYS seeouning iy o
value of goodwill and intangible assets. grggdawiil S mmgl;iana:c Sﬁh&: policy with
The testing s subject to estimates and ol iabls a-:mﬂnﬂng and  reportin
Judgments made by the management of sfaﬂldﬂrds‘ g
the Company with respect to future sales h
growth and profitability, cash flow | = discussing with  the  Company’s
projection and selection of appropriate management key assumptions used in
discount rate. valuation model and testing  the
We identified the impairment testing of ?Em@ﬂtlm E_mmcy ﬂ“htf mﬂdﬂ"_ -
separately identifiable intangible assets | * Involving our internal ‘r'“l"ﬂl}ljﬂn EF‘?“'F]'ETE
i ; to assist us in assessing the sipnificant
;';g 5“‘3‘*““"1. a:r;' : :ﬁw jud“ matte; estimates, assumptions and judgements
e | rabEl o WERe s L od applied in the valuation of intangible assets
management judgement 1s involved in and goodwill, including discount rate.
making the above assessment and in growth rate, terminal value and atrition
forecasting the future cash flows of the rate, with reference to available market
Company which are inherently uncertain. information;

+ comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized
to identify impairment, if any: and

+ assessing the adeguacy of disclosure made
in the unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting and  reporting
standards.

2. Sales O audit procedures, amongst others, included

Refer o note 4.1.1, 4.14 and 27 1o the
unconselidated financial statements.

The Company principally generates
revenue  from  manufacturing  and
assembly  of  domestic  consumer
appliances  along-with retailing and
trading of the same.

We identified revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because it is one of the
key performance indicator of the
Company and gives rise to a risk that
TEVenie is recognized without
transferring of control.

the following:

* phtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording of sales and testing the
design, implemeniation and operating
effectiveness of relevant Key internal
controfs;

+ assessing the appropriateness of the
Company’s  aceounting  policy  for
recording of sales and compliance of the
policy with applicable accounting and
reporting standards;

= comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlyving documents;

= comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded near the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans
and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the sale was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period;

= inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to year end
to evaluate whether the adjustments to sales
had been accurately recorded in the
appropriaie accounting period; and
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5. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

= scanning for any manual journal entries
relating to sales recorded duning and mear
the year end which were considered to be
miaterial or mel other specific risk based
criteria-  for  inspecting underlving
documentation.

3. Revaluation of property, plant and | Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
equipment the following:
Refer notes 4.2, 7, I8 and 44 to the | « obtaining and inspecting the valuation
unconsolidated financial statements. reports prepared by the external expert

: : engaged by the Company and on which the
model  for s.ubwquent measurement of of property., p.];mt and equ}pmem was based:

L, U gk duct pleat and InELRCE (1 evaluating the information provided by the

Company to the external professional valuer
Latest revaluation was carried out on 11 by inspeciing the relevant underlying

December 2019, The wvaluation was documentation;

performed by an external professional | » involving property, plant and equipment
valuer engaged by the Company. valuation expert engaged by us 1o assist in
evaluuéinlg the appropriateness of valuatiﬁn
. . : methodology an Assessing the
We identified the revaluation of the |  pyconableness of key estimates and
Company’s property, plant and equipment | assumptions adopied in the valuations report
as a key audit matter because the by the valuer engaged by the Company; and

valuation involves a significant degree of | . yoseqqing the adequacy of the disclosures
judgment and estimation made in unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable  accounting and  reporting

standards.
4. Valuation of trade debts Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
Refer notes 4.1.2, 4.18, 24 and 44 to the | "¢ following:
unconsolidated financial statements. = reviewing the methodology developed and

. lied by the management to estimate the
As at 31 December 2019, the C::r‘r;npan};s- ﬁﬁ in re?luiinn to tmﬁ debts, evaluating the
gross trade debts amount to Rs. 3,406,79 key assumptions used (historical and
million, The Company has adopted | ¢ o4 looking), the policies applied to
[FRS-9 Financial Instruments” effective assess ECL in respect of trade debts and
01 January 2019 and has elected to Tz pe

) testing the mathematical accuracy of the
measure loss allowance for trade debts : i
using the simplified appro&ch. ECL model by re-performing calculations

on test basis;
IFRS 9 requires the Company to make | , . . o :
provision for financial assets (trade debts) ORIV S SpCAALES g MAaRES WIS e

: e . model  and  significant  estimates,
using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) ; : : :
approach as against the Ineurred Loss assumptions and judgments applied in

Model previously applied by the developing ECL,;
Company. + assessing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of

Determination of ECL provision for trade the dal_;a used for ECL computation; and
debts requires significant judgement and | « assessing the adequacy of disclosure made

assumptions including consideration of in the unconsolidated financial statements in
factors such as historical credit loss accordance ‘with the reguirements of the
experience and forward-looking applicable accounting and reporting
macroeconomic information. standards.

T jon (hher than the Financial Statements and Auditor's R hereon

Management 15 responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the mformation
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019, but does not include the unconsolidated
and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the unconsohidated financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the
other information and, i doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial staterments pr our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statéments in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 20017(XIX of 2017} and for such mternal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Chur objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free rom material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
imdividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users laken on the basis of these unconsalidated Onancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» [ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror; as
fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omussions, misrepresentations; or the overnde of
internal control.

» Ubtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concermn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
madequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtammed up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
iransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, ong other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies n internal conirol that we

identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the andit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opimion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 201 7{XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profil or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are 1n
agreement with the books of sccount and retums;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the vear were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d} zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980} was deducted
by the Company and deposited subsequent to the year end n the Central Zakat Fund established under
gection 7 of that Ordinance,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent anditor's report is Mr. Bilal Ali.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Date: 08 June 20210

Moazram A. Khan Haroon A. Khan MNadeem M., Batt
Director Chief Exgcutive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

As alf 31 December 2009 2019 2018
ASSETS Naie —— (Rupecs o "00) —
Non-current axsefy
Property, plant and equipment 15 4969474 4,316,040
Intimgible assets and poodwill 1o 2,937,561 2.6E0,03]
Investment propery 20 220,500 178,300
Invesiment in subsidiaries 21 507,000 573,769
Employee relitement benefits i 3388 0.%ai
Long term deposits 22 B.561 4,179
8,640,484 7978279
Crrreni assety
Stores, spares and loose twols JT,TOR 31,035
Stock-in-trade 23 2,940,985 2,991,310
Trade debis 24 3,139,794 1982771
Advances, deposils, prepaymenis
and other receivables ] 1,280,558 | 062,145
Taxation - net 451,547 430,001
Cash and bank balances 2d 116344 ), 60
8,066,936 6,607,922
16,707,420 14379201
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised capital 200,000,000 (2008: 175,000,000}

ordinary shares of Bs. 10 each 5 2. D 1.7 50 000
Issued, subscribed amnd paid-up capital 3 1876041 1631340
Share premium reserve i 4,581,063 4,825,764
Capital reserve 2000 5,000
Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 1815124 1,754,670
Surplus on revaluation of property,

plant amd equipment - net of tax i 406,712 158,523

B.6R3.940 8,375,299
i rr ilitier
Long term loans - secured & 1,417,271 T32,2T1
Lease liahilities o 179,820 42,454
Employee retirement benefits i 23,084 42 480
Deforred tax labality - net i 247943 15,628
Dreferred incoimne i2 15,575 21,224
1,883,697 R14.057
Trade and other pavables i3 1,404,203 1.683,930
Mark-up aceroed on borrowings id 216,566 87,338
Short term borrowings - seoured and unsecured 15 4,113,581 2995386
Unelaimed dividend - 1,325
Ulnpaid dividend 1457 1L.517
Current portion of long term liabilities i 403,976 3100, )
6,139,783 F089.345
Contingencies and commitments 17
16, 707420 14,379,201

Thie annexed notes | to 47 form an integral part of these wnconsolidated financial statements.

Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan MNadeem M. Butt
Director Chief Executive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the vear ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
MNate —-- (Rupees in "000) -~
Sales - net of sales return 1,069,010 B8535 804
Sales tax and trade discount on invoices (3. 250,604) (2,846 284)
Sales - net i 6,818,406 5989610
Cost of sales 28 (5,953.268) (5,438,753)
Cross profit B65,138 550,857
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 20 (288,824) {169.438)
Administrative expenses I (195,144) (125,613)
Cither cxpenscs 3l (146.728) (108,768)
Other income 3z 953,190 b6, 3
322,494 262,194
Profit from operations 1,187,632 R13051
Finance cost 33 (B26,298) (423 .474)
Profit before taxation 361,334 ARG 5TT
Taxation 24 (101,249) 63,062
Profit for the year 260,085 452,669
(Resrared)
Eamings per share - basic and diluted (Riupees) 35 1.39 241

The annexed notes 1 1047 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 20019

2014 2008
{Rupees in "000)

Profit for the year 260,085 452,669

Other comprehensive income

Ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or-loss:

- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 355,400
- Related deferred tax on surplus (100.866) =
Actuarial (loss) / gain on employee retirement benefits (2.070) 15.197
252,473 15,197
Total comprehensive income for the year 512,558 467,866

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,

Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan Nadeem M. Butt
Director Chief Executive Director Finance
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Urnconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
e the vea ended 37 Dieogmbay 2079

Morie e 2018
{Rapees In ')
e fTows i
Trafit before xnen 61,334 EL L
Az tmmenis for non-cosl items
Diepreceatsm o property, plant and equipmens 1804 17,19 157,750
Aamartisgibon of miangible asset 10 FEEL]] DA
Finmamos: cosis ii Hlh 20K 4356702
Mt loss on insuramce claim of fizsd as=zeds written affdse o fire - § EIE
Laoses of inventony due to fine . i 186,008
{iain) / lose oo sale of property, plant and oo pasen {1y 5250
Unirealised gain oo myvesiment propery ot fir valise - [ERaL]
Workers' Prafit Participation Fund 3233 1331
Imterest an Woskers' Profit Participation Fomd " L]
Morsisrtisateon of de fernnd ke {6,117} {6.221)
Liakitities no longer payable writen hack {9,002 ) (21,0340
Impairmendt of investmend in suhsidiane fil A0 .
Provision agnmst troibe debis and other reoeivahles - 10,188
Provision for eimploves retirensent benefite - per [24,350) HLZEL
Dividend incosne frony siibaidissy Company (Rl {540,000
Profit befsre working capital changes H31,00% 93,178
+ i gy due by w oha
{imereaset S deerians IR CUFYERT aviens
Stores, spares and looss tools {HET {8,017
Stock-in-trade 50,325 (431,771
Tradi debis {1.257,023) (128:128)
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited {formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)
Uneonsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (formerly Singer Pakistan Limited)

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 Decembior 20019

1 Status and nature of business

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited ("the Company") s incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ondinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public Company limited by shares and is guoted on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and assembly of
domesne consumer appliances along with retatling and trading of the same and other light engimeenng
products. The registered office of the Company 15 located at 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore,

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Company are located at:

- G-k M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore,
- Ding Math, Mouza Rakh Scrai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoka, District Kasur,

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Separate financial statements

These financial statements are he separate finangial statements of the Company e which
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the
basis of reported results and net assets of the investees. Consolidated financial statensenis of the

Company are prepared and presented separately.

The Company has the following long term investments:
2019 2008
(Direct holding percentage)

Name of subsidiary companies

- Waves Marketing (Private) Limated 100 100
- Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited 100 100
pE. Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated Anencial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The acommting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

~  Inmternational Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (LASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

~  Islamic’ Financial Accounting Standards (TFAS) issued by the Institte of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companics Act, 2017,

—  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007; and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed,
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2.3 Bazis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prépared under the historical cosl convention
except for land, buildings (including the nvestment property} and plant and machinery which are
stated at revalued amounts less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses as referred 1o in note
I8, recognition of leass lability and employee retirement benefits as referred to in note 19 and 10 a1
present value respectively,

14 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated finencial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which 1= also the
Company's functional and presentation curmrency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand,

3 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these onconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounling
standards reguires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies ‘and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expericnee and vamous other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of
assels and liabilities that areé not réadily apparent from other sonrces. Actual results may differ from these
estimales.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future penods if the revision affécts both current and future periods,

The argas where assumptions and estinates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where
jndgment was exercised in application of accounting policics are as follows:

Note
- Residual value, marketl values and useful lives of property, plant and squipment 4.2
- Useful lives of intangible assels 4.3
- Investiment proparty 4.5
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans 4.6

- Stock in trade and stores and spares and loose tools at net realisable

value / net of impairment losses 47845
- Valuation of investment in subsidiary Company 49
- Provisions 4.12
- Provision for warranty obligation 443
- Taxation 4.16
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 4.19
4 Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
unconsolidaled fnancial statements, except as disclosed innote 5.1,

4.1 Change in accounting policies

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers', IFRS 9 Financial
Instrumeents’ and TFRS 16 'Leases’ from 01 January 2019 which are effective from the perods
beginning on or after 01 July 2018, pericds ending on or after 30 June 2002 and periods beginning
om or after 01 January 2009 respectvely. Due o the transition methods chosen by the Company
applying these standards, comparative information throughout these unconsolidated financial
statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards, The details of new
significant accounting policies adopted and the natore and effect of the changes from previous
accounting policies are set out below;
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4.1.1 IFRS 15 'Revenie from Contracts with Customers'

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods
or services. Determining the timing of the transfér of control at a point in time or over fime requires
judgment, The Company is engaged in the sale of domestic consumer appliances. The contracts
with customers for the sale of goods generally includes single performance obligation, Management
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognized at the pomnt in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer. The aboye is generally consistent with the timing and
amounts of revenue the Company recognized in accordance with the previous standard, 1AS 15,
Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which has replaced 1AS 18 Revenue; TAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations at 01 July 2018, did not have a material impact on the amounts
of revenue recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements.

Upon adoption of IFRS 15 amounts received for fulure sale ol poods were reclassified to 'conlrict
liabilities'. Previously. these amounts were classified as "advances from customers™

Impact on financial statements

Asoat 01 Januwary 2009, contract liabilities were increased by Rs. 11.37 million and advance from
dealers decreased by the same amount.

4,1.2 IFES 9 Financial Insiruments

IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of [AS 39 ' Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'
that relates to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. The details of new significant accounting policies adopted and the nature and the eiTect
of the changes to the previous accounting policies are set out below:

d .20 Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial Fabilitfes

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in [AS 39 for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous [AS 39 categories for the [inancial assets of
held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRES 9, on mitial recognition,
the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at Fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income
{"FVOCI™) or through statement of profit or loss ("FVTPL"); and

- Those to be measured at amartized cost,

The classification depends upon entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash fows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the unconsolidated
statemnent of profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the fime of initial recognition to account for the aquity investment at FVOCL Dividend
income 15 recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the above had no
effect on the unconsolidated financial statements as the Company has no investments at the
reporting date. The Company’s accounting policy relating to financial insiruments is explained m
notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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£.1.2.2  Tmpact of change in classification and measurement of financial assets due to adoption of IFRSY

The following table explains the original measurement categories under 1AS 39 and the new
measurement categories under [FRS 9 for each class of the Company's financial assets at 01 January

2019;

Original New Oiriginal MNew carmying

Financial Azsets classification classification  carrying amount  amount under

under 1AS 19 under [FRS & urder 1AS 29 IFRS Y

Rupees (00} Rupees (01

Securdy deposits Loang and recenakle Acimartizad cost 33012 33012
Trade debis - unsecured. considered  Loans and recenable Amartieed cosl 1882771 1982771
(her recenvables Loans and recenvable Amortied cost 18,728 18.72%
ash and bank balinces Loans and receivahle Amortized cost G0 LLEEE T

There is no change in the carrving amount of financial assets and financial liabilities at the initial
recognition date of IFRS-9 except for change in accounting classifications under [FRS-9 from
category under 1AS-39 as disclosed in above table.

4.1.2.3  Tmpairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Company's impairment model by replacing the 1AS 39
“neurred loss model” with a forward looking “expected credit loss’ (ECL) model when assessing
the impairment of financial assets n the scope of IFRS 9. Financial Instruments: Recognibion and
Measurement', IFRS 9 regquires the Company to recognize ECLs For trade debts earlier than TAS 39,
Cash and bank balanees, security deposits and other receivables are subject to ECLs model but there
is no or immaterial impairment for the current year.

Under IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the Tollowing bases:

= 12 months ECLs, these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs, these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected cradit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other
receivables are written off when there 15 no reasonable expectabion of recovery.

Loss allowance on bank balances and other receivables is measured at 12 months expected credit
losses, Singe they are short term in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the
banks where the balances are maintained, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

Impact of ECL

Considering the guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information, no
loss allowanee has been recorded against trade debts upon transition to IFRS9 as of 01 January
201 % and during the year ended 31 December 2019,
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413 IFRS 16 - Leases

The Company has imitially applied IFRS 16 from 01 January 2019, IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use assel
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard ie. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases.

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company elected to apply practical expedient to grandfather the
assessment of which transactions are leases. The Company applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and
IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease under IFRS 16. Therefore, the definition of

a lease under [FRS 16 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 01 January
2009,

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the rsks and rewards of ownership.
Under IFRS |6, the Company recognizes right of use assets and lease liahilities for material leases
i.e. these leases are on balance sheet.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and equipment’, the same line item as
1t presents underlying assets of the same nature that it owns.

The Company has presented non-current and current portion of related lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position considering their due dates for paymeni.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the comtract to each lease component on the basis of its relative value,
The Company's accounting policy relating to leases is explained in notes of these unconsolidated
financial statements.

Transition

The Company used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under TAS 17,

- did not recognize nght-of-use assets and liahilities for leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

~ did net recognize right-of~use assets and liabilities Tor leases af low value items;
—  Excluded mitial direct costs from measuring the right-oftuse asset at the date of initial
—  Used hindsight when determuning the lease term.

The Company leases a number of vehicles and machinery. These leases were classified as finance
leases under 1AS 17, For these finance leases, the carying amount of the right of use asset and the
lease liability at 01 January 2019 were determined at the carrying of the lease asset and lease
liability under IAS 17 immediately before that date.
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The Company has elecied not to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low
value assets and leases of short term (warchouses). The Company recogmzes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on o straight line basis over the lease term.

Impact of financial statemenis

The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. On transition to
IFRS 16, the Company recognized additional Bs. 151.76 million of lease liabilities and Rs. 151.76
million right of use assets equivalent fo lease liability. When measuring lease liabilities, the
Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate applicable at the time of
initial application of standard. However, there are some warchouse leases prior to 01 January 2019
that have nol been considercd as significant for the purpose of application of IFRS 16 and
accordingly has no impact on the opening retained earnings as at 01 January 2019,

The result of initial application of IFRS 16 has been disclosed in note 18 (o these unconsolidated
financial statements respectively.

Also in relation to those leases under IFRS 16, the Company has recognised depreciation and
interest costs, instead of operating lease expense. During the perod ended 31 December 2009, the
Company recognised Rs. 50.32 million of depreciation charges and Rs. 18.13 million of interest
caosts from these leases.

4.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, il any, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any,
and buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at the revalued smounts less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly atiributable to the

Land. Buildings and Plant and Machinery are revalued by professionally qualibed valuer waith
sufficient regularity to ensure that the net camrying amount does not differ matenally from the fair
value (market value). In case of revalued assets, any accummlated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amoun! restated
at the revalued amount of the asset,

Increase in the cammying amount arising on revaluation of property. plant and equipment is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in eguity under the heading of
revalpation surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost is transferred to retained earnings: Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to
the particular assets being sold is transferred to retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred 1ax.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use
of the assets and other similar factors,

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straighi-line method whereby
the depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on
additions is charged from the month in which the asset 15 available for use and up to the month of
disposal. The rates of depreciation are stated in note 18.1 to these unconselidated financial
statements.
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The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation 15 significant. The Company’s estimate of the residual value of its property,
plant and equipment as at balance sheet date has not required any adjustment as its impact 15
considered insignificant.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the item of property. plant and equipment. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, Gains and losses on disposal of
assels are taken to the statement of profil or loss,

Capital work in progress

It is stated al cost less impairment losses, if any, [t includes expenditure incuorred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their construclion and installation. These cosl are
transferred to relevant assets category as and when assets are available for intended use.

4.3 Intangible assets and goodwill
Groodwill

Goodwill arsing on the acquisition of business represents future economic benefits arising from
assets that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwall is
nitially recogmized at cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination
over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
lisbilities of the acquiree. Subsequent to initial recognition, poodwill 15 measured at cost less
accurmitlated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is annually tested for impairment.

Other Intangible asset

Other intangible assets. including customer relationship, that are acquired by the Company and have
finite wseful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, Intangible assets such as brand value that have infinite lives are measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives and 15 generally recognised in profit or loss. The rates of amortization
are stated in note 19.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurmed.

Amortisation method, vselul lives and residual values are reviewed al each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

CGiain or loss from derecognition of intangible assels is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
4.4 Business comhination

As per the requirement of [nternational Financial Reporting Standards 3, business combinations are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses ¢ entities under
common control unless it 15 transitory in nature). The cost of ‘acqusition is measured at the fair
value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
acquisition, The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any lability resulting from a
contingent consideration amangement, if any.
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Acguisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent Habilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acguisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. I this is less than the fair value of the net
assets acguired in the case of a bargin purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the
statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thercof, held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both are classified as mvestment property. These are not held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Company’s business
model ie. the Company's intentions regarding the use of property is the primary criterion for
classification as an investment property.

Investment property is imitially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when an
owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use has
changed, the transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and any
balance of surplus on the révaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues o
be maintained in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Upon
disposal. any surplus previoushy recorded in the revaluation surplus account is directly transferred
to retaingd earnings and the transfer is not made through the statement of profit or loss, However
any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceéeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recopnised in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The transfer to invesiment property 15 made when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner occupation. In case of dual purpose properties, the same 18 classified
as investment: property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under finance
lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value at
each reporting date and any subsequent change i fair value is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss {i.e. in case where the owner occupied property carmed at fair value becomes an investment
property, the fair value gain to be recognised in the statement of profit or loss would be the
difference between the fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property and fair
value at the time of subsequent remeasurement). The revaluation of investment properties ane
carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active market price.

4.6 Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and
managers {old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees) and a funded gratuity scheme for all of its
eligible employees (old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees) other than field staff. Provisions !
contributions are made in the unconsolidated financial statements to cover obligations on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Amount recognised in statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit
obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any, All actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Tncome' as they occur, Past service cost resuliing from the
changes to defined benefit plan is immediately recognised m the statement of profit or loss. Cumment
service cost together with net interest cost are also charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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Caleulation of gramuity and pension require assumptions © be made of future outcomes which
mainly includes imcrease in remuneration, expected long lerm refum on plan assets and the discount

rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the
underlying assumptions.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme covering all eligible employees. The
Company and employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Staff Compensated absences

The Company recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the
period in which they are earned up 1o the reporting date on the basis of un-availed eamed leaves
balance at the end of the year.

4.7 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and mpammment losses if any,
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising inveice value plus other charges incurred thereon up
to the reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose toals is determined based on
management's estimates, These are based on their foture usability. Provision is made for any excess
of carrying value over the estimated net realizable value and is recognised in the unconsolidated
statemnent of profit or loss.

4.8 Stock=in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net realisable
value except for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges mewred thereon
up te the reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured finished goods
represent direct cost of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of manufacturing
overheads. Cost of goods purchased for resale comprises of purchase price, import duties, taxes
{other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from tax authorities) and other directly
attributable cost wherever applicable.

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other cosis incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Net realizable value signifies the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated
cosl necessary o be incurred o make the sale,

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have
become obsolete, Provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s estimation.
These are based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed.
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4.9 Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company’s separate
financial statements. At subsequent reporting date, the recoverable amounts of investments are
estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments
are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the statement of profil
or loss. Investments in subsidiaries that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of impairment at each reporting date. Where impairment losses are subsequently reversed,
the carrying amounts of the investments are increased 1o the revised recoverable amounts bul
limited to the extent of mitial cost of mvestments, Impairment losses recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on investiments in subsidiaries are reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements’,

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks with original
maturities of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term
cash commiiments rather than for investments or other purposes. Short term running finance
facilities availed by the Company are also included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of cash flow statement.

4.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If
nier, they are classified as non-current labilities.

Trade and other pavables are recognized initially at fair valoe and subsequently measured al
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange pains and losses arising on translation
in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective

4.12 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of fnancial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect current best estimates.

4.13 Warranty oblications

The Company accounts for its warranty obligations based on historical trends when the underlying
producis or services are sold.

4.14 Revenue Recognition

- Rewvenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net
of sales tax, sales retums and related discounts. Revenue is recognized whien or as
performance obligation is satisfied by transferring confrol of promised goods or services to a
customer and control either transfers overtime or point in time.
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4.15 Other Incomes

- Income on investments and profit and loss sharng bank accounis are recognised on accrual
basis using the effective interest rate method.

Rental income from investment property is recognised as other income on a straight-line basis
over the term of lease.

- Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recopnised when the right to receive is
established

4.16 Taxation

Income tax expense mmpri&cs of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity /
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets or in other comprehensive income.

Lurrent

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking
into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax
in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability, Any excess paid over what is
due in respect of the current or prior periods 15 recognized as an asset,

The Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 594A of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. Under this approach, the Company is accounting for the related taxes under standalone
taxpayer approach. Under this approach, cument and deferred taxes are recognised as if the entity
was taxable in its own right.

Deferred

Deferred tax i3 accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary dilferences
arising from differences between the carmving amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.
However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in & transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substaniively enacted at the
teporting date, The camrving amount of all defermed tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized, Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive
income or equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.
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4.17 Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs dircetly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
produoction of qualifving assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended nse or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets, unfil such time as the
assels are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recopnized
in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurmred.

4.18 Financial instruments
4.18.1 Reccognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial Liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for-an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its scquisition or issue, A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the ransaction price.

4182  Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial axsets

On initial recognition, a financial asset 18 classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), fair value through statement of profit or loss
(FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOCI or FVTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition unfess the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the chanpe in the business

Awmortized cosi

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- 1t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash
flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

'These asseis are subsequently measured at amorfized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost 18 reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized i unconsolidated statément of profit or loss, Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade
debts and other receivables,

Db Tnstrument - FEOCT

A debt nvestment 15 measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTFL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gaing and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCL. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

4 - FFi

On imitial recognition of an equity imvestment that is not held for trading. the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in C(CL This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured al fair value, Dividends are recopnized as income in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the imvestment. Other nel gaing and losses are recognized i OCT and these
investments are never reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporling date.

Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVIPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCT as described above are
measured at FVYTPL,

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, The Company has
nir such investments at the reporting date.

Financial axiefs — Business model assexsment

For the purposes of the assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
ciedit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending nisks and costs (c.g. higuidity risk and admimstrative costs), as well @5 a
profit margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making thiz assessment, the Company
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including vanable-rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g. non-recourse
Financial liabilitiex

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any inferest expense, are recoghized in stalemment of profit or loss. Other
financial liabilitics are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of
profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabiliies compnise trade and other payables, long and short term
borrowings, lease liabilities, accrued markup and dividend payable.

4.18.3  Derecognition
Financial assefs

The Company derecognizes a financial assct when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or 10 which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the nsks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transters assets recognized in ils statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, In these cases, the fransfemed assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial hability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a
finamzial liability, the difference between the camying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or labilities assumed) 15 recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4.18.4  Offsetting of financial assets and financial labilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
unconsolidated financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set
of T the recognised amounts and the Company intends either 10 settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultancously.

4.19 Impairment
Financial assefs
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs o

financial assets measurcd at amortized cost;
debt investments measured at FVOCT: and
- contract assets,

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (1.e. the risk of
default oceurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expecied life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

ECLs are based on the difference betwieen the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation (o the assets” original effective interest rate.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial ssset has inereased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and gualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than past due for a reasonable period of fime. Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible defaulr events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-
month ECLs are the portion of ECLs thai resuli from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 13 the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is expased to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in 118 entirety or & portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery, The Company expects no significant recovery
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from the amount written off, However, financial assets that are writien oftf could still be subject 1o
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

The Company has elected (o measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on hifetime ECLs, The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment, The Company
reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, deposils, advances and other receivables 1o assess
amount of loss allowance required on an annual basis. Impairment of cash and cash equivalents has
been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures,
The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties.

Non - Financial assets

The earrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets; other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determune whether there 15 any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists. then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use; the estimated foture cash flows are discounted to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unil.

An impairment loss is recognized If the carrving amount of the assets or its cash generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amwounts of the assets in-a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 1o that
extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the camying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been

tecogmzed.
4.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactipns halances

All monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assels and
ligbilities denominated in foreign currencies are laken to profit or loss, Nop-monetary asscls and
liabilities' denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in Foreign currency thal are measured at fair value are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchanpe differences are
generally included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4.21 Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recopnised o the financial statements in the penod n
which these are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the reporting date 1s
considered as non-adjusting event and is recognised in the unconsolidated linancial statements in
the period mmowhich such translers are made,

4.22 Earnings per share

As required under International Accounting Standard 33 Eamings Per Share, basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares ouistanding during the year, The Company is nol
exposed to the dilutive effect on EPS.

4.23 Common control transactions

A business combination {or a demerger for that purpose) involving entitics or businesses under
common control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination. Such
common control trensactions have been excluded from the scope of Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards 3 dealing with Business Combinations. Accordingly, as an accounting policy
choice, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed / assets and liabilities transferred are recognized
under the book value basis {carry-over basis) of accounting.

4.24 Grant in aid {(deferred income)

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase oul the
Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquining asset {production facility) which manufactures
such products which are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income and
is being amortized over the useful life of such asset.

4.25 Leases

Al the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or confains lease, A
confract is, or contdins, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the pse of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16,

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right of use asset is mitially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct cost incurred less any lease incentive received. The nght of use asset 15 subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability, if any. The right of use assets is depreciated using the straight
line method from the commencement date w the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or cost of the right of
use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use
assel will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right of use asset is disclosed in the property.
plant and equipment as referred to in 18.1 of the unconsolidated financial statements.
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The lease hability 1s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid ai
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot
be readily determined. the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The Company has used it
ingremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate is not readily available, The
lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by
lease payment made.

The lease liability is measured al amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-
measured when there is 4 change in future lease payments arising from a change in rate or a change
in the terms of the lease armangement, 1f there s change in the Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual valoe guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed lease payment, When the leaze liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment 15 made to the carryimg amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in statement of
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to zero. Refer note 9
tor these financial statements for disclosure of lease liability.

Short term leases and feases of low value assets

The Company has elected not 1o recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low
value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straipht line basis over the lease term.

Sale and lease back

Where the sale and lease back transactions vesult in a lease liability, any excess of sale proceeds
over the carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. However, sale proceeds less
than the carrying value is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

4.26 Allocation of expenses

Certain expenses are allocated by the Company to its subsidianes in accordance to a basis approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company and the subsidiaries.

4.27 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (I[FRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods begmning on o after 01 January 2020:

—  Amendment to IFRS 3 *Business Combinations” — Definition of a Business (effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual
period beginning on or after (1] January 2020). The [ASB has issued amendments aiming to
resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business
or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the abilily to create cutputs, The amendments include an
clection to wse a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and
therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements.
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~  Amendments 0 TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Stalements and TAS 8 Accounting Palicies,
Changes 1n Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 Janoary 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS
1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in
IFRS Standardys. In addition, the TASB has also issued guidance on how (o make materiality
judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Standards.

—  On 29 March 2018, the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately
contains changes that will set & new direction for IFRS i the fulure.. The Conceplual
Framewaork primanly serves as a tool for the JASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS
Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. Il does not override the requirements of
individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the
usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may lake some time
to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a refercnce for sclecting their
accountmg paolicies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies
should review those policies and apply the new puidance retrospectively as of 01 January
2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs,

—  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 5, IAS 39 and [FRS 7 is applicable for
annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The G20 asked the Financial
Stability Board (FSB) 1o undertake a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks,
Following the review, the FSB published a report setting out its recommended reforms of some
major interest rate benchmarks such as [BORs. Public authorities in many jurisdictions have
since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in twm led to uncertainty
about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchimarks. In these amendments, the term
"interest rate benchmark reform’ refers to the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark
including its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the
E5B's recommendations set out in its July 20014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate
Benchmarks' (the reform). The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of
the uncertamnty caused by the reform. A Company shall apply the exceptions to all hedging
relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments are not
likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

—  IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 0]
July 2019} provides inténm guidance on accounting For regulatory deferral accounts balances
while IASBE considers miore comprehensive guidance on sccounting for the effects of rate
regulation. In order to apply the interim standard, an entity has to be rate regulated - i.e, the
establishment of prices that can be charged to its customers for goods or services is subject to
oversight andfor approved by an authorized body. The term ‘regulatory deferral account
balance” has been chosen as a neutral descriptor for expense (income) or varance accounl that
is included or is expected to be included by the rate regulator in establishing the rate(s) that can
be charged to customers and would not otherwise be recognized as an asset or liability under
other IFRSs. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial statements.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or afler 0] January 2020 and
are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.
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019 2018 2019 2018
Mt [(Number of shares) {Ruopees in "0}
5 Share capital
5.1 Authorized share cupiial 500 200000000 175 00000 20HM0 |, 750,00

511 During the year, the Company hias increased itz authorized share capital by 25,0040, (800 shares. The authorized share
capital thus stands enhanced at Rs, 2000 milison, divided imo 2000000000 shares of Rs, 10 each, and accordingly the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company have been amended

5.2 Issued, subseribed and paid-up capital

2019 2018 2019 2018

Fully paid-up ordinary shures of Nate (Number of shires) (Rupees in "000)

Rz 10 eoch
[sziwad for cish 11.461,568 1 dal 5608 114,616 14516
Issued for consideration odiver than cash T3, 733 TOET33 7037 7037
Issued as paid bonus shares TH.988, 750 34518664 THO BRE 345,187
I=sued under scheme of pmalgamation 6450004 Q6 450,000 964,500 O, 500

187 604,061 163,135,965 1,876,041 631,344
53 Reconcillation of ordinary shares

Balance as al 01 January 163,133,965 45405622 1,631,340 454,056
Chrdinary shares issued

under scheme of arangement = ] - G 450,000 - S, SO0 0
Ordinary shares issued

a5 fully paid bonus shares L 14.470,095 21,278,343 144,701 212, 784,00
Balance as at 21 December 187,604,060 163,133,963 1,576,041 [,631,340

5.4 Crrdimary shares of the Company held by pssocimed persons and undenaking at year end are as follows:

209 2018 009 2018

{Percentage held) (Wumber of shares)
*Poseiclon Synergies {Private) Limited £, 0 % o, (W 11,253,183 S TRITT

Chief Executive (fficer and
hix spowse and minoe children
= Hapoon Ahmad Khan (CECH 38.31% 37955 T1,893.524 61,916,108
- Mighat Haroon EKhan (Wite of CECE) [5.64% L5 64% 19 346,274 25 518,500
- Dependent children af CEO 1.66% 1.66% 1107875 2,702,500
il 62 %0 fl.25% 115,640 B56 09,033 485
= Oramed by Chief Executive OiTicer and his wife,
35 Pursuani to Scheme of Armangement, approved by Honourable Sindh High Court through its Order daied 22 Moy 2018,

Singer Pakistan: Linuted was merged and eombined with Cool Industnies (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Privais)
Limited, The Company issued 96,450,000 shares 1o the skareholders of Cool Industries (Private] Limited and Link Wel
(Provane) Lirmiled pursaant 1o the same scheme,

56 During the year, Company has annomnced 15% (2008: 15%) bonus shires m liew of dividend to its: existing
sharcholders, i proportion of their sharcholding.

57 The: holders of ordinary shares are entitbed to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are entitled fo one vote per
ahare at meetmgs of the Company.
58 13,509,024 sharcs having face value of Rs. 10 cach are pledged as security with a financial institetion.

f  Share premiom

This represents excess of market value over the face value of shares issued under the scheme of arrangement. This reserve can
only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 8142) of the Companies Act, 2017,
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W 2E
T Bwrples on revaliatisn of preperty, pland asi oguipement - mel of ina Mot {Fmpees i D)

Hevalarin s - & on 0 lamisy 18,123 161,56
Surplus on revalustion arisen dong the vei 355409 -
Surplus om sale of huildings oo frechodd lmd mnsfemred o remined eammgs - 11,245
Surphes on sale of investment propersy tramsferred {0 retnined camengs [N § -
Incremental depreciation transferred v equity (149 (1e3)

S48 541 ad) 123
Deferred tx lmbdlity - as om0l Janoary (1.50H) 2 0k h
[Dreferred tax on revaluation arisen danng, the year { 1R a6)
Tax effect on transfer  sale of butldings on freelold land tmmsferred 1o retained cammgs 181 4]
Taw effiect un tranefer of heevmmial depreciation o metiined eanmgs a2 56
Adfustment ressifting from chenpge af s s = 129
Dheferredd tax ability (102.230) LL5E)

T Ed a6 T12 155,525

T Thi Ingludes balsee of Be, 93T millson (2005 152 20 milbonk represcnieg serphis oo revalusmg of aildings closificd a8 estmen propety:
Balinge us at 31 December inchudes surplies on kind of Bs mal (2008: 1 mllive}, building on frechodd bnd of Bs 15149 million {1018 Rs. 157.52
milliond &nd plant and machinery of Ba, 33572 mallion (2008 B3, ml)

T2 The Cosnpeey revalued s frechiobd lend, building on freshok] lond sed plat and mackinery during the finescinl yesr 3017 snd 2401% Latest
revahusibon was curied oot oe 51 December 2009, This was oonducied by M's Asifl Assocmbes (Private] Lemited. Frechold Eind was revaloed onthe
basks of cument market vidhie whereas ofher ssicis wave revalusd on the hists of depreciaied merket valnes. The most significesd inpat into this
valustion apprsich is price per kanal for Jamd. - price per squarne foot for bailidings and present operational conditon smd ape of plent and machinery.

2019 E 1%
N (Hugiees im 0)
i Long term loans - Secmred
Loweg termn Joams - Sanking Compamy aj RIBE TR 68,209
Loeg term Inans = Moo banking, O oepamye af 028 503 445512
Current maturity presented wader current lisbilites 14 (312,000 {2E1, 250y

1.417.271 TEEAT]

L& Long term finunces ulifred under mark-op ammpements from banking and non banking comparses are composed af:

e 2 & Tenure nmd basis of principal
Mote  Hank Mame Facility D bark-mp s por Agreomicsi & '
Badance pavable in 5 semic
3 Tém T Mamhs KIBOHR phos 3% per
R S Hamk Lisvasd . d03, TN AR 209 mnnually imsinlments endimg on
Finnnce asmwn, paykhle quarcry. 1 March 2073
Baluwe payable afler expary of
sis Doead 1slmmic Hank Tema ‘ 5 Moarthe KIBOK phs 2% per 13 month grace pemod in 16
o Lemiied Finnee e ezewm, paywhle quereriy. waartarly wetabieml: - bopivoang
from (04 Ismmary 2021
KOS, TOH FhH.209
Ri3 T:;J;m Compary Fdie 126,563 a5 gaz | 2 Mouths KIBOR phes B per it fn‘l‘:r:néllnl.ll'gﬁ:ﬁ
{Biad Finance i, Paywhle quumesty -
Pal st Badame payable aler expiry of
i Term 3 Momths KIBOR plus 2 3% per 12 month gmce period in 16
it ::f-md Galpany Finance 300,000 © | ammmm, payable quimerhy. quarterly  insmlnents - begwnimng
! from (6 December 2020,
Pk Libyn Ealance payabh: afier expiny of
" Term & Manhs KIBOE phis 2.3% peg 11 month - gmce. penod o 20
13 EﬂMme""' Finange 30000 | e, payable quarsedy. mpaarierly insalments: beginsing
from 035 Oetober 2200
BI6.5hF 445 312

1.1 This fciliey & secured by way of first pami pesswe charge of Re 267 willion on present andd finure fived uspets of the Company ot persomal
puarantées of the directors of the Compamy. This cility bas ben oblained to meet Jong teom wiorking capatal regairemsznits of the Company.

%12 This dwcilfity 15 secured by way of first pari passu charge of Bs. 534 mallion on present and future fixed assets of the Company and Cross corporsie
pusranbes of gronp condertis of the Company. This Baciliy ke been obitained to met losg weim working capital rogquirements and balimee sheet ri-
profiling of the Company

813 This faciiity & secured by way aof fist pam passa charge of Bs. U6T miflion on present ond fiubere fixed ssseis of the Company and personal
puaraniecs, of the deceiors of the Company, Thas facllicy has been obtained 1o meer kg term working capiial requiremsnis and balange sheet 1e-
profiling of the Company.

£1.4 This Gaciliry is secursd by way of 25% margin vver finahcing amommt. related o prosent and funare fized sssels of fhe Company and
puaraniees of the directors of the Company, This facilgy hes been choaimed io meet long term workeg eapisal regrarements snd CAPEX for shifting of
Existmg manuficturing unit 1o mew place,

ELS Thie facitied s secunad by way of first panpassd charge of Ke 400 mellion on prosent asd fuiure fized aascts of the Compainy, This Bciliy ke boen
orhinmned 4o finance the expensaon of productios oality.

E6  Subsequenl 0.0 vear e, the Commany has avaibed the regatavary reliel groen by St Bk of Pakistan throngh 83 BPRD ceculir femer o, 13 0f
2030 deferring the principal instaflmems of long term boass by M6l days with 2 restriction impased by fimancial Estibdions on Company foc not
imaking dividend payisent danng the perod of rehel)

EL.T Asperthe fidancing armasgements, the Company i required 1o comply with cemam francial eovename aad otber conditions -mposed by ihe providers
of Emance.
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F{ B 2018
B Lease Habilitles Nore {Rupees in "0
Lissed assets - secured el fais, il 635,524
Lesmsed butlding - unsecured L 196348 -
Ihi 144 f5.528
Current matiity (B3328) (23.074)
179,826 42454

The future minimzm lease pryments and their present vahoes toowhich the Company 18 commitied under virious lesse prrangements ane

L | Leased assets - seconed 2019 2008
Minimnm Finamce Present hlindiem Finance Present
lease charge valuwe of benge charge value of
paymenis minimum Ty TTEIEILIT
lease bease
pray ments piyenE
{Rupees in "MK
Mot lnter than one yeur 37738 9,192 TRS45 5 HES 5811 23074
Later than one year and pot later
fhan five years 44,947 1,683 3R, 155 4, 950] 4,496 42,454
#2685 15,885 G, B00 535 10307 3,528

The abovee represenis’ finance leases eatered mig with certain finencial institution for plant and machinery and vehicles. Monthly
payments of leases corry mark-up rotes at KIBOR plus 1:5% to 3% per-onnom (2018: KIBOR plos. 1.5 % to 5% per annum}j, KTBOR is
one, three and six months averape ask side, At the year-end fhe applicable rates ranged Between & 43% to 14K C2018: B.43%; 10
1AM} per anmam

Dring: the exierent vear, the Cormpany entered inik lease armnpements of assels amaunting 1o B, 24,1 million. These obligations are
payable in monthly mstallments Bs. 00453 million to Bs 00083 million and cary a mark up rateat 3 month KIBOR +2.5% per annum.

92 Feisid aakding - unsecured

2019 2018

Miminrum Finamer Fresent Mimimiamm Finnce Pressent

fease charge value of lease charge vakhue of
pAYMEnts minimum payTCTIE TN

lease fease
payments paymenis
(Rupees in "(HHK)
Nt later than one vear 75,633 HLRED B4.7R3 - - -
Later than one vear and not bater

than five years 144,582 237 141,565 - - -
27215 T3.867 I 2R - -

Az expdaaned oot 40,3 o the finanetal sawemems, the Company has recopnised |ease bulldings duning the vear on sccount of
warchouses renbed out {0 the Company. The remaining tenure of contracts ranges from 18 w120 month payable monthly, quarieérly and
ammzally, Lease linhility 15 calculared ai discount rate ranging from [2.00% to 15.36%

9 Hil8
MNote (Rupees in "MHF)
10 Empleves refirement benefits
Clussifled wnder non-rarrent gy
Emplovee retivement berefits
Pension fund .2 {3.388) 15,960

Empiover retirement feweliis - oblinafion
- Graturty fund - permanent emplovess T

13.088
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1.1

oz

103

1.4

Pension scheme is gvailable to sl permanent fill-time employees in the executive and manager grades including the Rill-tme working
directorg but exchading persons working as tempocary, trainses or apprentice employees, Minlmem yvears of service for qoalifying o
pension = |5 years. Emplovees ame entithed to Pension on reliremnent al 57 years of age. Grutarty (o the permanent emphyvess- ts pavable
on normal retirement at the ape of 37 years, natiral death, oo and is povable only on the mimmuom completion of 5 years of service
with the Company. Both of these benefite relate only to odd cmployess of former Singer Pakistan Limited (before the effective date of
amalgamation) and this benefit fas been freezed at the level exizied a2 at 31 May 20019 Employees who have not completed the terrms,
their relntesd charge bas been reversed

The details of emplovee retirement benefits bosed on actonnal vabistions caried out by an independent actunry as at 31 December
20 1% under the Projected Linit Credit method are given befow.

The principal assumpiions used in the actuerial valuation ane as follows:

Fension Fund Ciratuity
Permanent cmployvees
1l ) 2018 g 2=
Nt (%) (%) (V) (=)
] Dizscount rate per annum 1125 325 1125 1325
2} Expected per annum rute of morenss m
fuliere salasies Ml 11,25 - 1135
1) Expected rate of increase in pension Ml Il
4) Mortality mates SLIC SLIC SLIC LT

{2001-05)-1 (200§-05)-1 (ZONT K5 h=1 (2N -05)-1

Amrunits recopnised in statement of financial position

Pension Fund Gratulty
Fermanemt employees
ine 2068 ] 4 2iHH
{Hanpees in “O0E)

Present value of defined benefit obligstion HlA 63,304 H9.324 25,043 47178
Fair value of plan asscis s {66, THL) (79.284) {L955) (4.698)
{Assat) | liability on the reporting date Ik {3,388) [9.9600) 13,088 42480
Movement in net defined benefit lability recognised in

statement of financlal pesition
Mer (asser) / Habiliny as ar 01 January PR b 0 42 480 31,723
Income /| cost recopmised in profit ar loss for the yesr Ik {13,111 2039 (11,741} 6242
Fehumnd during the year 0Bl - - -
Total amount af remeasirements recognised in her

comprchensive income (1) - acruarial boas / (zaim) T 9,721 (19,71} (7.051) 4.515
Met (asset) S liabiliny as of 31 Decemnber {3,365} (9.0 23088 22 450
Movement in present value of delined benelit abligations
Liahility for defined benefit obligation at ¥ January 69,324 K115 47,178 45,865
Henefits paicd {6,933) 1001} (3,181} (9,394)
Current sepvice cost 3,184 3,586 1912 iy el
Past service cost {15,053) - (11,032) -
Iiterest cost 0144 XK RITR iha4
R greavarements - actroriol s feaink on obligution

- Change in financial assomprions 9.932 [23.49G) 1,515 1,30

- Change in expericnee adjustments {6, 204) (653} {9,370y 1,855

Lisbiliny For defimed besielin ohligation
ar 31 Drocembsa 03,304 649,324 25,043 47178
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Pension Fund Gratuity
Permaneai cmployvees
LS 2008 2019 208
Nixrgr {Rupees in "MK
10.4.1  Apalysis of presentd value of defined benelit obligation
Mosted & mon-vestad
= Viested Benelils . = 25,043 4577
- Mo Yested Benefits - - - JA08
- = 25,043 47178
Beneflt abligation by participant i’ cadre
- Active | Manapement 16,768 26,123 - 47178
= Retrees ! Lindon 46626 43,20 - -
63,304 H.324 - 47175
Type of benefies earned o daie
- Accumilated benefit obligation 63,304 55,078 15,043 26714
- Amioinis attributed to fature
sakary imiresse = 11,246 - 2LA62
63,304 649,324 25,043 47178
15 Movements in ihe fafr value of plan asseis
Fair vabue of plan assets - o1 01 Jamuary T 284 84,402 4698 14:142
{Refund) ! contribution during the year {5, 5l - - -
Benefits paid {6,933} (7.641) (3.181) (9354}
Expected return on plan assets Ik 364 G FR 632 1,308
Re-orepraremenis omn axsedy = aetwarial s
- Change in expericrce adjustments {5.5903) (4437} {154 (1359
Fair value of plon assets - ot 31 December e i, THL T 284 1.95% 4698
1t Expense recognised in siatement of profit or loss
Currenl service cost 3,184 1556 3,912 LT
Past sorvice cost {15,053} - (21.032) -
Interest cost net of expected retum on plan assets {1.240) 453 5379 2515
{13, 10 4 35 (11,7411 6,242
The expense is recognised in the following line fems in
the statement of profit or loss:
Cost of sales {8,521) 2651 {7632} 2 (W
Marketing, selling snd distnbution costs {3277 57 (2,935) 1,531
Administrative expenses {1,311} 421 (1,174} el 5
{13,10F) 4,059 {11,741} Hh42
10,7 Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in otler camprehensive
Income during the year
Actunnal fain}/ kess onoblgatian 3,728 {24,149} (7.845) 1156
Actuarnial loss on plan agsets 5,003 4437 194 1.359
Todal actuarial (pain] | Boss recopnised in OC1 9,721 C19.T1E) [T.651) 2515

Met aciunrial (goin) / bass on pensicn fund and furded grsarty amounts to Rs: 207 million {2008 Rz {15.2) million} which kas been
taken to other comprehensive income.

Iension Fund Giratuily
Permancnt employees
e 200% gy 2%
{Hupeds in "0

108  Heturnoon plan assets

Actaal refumn on plan assels 4,391 2543 438 {500
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102 Compesithen of plan assets

Cash and cask equivalents

Dbt imsiruments - Government Bonds ¢ Securilies
i Pakastun Investment Bonds

i} Speciol Sovings Centificanes

iily  Treasary Bills

Vi Tenm Deposii Receips

Turial Halr value of plan esseis

FeAD  Histarical infor mation
Lenwion Fumd
Present vabue of the defined henafit ok

Fair walye of plin keses
{5urphas | defieir i dhe plan

Finarcdad seaumgnions. arisimg on plan [ablics
Expericnoe adgnsmens arigtng ca plan Hebilines
Experiimoe adgusimenis arising on plan assets
Srrutaily. = fund

Present valpe of the defined benefit obligation
Fair vilee of plan nsseis

[eficat in the plan

Fimamciad assumpicns arisimg on plan [Ebilities
Experience adfustmenis arising oo plan bizhilines
Experienis adsustments ansing ve plan assets

TLI1  Sensstivity analysis on significant actuarial assumiptions

Astwgrial fabiline

Dhéscinan (ke
Salery mareasce

Annual Report 2019

Pension Fand Gratuily
Fermanent empioyecs
19 2018 ol 2018
[Rupees in "S00)
22856 1,754 1,935 4,698
237197 24454 a :
3 11494 X :
= (TR TE = -
P - - -
665, TRT TR 1.955 4,658
31 Decenthor
e M= 20ET 2076 015
(Hmpees in 006}

0330 filk 124 BT 1S L208 75101
166, TEZ) [T IR} [LETlEl] (il T2 K {84,318
EEL] {1k ) K 15440 10, TR

95951 (23,496 (L] 4297 1,

6,204) [CEED AT {1 46} 5,470
(5,993} (4.437) 256 2,102 5192
215,043 4T.17E 45 83 4 |66 47 56
(1,555} (4,698 (14,142} (B4 B Ry {25,209
15,058 42,480 34,723 19,780 22,343
:I.!n?=_"é= 1.3l 7 (2004 [
.37y (] T.136 441k 2 85T)
{1 (1339) 20 'I.'l}& 13,338
3 Bicemher 2019
h Ju Pension Ciralminy
mm““:;“ Inereas: im Decrease in lncreas: im Decrvase im
mssmmption assumption mssumption  essamption
5% 61,389 65,532 14,642 L5450
] E - = 5

The weighted meempe of jplan chmation for pession is 6.5 yoas (200K .24 yenrs) whille foc funded grasiy is 320 years (20008 528 years),

1812 Matarity profile of the defimed benef oblipation - undSscoanied payments

Ihisrrthusion of g of berefl posmems
- Pension
= {xratzity- famd

it s yenrs
i 3 4 5 =T
{Hupees In )
b, 5] 14,751 14,598 14,373 5,518
11,986 1,E20 5662 1,198 11,186
16,540 16,580 i 6l 15,571 T fi04d

1A Expecied change w sasemens of peofit or |loss for post erplevmnens fanded gravoiry sed pensios plans for the vear emlisg 31 December 2000 are B4, (0361} midlicn

and Bs. 2.52 million respectively.

1804 MNumber of employess covered in the scheme

Cerndiiry
Fensian pErmantst
srall

Bl fd
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Deferred income Nuope

Dejaily of the movement in the balance

Balance as at 01 January

Ciross balance of deferred income

Accumulated amortization

Unamortized balance of defarred income as.on 01 January

Transactions doring the year

Sale and lease back arrangement 121
Amortizanon for the vear
= on sale and lease back arrangement 21
= (m gront 22

Unamortized balance of deferred income

Current partion of deferred income
- on sialeand lease back amangement |
= Of1 Zrant I [P

Balance as at 31 December

Reconcifiation:

Gross balance of deferred income
Accumulated amortization
Unamortized balance of deferred meome

Details of the closing balance

Unamortized balance of the excess of sale proceeds over the

carrying value of assets e
Unamortized halance of grant 122
121

122

Annual Report 019

2019 2018
(Rupees in "000)
50,529 32,580

(23,189) {16.568)
27,340 15,712
- 17,949
(4.956) (5.236)
(1.161) i(1.083)
(6,117) (6.321)
21,223 27,340
(4,487) (4,955)
(1.161) (1.161)
(5.648) (6.116)
15,575 21,224
50,519 50,529
(29.306) (23,189
21,223 27,340
1,097 | 5053
11.126 12,287
21,223 27,340

The Company hiad entered in sale and lease back armmngements of specific items of plant and
machinery resuliing in'a deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the camying
amount of respective assets), The defered income has heen amortized and recognized in the

unconsolidated statement of profitor loss over the lease term.

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the
Oone Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquinng asset (production facility) which manufaetures
products that are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income and is being
amortized over the useful life of the ssset. Amortization for the year is based on 8.33% of the
balance in accordance with the depreciation charged on plant and machinery for which the prant

was received,
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20149 2018
I3 Trade and other payables Mare (Rupees in "000)
Trade creditors 744,446 739901
Bills payuble 155,481 519,182
Accrued liahilitics 207,793 222,924
Contract liabilities 47,142 .
Advance from dealers - 11,371
Security deposits from dealers 134 L1052 9.266
Prowvisions in respect of warranty obligations 6,825 538
Waorkers' profits participation fund 3.2 31313 27.331
Warkers' welfare fund 9,243 9118
Addvancs from emplovess against vehicle 17,013 INE35
Income tax deducted at source 133 #4813 55,774
Payahle to the provident fund 37 6,497 B34
CHhers 134 81,585 69,263
1,404,203 1,683,939
13.1 The Company is in the process of fransferring this amount to separate bank account to comply with
the requirements of Companies Act, 200 7.
2019 2018
132 Workers' profits participation fund Nate (Rupees in "(410)
Balance as at 01 January 27,331 12,248
Add: Allocation for the year 3i 32313 27,331
Interest on WPPF acerued during the year = 4008
59,644 40,077
Less! Payment made during the year (27,331) {12, 746)
Balance as at 31 December 32,313 27331
133 Amount of Rs. Wil (2010 8: 25.31 million) has been paid subsequent to year end.
134 Included in other liabilities are provisions aggrepating to Rs. 61.74 million (201%: Rs 61.74

million) in respeet of probable loss from pending litigation of the Company against Income Tax,
Sales Tax and Custom Authorities (the authorities). The above provisions have been made as per
the management’s best estimate against various demands raised by the authorities that are being
contested by the Company at various forums as explained i note 17,

209 2018
14 Mark-up accrued on borrowings {Rupees in "000)
Mark-up based borrowings from banking companies
- Long term loans - secuned 30,937 19,655
- Bhort term borrowings - secured 147,197 62,837
Mark-up based borrowings firom nod-banking companics
- Long térm loan from financial institution 21,796 5,101

Islamic mode af borrowings
- Short term borrowings - seeured 16,636 9,745
216,566 097,338
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2019 2018
15 Short term borrowings Move (Rupees in "000)
From hanking companies - secured
Running finance under mark-up amangements Juid 1,496,360 1.52%. 866
Finance against trust receipl %3 1873, 765 1,032,528
Caszh finance 154 463,455 -
Short term borrowings under Murahaba arvangement 153 280,001 397,892

4,113,581 2 060,286

From non banking companics
Short term bormowings from associated undertaking - trsecired 137 - 35, (0M)

4,113,581 2995 286
_—————————

15.1 Particulars of borrowings
Interest / mark-up based borrowings 1,786,491 2,597,394
Islamic mode of borrowings 327.090 3197 B9z
4,113,581 2995286
152 Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term running fnance  [acilities under mark-up
arrangements availed from various commercial banks aggregatng to R [506,72 million (2018;
Rs. 1,536 million). These facilities are seoured by way of equitsble mortgage charge on owned
shops, frechold land and building on freehold land of the Company, charge over all current assets
and fixed assels of the Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and camry
mark-up ranging from 12.05% to 16.86% (2018: 8.91% to 11.88%) per annum, payable monthly
and quarterly in arrears. These facilities are expiring on various dates (Latest by January 2020 and
maximum by September 20201,

153 Finance against trust receipt

This represents Finance Against Trust Receipt (FATE) available from commercial banks
aggregating to Bs. 2,763.95 million (20018; 1,454 million). These facilities are sccurcd against
charge over all current assets and  fixed assets of the Company and personal guarsntees of the
directors of the Company and carries mark-up eate ranging between 10.56% to 17.01% [201%:
R.66% to 12.94%) per annum pavable on maturity, monthly and guarterky in arrears. These
borrowings ure repayable on different dates staring from January 2020 o June 2020,

154 Cash finance

This represents utilized amount of cash finance facilities under mark-up armengermnents availed from
commercial banks agpregating to Rs. 475 million (2018: Rs. Nil). These facilities are secured by
way of Pledze of Company stock with 25% of margin, charge over all ¢ument assets of the
Company and personal guarantess of the directors of the Company and camy mark-up ranging from
16.36% to 18.54% (2018: Nil) per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, These facilities are expiving
on various dates (Latest by June 2020 and maximum by December 200200,
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155 Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents ulilized amount of Murabaha ¢ [stisna borrowings available from banks aggregating
to Rz 280 million (2018: Rs. 417 million). These facilities are secared against charge over-all
current assets and fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the
Coimpany and carrying mark-up rates ranging from 12.30% to 16.65% (2018: T.66% 10 12.41%) per
anmum payable quarterly in armears. These borrowings are repayable between April 2020 to June

15.6 Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter of crédits and guarantees as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
Rs. 1.526.43 million of which remaining umitilized amount was Rs, 890,18 million.

15.7 Short ferm borrowings from associated undertaking

This represents an interest free loan obtained from Poseidon Symergies (Private) Limited, an
associated undertaking, for working capital requirement and has been fully repaid during the year,

15.8 Subscquent ta the year end, the Company has availed the regulatory relief given by State Bank of
Pakistan through its BPRD circular letter no. 13 of 2020 defeming the principal pavments due
under facilities by 360 days with a resiriction imposed by financial institutions en Company for not
making dividend payvment during the period of relief,

159 Az per the financing arrangements, the Company is required to comply with cerfain financial
covenants and other conditions imposed by the providers of finance,

2019 2018
16 Current portion of long term liabilities Note (Rupees in "000)
Long term loans - secured & J15, 00 281,250
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease L 3,328 23,074
Deferred meome iz 5,048 6,116
403,976 310440

17 Contingencies and commitments

17.1 Contingencies

17.1.1 The Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi,
challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules relating to 2% extra
sales tax on certain home appliances. This is based on the view that the said vires are not applicable
on the Company,. The case is pending before the Honorable Sindh- High Court. An interim order
was received in favour of the Company, The Company is confident that no liability s expected to
occur. Amount involved is Rz 2480 million as of 31 December 2019 against which no provision
has been made as the Company, based on the fegal advisor's advice, is confident of a favorable
decision.
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During the financial vear 2014, the Company received a show canse notice from the Federal Board
of Revenoe (FBR) in rezpect of short pavment of 296 extra sales tix under the Sales Tax Procedures
Rules, 2007 as amended by SRO. 896(12013 dated 4 October 2013 and deduction of mput tax
more than the limit defined under section 8 read with chapter IV of Sales Tax Rules, 2006, The tax
authority in the said notice raised a demand of Rs. 1991 million and Rs, 11,15 million respectively
for the perind from | Jaauary 2004 1o 30 September 2004, The Company after consultation with its
tak advisors has téplied and submitted explanation with the tax authorities “along with revised
workings for the apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Company for the abowve period
was RBa. (L52 million (regarding the 2% extra sales 1ax matter, please refer the above paragraph):
Singe then, no further action has been initiated by the tax authorities,

The Company had cardier reeeived a sales tax recovery onder from the sales tax authorities
amounting 1o Bs. 195,63 million, for the financial vear ended 31 December 2010 against which the
Company had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A
had deleted one item while the remaining matters were set aside. Moreover, the management, based
on consultation with s tax adwvisor, 15 of the view that matter would be decided an favour of the
Company. However, CIR has filed an dppeal against Company on the matters of SRO 6472007
regarding input tax adjestments against 90% output tax and payment of sales tax on instalment
gales at the dme of receipt of instalment instead at the time when instalment sales are actually being
made for which no hearing has yet raken place. Amount mvolved is Bs. 17171 million. However,
hased on advice of legal consultant, management is of the view that that no potential lisbility is
expected to ocour.

17.1.2 Incime tax azsessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2007,
The Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax yedars from 2006 to 200110 Income tax
refund orders were carhier determined for the tax years 2000, 20100 and 2001, Income tax refund
was released for the tax year 2009, However, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue {ACTR)
amended the desmed assessed orders under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
for the tax yvears from 2009 o 2012 and raised additional income tax demand of Rs. 1998 million.
However, the Company had fled an application for the rectification of orders after which the net
tax additional demand was reduced to Rs, 2.02 million {after the adjustment of the refund of related
years) under sectiom 221 of the Income Tax Osdinance, 2001, Appeals have been Aled to
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against these orders,

Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated 29 June 2015,
where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and maintained
certain disallowances, The financial impact of the items set aside for reassessment and contmucd
disallowances amount to Rs. 4372 million. Appeal has been filed with Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against these isspes, The Company based on the merity of matters is of the view
that ultimate decisions are expecred in fis favour. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.13 The Finance Act, 20017 introduced a tax under section 34 of the Income Tax ordinance, 2000 on
every pubic Company other than a scheduled bank or Modarba, that derives profit for the tax year
and docs not dismibute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the ‘end of said ax
vear throwgh cash or bonus 1ssue. Under the earlier section fax was nol mandatorily leviable in case
the Companyv's teserves were not in excess of the pad up capital (which was the case with the
Company as it had accumulated losses). Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Rs. 9.35
million has not been pand as the Company’s management s of the view that the amendment was
made after the closure of Company's financial vear ended 31 December 2016 and for certain other
legal redsens. The Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High
Court at Karachi challenging the vires of Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and a stay
order has been granted against any coercive sction agaimst the Company under the newly inserted
Section SA.
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17.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), via order dated 30 April 2014, under section
161{1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a tax demand of
Bs. 023 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from 1] November 2013 to
30 April 2014 under section 236(C) and 236(H) of the aforesaid Ordinance. Company filed an
appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was remanded back to
DCIR. The Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR), which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.5 Daring the Gnancial yvear 20014, the Company received a notice by Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Zone 1 for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012, The Company filed an
appeal against the said notice before Honourable Lahore High Cowrt which was decided against the
Company and audit proceedings were initiated, The Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue issued
an amended assessment order under section 122(1) and 122(5) through which certain additions
were made and demand order was raised amounting to Rs. 48.10 million. Being aggrieved, the
Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the
above order which is pending adjudication.

17.1.6 During the financial yvear 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed penalty vide
order dated 27 April 2014 under section 182(1}) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting Bs.
0.91 millhon for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax return under section 114 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Appeals {CIR-A) against the above order. The CIR-A decided the matter against Company vide
order dated 25 March 2004, Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is
held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance:

1717 During the financial year 20135, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide order
dated 30 April 2015, under section 122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year
2000, raised an amended demand of Rs, 7.85 million after disallowing certain expenscs amounting
to Ra, 29,15 million. Company filed an appeal for the rectification of order before Commissioner
Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its order dated 30 December 2015 deleted certain
iterns amounting to Rs. 1994 million. ACIR has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate
provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.8 During the financial year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the
deemed assessed return vide its order dated 19 June 2017 under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2011, The ACIR disallowed cerfain cxpenses amounting to Bs
9,58 million and raised the additional income tax demand of Rs. 1.02 million. The Company filed
an ‘appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which is pending for
adjudication. However, adeguate provision is held in the unconsclidated financial statements in
respect of the above balance,

17.1.9 Dwring the financial year 2017, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an amended
assessment order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and certain: additions
were made due to non-deduction of withholding tax amounting Rs 122.54 million for tax year 2015.
The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Bevenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the
order where the Company was granted stay of tax demand, The CIR-A passed an order in which
demand against purchases and discounts have been deleted and amended demand of Rs. 33.85
million has been raised. Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) agamnst the order which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.
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17.1.10  During the financial vear 201%, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an
amended assessment order under section 122{1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 raising a tax
demand of Bs. 3041 million for the tax vear 2015 Being agprieved, the Company filed 4n appeal
betore Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the order. The CIR-A, via order
dated 27 July 2018, directed DCIR to apply minimum tax under section 113 at the rate of 0.2%
instead of 1% and remanded back the case to DCIR. Company filed an appeal before Appellate
Tribunal Tnland Revenue (ATIR) against the order which is pending adjudication.

17.1.11 During the financial year 2018, the Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 161 for the tax vear 2017 on non deduction of
withholding tax amounting to Rs. 6.03 million on payments apgainst purchase of plant and
machinery, packing material and other miscellancous payments. The Company filed an appeal
belore Commissioner Tnland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was remanded back o the
Department. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication.

17.1.12  During the financial year 201%. the Taxation Officer, after conducting andit under section 177 of
the Income Tax Ordimance; 2001 (the Ordimance} for the tax year 2014, passed an amended
pssessment order under section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs 25.29 million
alleging that the Company suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible expenses. Being
dggrieved, the Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A).
CIT Appeéal vide order, deleted cerlain additions amounting to Rs. B0 million and the rest of the
additions amounting to Rs. 26 million were confirmed. Hence nothing is outstanding or payable
agamnst the Company. The department filed an appeal before ITAT which is pending for
adjudication and a favorable outcome is expeeted.

17.1.13  During the financial vear 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue raised an order under
section 1617205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax amounting Ks. 645
million and Rs. 3,76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively, Company [led an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided against the
Company. The Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue {ATIR), which is pending for adjudication. However, adeguate provision 18 held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

17.1.14  Durnng the year, the Company received a show cause notice from Collector of Customs dated 05
April 2019 and respective order dated 17 October 2019 in which Company was directed to deposit
an amount of Rs. 14.70 million for ‘the consignment of Polymethylene polyphenylene isocynate
which was cleared through crmoncous application of 5RO 6592007 dated 30 June 2007. The
Company has filed an appeal agamst the-order which is in progress.

17.1.15 During the vear, a special customs reference was filed by before the Honorable Sindh High Count
Karachi against order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in
Company was directed fo deposit an amount of Bz £.32 million and penalty of Rs. 0.50 million
alleging that from July 20013 o June 2016 the Company imported two consignments of
Polyethylene Isocynates under PCT heading 3824 9091 wherein custom duty charged (@ (%% instead
of 20%:. The reference of the Company is under adjudication.




WSPL StandAlone FR 1019 Annual Report 2019

17.0.06  Dunng the year, & special customs reference was filed before the Honorable Sindh High Court
Karachi against order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in
Company was directed to deposit an amount of B=. 22.52 million and penalty of Rs, (.50 million
alleging that from July 2013 to June 2016 the Company imported two consignments of
Polyethylene Isocynates under PCT heading 3824 9091 wherein custom duty chorged @@ 0% instead
of 20%:u. The reference of the Company is under adjudication.

17.0.17  During the year, the Company received a show canse notice [rom Collector of Custorms dated 05
April 2019 and respective onder dated 17 October 2009 tn which Company was directed to deposit
an amount of Bz 942 million for the consignment of Polymethyiene polvphenylene isocymats
which was cleared through erroneous application of 8RO 659/2007 dated 30 June 2007. The
Company has filed an appeal against the order which is progress,

Based on the opmion of the legal and tax advisors bandling the above litigations, the management believes that
the Company has strong legal groonds against cach case and that no financial liability 15 expected to acone.
Accordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of cemain cases of the Company) has been
made in these unconsolidated financial statements,

17.2 Commitmenis

1721 Commitments, for the import of stock in trade, outstanding at year end were for Rs. 31939 million
(2018 R 24788 million).

17.2.2 Commitments, for capital expenditure, apainst irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at vear end
were for Bs. 1.0% million (2008; Bs, 14,33 million),

18 Property, plant and equipmeni

Diperating fixed assets 18! 4623877 4 2R2 533
Right of use assels f&.! 169,393 ’
Capital work-in-progress f&2 46,204 33,507

4,969,474 4,316,040
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Had there been no revaluation of the freehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery therein,
the net book value as of 31 December 2019 would have been as follows:

Land
Buildings
Plant and Machinery

2019

2018

(Rupees in "000)

2,364,500 2,364,500
400,371 393,326

1,433,154 -

4,198,025 2 757.826

The latest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2019 by Asil Associates (Private) Limited. As per
the revaluation report, forced sale value of frechold land, butldings on free hold land and plant and
machinery was Bs. 2,128 million, Rs. 344 70 and Rs. 1.433.93 million respectively.

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Total area Covered area

Locati L £l bl

Aon Gt e e (Kanals) {Square Feet)
O-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Head OfTice and 61,50 340,134
Road, Lahore. manufaciuring facility
Dina MNath, Mouza Rakh Manufacturing facility B.45 18,069
Seral Cheenba, Tehsil
Pattoki, Dhstrict Kasur,
Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows;

201% 018

MNote
Cost of sales 28.1
Marketing, selling and distribution costs 29
Administrative expenses a0

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at 01 January
Additions during the year
Transfers during the year
Balance as at 31 December

Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:
- Building

- Plant and machinery

- Electric installation

- Advance against purchase of land

(Rupees in "000)

134,887 108,080
50,321 16,343
41,983 33,327

127,191 157,750
33,507 86363

266,959 128,853

(254,262) {181,709}
46,204 33,507
4,851 3,770
35845 18,400
5,508 B

- 10,182
46,204 33,507
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e 2018
Nt {Bupees in B0y
1% Intangible =xsets pnd gosdwill
Softwine EL B AT
Goadwill 1,070,206 1,070,206
Bramif valge 1,582,147 1,582,147
Cissboenser relatianships 245919 -
ol 2,937,561 2hR0 03]
190  HeconcHiation of carrving amounts
Cusiamer
Deseription Saftware Crondweill Brand valae relidheu iy Tatal
{(Rupees in ")
Lot
Balance at 01 Janaary 2018 49,761 1070, 16 1582147 - 2702114
Additions durmng the year 27,406 - - - 27,406
Balance a&ar 31 Docember 2018 F167 100, 1382147 - 2729330
Transfer from mvestinend in
subsidiary - mose 21,31 - - - AhL2ED 26l 280
Additicing during the year 11,683 - - - i1,682
Balance at 31 December 2019 HE B0 LT, 20 1,5B2147 161,180 JAi4m
nlatr e '
impairaent fisses
Balance at 6 January 2018 (31045 - - - (31045}
Amartizaiion for the yeur (4,444 - - - {4k}
Balance at 31 Drecember 2018 (40,25 - - - (40,489}
Arnartization lor the year (2071} - - {15,330 (24 1}
Balance at 31 December 2019 {49,560) - - {15,570 (i, 31|
Carrying amounmils;
At 31 December 2018 Jh GTH 1,070, ik 1,582,147 - 2480031
Al 3 December 2HY 39,284 107, 200 152147 H581% 2,937,561
Hates of amoriization'nselul life S-10 vears il Nil HLS years

192 Goodwill and ather intangible assels acquired in business combination

Effective 01 July 2007, Waves Sunger Pakisean Limited (“the Company™) completed a “Scheme of Arrangestem’ a5 approved by the
Honarakbs Sindh High Coart throvgh ide Ovdes daged 22 bday X018 for the amaleamation of Cool Indostries {Privaiel Limited [CIPL]
and Link Wel (Private) Limited [LWPL] wath mnad mdo the Cosapany and démerger of refail businsss - from the Company and
amalgamate the snme. mio 1he subsidiary. The excess amownt paid over ihe fair valee of the net assels of CIPL and-LWPL on its
acyuisition &= of the stan of business on 01 July 2017 represents: goadwall. The fir valaation exercise of the recorded tanpible ssets
and labilities wias completed at the tmme of seguisinon resulting o recopmisen of provisional goodeall amounbing o R 287512
millsen whach, after completion of exercise for determination of separalely wentifinble assets, has been alleestedd o Cioodwill'
ammouiling b B 000,21 millon, Bramd value smounting 1o R 158215 milbion and "Customers relations’ amounting 1o s 32277
il (amsontized value! Ka 24592 million) inbise with the requiremens ol Entervational  Accouming Standard 38, (LAS-38)

1921 Impairment testing

The recoverable amaunt of goodwill inchading intangivle nssets (b voliee and costomer relationships} acquired throngh a busimess
combmatien hos been fested for impaimment o5 @l 31 December 2019, by allocming the amount of goodwill and inzngble assels o
Fespective asiéts an whech it arcse, bused an vatee in uge in accondance with 1AS 36 “lmpaarment of Asees”. The recoversble amount
was caloulated on the basis of five vears business plan approved by the Boant of Directors which inchides a comprebensive analisis of
eabiting eperaisenl deplvyments of the Company along with sirafepic business plins and  Bussess prowithe. The value in use
calcuksisons are based on cash Now projections derived from aforesadd business plan, which have been exirapolased bevond five yeass,
by using & steady 3.000% prowth rate; The cash flows aee discounted using 8 disconnt rate of 1330% (posdwilly wnd 15,200
(intangifbles) for use in calculation of value inuse which is sengitive 1o discoant raie and bocal inflation rates, Based on this caleulation
no impairment is regoined to beé accounted for apains the carmyimg amount of geodwill and other intangible nssets

20 2018
9.3  Amartisation for the vear bos been altocnied s follows: Wi {Rupees in '00M0)
Marketmg, sellmg and distribsticn costs 2 15,370 T34
Aulminigirative expenses I w071 1.4

24441 0,445
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i1 18
0 Investment properiy (Hopees in 000)
Balance as at 01 Jamuary 178300 173,501
Additions during the year St b -
Disposals during the vear {7800 -
Fair valug gain = 4,794
Balance as at 31 December 220,500 178,300

The Company has rented out the owned shops to its subsidiary Company | Elecironic Marketing Company (Private)
Limited ), Balance az of 31 December 2019 comprized of shops of Rs, 220,30 millien (2008 R= 173,50 million) and
revaluation gain of Be. MNil (2018: Re4.20 million) based on the revalaation / fair value of the owned shops determined
on 31 December 20019, Had there been any fair valone change, that would have been recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit of loss as Other income" as refermed 1o in note 32,

Rent income of B 5.96 milion (2018: Rs 4.08 million) has been recognized on the above property during the year
ended 31 December 2019, Agreements for the rent are valid up to 10 years and are renewable. Surplus on revaluation
of the ahove propertics amounting to ®s, 14997 million a5 of 31 December 2009 continnes to be maintained in the
“Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment” mentioned in note 7 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

The fair vahie of invesiment properlies ag of 31 December 2019 has been determined by an external independent
property valuer W/s Asif Associates (Private) Limited based on indépendent inguiries from active local realtors, recent
experience in the location and the records of the valuer. The fair value measurement of the investment property had
been cateporized as a level 3 fair value based on the mput to the valuation technique used.

2019 2018
21 Investment In subsidiaries Nowte: { Rupees in "0}

Electronics Marketing Company { Private) Limited - at cost
50,000 000 {201 8: 25, 000,000% fully paid ordinary
shares of B, 100 éach 211 S040,000 250,006
Equity held: 100% {2018: 100%)
Chief Executive Officer - Nadcom Mahmood Butt

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited
[ OO0 2018 100,008} fully paid ordinary
shares of Ks. 10 each S 323 1,00 323,769
EE[U:H}' eld; PO (200 1%
Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

501,000 573,769

210 Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited (EMCPL), 8 wholly owned subsidiary, was: incorporated on
9 September 2006, The principal activity of the subsidiary Company is to carry out distribution ! wholesales
and retail business of all kinds of electronic appliances, its components and accessories efc, The registered
office of the subsidiary Company i logated at Shop No. 3, Ganga Ram Mansion Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam
(Mall Road), Lahore, Punjab.

1.2 Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL). & wholly owned subsidiary, wis incorporated on 10 April 2017,
The principal activity of the subsidiary Company was tm carmy oot busincsses of distribirtors, marketers,
merchants, wholesalers: retailers, traders, indentures, stockicst, supplicrs, agent for product of manufacturers
of other principals, local or foreign. The registered office of the subsidiary Company is lecated at 153 A,
Model Town, Lahore,
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21.3  Movementof investment in WMPL Note 2019 2018
(Rumnees in *001)
Balance as al 01 January 323,769 323,769
Impairment charge during the vear a1 {61 480) =
Transfer of customer relations to intangibles assets 2150 {261, 289) -
Balamee as at 31 December 1.0 323,769

21.3.1 Previousty, the Company wsed tosell products through its subsidiary company to avail the henefit of extra rax
under Rule 59 of Sales Tax Special Procedures Rule, 2007, Through SRO, 694012019 the electronic products
are now taxable at retail price under third schedule, Resultantly wee.f. 01 Tuly 20019, the Company has starred
1o transaet directly with the dealers:in light of new dealership agreements signed by the Company and the
channel of subsidiary company as been ehiminated. This represents that subsidiary’™s resources has been
transferred to the Company with no consideration and consequently the un-amortized portion of customer
relationships which were previcesly classified wmder mwvestment in subsidiary have been transferred to
intangible assets in standalone finaneial statements. The remaining amount has been tested Tor impairment and
impairment of Rs. 61 48 million has been charged in thése unconsolidaed financial stmements.

019 2018
{Rupees in "0}
X1 Long term deposits
Depoyits
= leases 5373 2,752
= other long term deposits 3,188 | 427
8.561 4.179
13 Siock-In-trade
R aned packing materials
- in stores {in hand) 771,111 637,537
= in bonded warehouse 231 648,357 341,054
= in transit 285,283 639419
1,704,751 1618010
Work in prociess 112851 164.84]
Finisfed goods
- g manufactured 232 & 234 1,053,251 950,659
- purchased for resale - 287 668
1,053,251 1,238.327
Provision for slow moving and damaged stock 233 (29.868) (29568
2,940,985 2801310

231 Stock amounting to Re. 22491 million (2018: Rs. 65.63 million) was cleared subsequent to the year end.

23.7  Finished goods having cost of R, Nil (2008: Rs, 424,16 million) have heen written down by Rs. Mil (2018
Rs. 5.34 million} to its net realizable value

233 Finished goods having cosi of Rs. 498 28 million (2018 Rs. Nil) were pledged ‘against fnancial facility
obtained as referred in note 154,
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2018

24 Tracle debis e {Rupees in "(M00)
4.1 Retail metwork - unsecured
Considered doubeiul 166,993 166,993
Los= allowance against trade debis 245 {16k, 993) [ 166,953}
242 Whaolesale - unsecured
Dhaalers
Considered good 24.3 3,239,794 1,982,771
Conzidered doubtful - 13,821
3,239,794 2,016,592
Loszz allowance agmnst trade debis 2.5 - (33.521)
3,230,794 1,982,771
243 This includes related parties from whom the debis are due and their ageing is as under;
Less than 6 Greater than & 2019 018
months months
Rupees "(H0
Waves Marketing (Private)
Lirmated {WMPL) 4di, 534 AR5 906 932 440 1,101,515
Elcctronies Marketing Company
{Private) Limited (EMCFL) 321,146 342 Bdn (03, 992 633,708
To7.h80 H18,752 1,596,432 1,735,223
244 Maximum ouistanding balance with reference to month end halances:
2019 2018
in the Rupees In the Rupees
month of im "0 month of i R
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WhPL) Jun-19 2,149,341 May-18 T35
Electronics Marketing Company (Privale}
Lamited {EMCPL) Jun-14 1,395,702 Dec-18 607,321
o1y 2018

245  Movement in loss allowance against trade dehts

Balance as at 01 January

Effect of initial application of [IFRS-2
Lioss allowimnce For the vear
Prowvision reversed dunng the vear
Balance as at 31 December

{Ruopees in (00}

200814 190420
- [L3RE

{33,821} -

166993 200514
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19 2003
25 Advances, deposits, prepayments and ather receivables Mage {Rupees n "0O@}
Adhvamces - considered good
- Employees and excoutives 25 4,748 6,527
- Suppliers D966 5054
- Against betier of credit 52180 4,107
i, B9 15,688
Llepusits
- Shops and leases 18,974 1 8,065
- Customs - 5,751
- Others - 621
1H,974 24451
Prepayments T332 Tl
iher receivahlcs
= Claims 52 1,642 13201
- Sales tax refundable 16,031 BT7.928
- Recervable from subsidiary companics 233 871,127 26138
- Dividend income receivable R =
1189800 1026267
Loz nliowances ajpminst ether receivables 254 (2,342 {11.572)
5.5 | 558 1,062,155

251 AL 3] December 2019, the advances due from excoutives amounted to Ra 37 million (2018 Rs0.12 malhon), The
maxinum aggregate amoant of advances doe from executives at the end of any month during the year was Bs 0057 million
(2018 Re 0,29 million )

157 This represents claims receivable from meurance companies, suppliess and product claims amounting o Bz 2 64 million
(2018: Rs. 12.20 million} agninst which provision of Bs. 234 millvon (2008: Bs. 11.57 muliion) 15 held.

253 This represents amounts due from subsediary compantes, on account of expenses allocated to them ( incwred on their behalf m
accordance 1o 8 basis approved by the Boond of Direclors of the Company.  The balance 13 ansecured and recervable on
dermsnd.

21531  Ageing of the receivable is as under:

Less than & Greater than & 2019 2018
mixniks minnths
Ropees "080
Waves Marketing (Private)
Limmited {WhPL) - 550,711 558,712 353,388
Electronics Marketing Company
{Privare) Limitad {EMOPL) 40,617 270, 7RR 311,405 5T 750
40,617 H30,510 #71.127 936,138
2532 Maximom outsianding halance with reference to monih end balanees:
200w 008
In the manth of Rupeesio 000 Inthe month of  Ripess in T
Waves Marketing {Private) Lirdted | WMPL}) Dee-19 559,722 [Dec-1% 353 58K
Electromes Marketrg Company {Prvate)
Limated {EMLCTL) Dee-1% 311405 Dec-18 STL,T50
2019 2%
254 Movement in loss allowance agalnst other receivables {Rupees i "000}
Balénce as-at 01 January 11,572 L1572
Loss albowance for the year - -
Reviersal of loss allowance (59,2303 -
Balamce as at 3 December 142 11,5792

155 All the above balamces are interest free and unsecured other than in note 25.3
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2019 2015
26 Cash and bank balances Nate {Rupees in "000)

Balances with banks

= il CUrTent accoumnts 26, 111,524 34,221

- in profit and loss sharing account 2.2 - 401,349

111,524 74,5700

Cash m hand 26.3 4,820 16,0910

116,344 Q{1,660

26.1 These include bank - accounmt of Rs 0.3] million (201%; Rs (K31} mamtained uvnder Shariah
compliant arrangement,

6.2 Rate of retum on saving accounts is Nil (2018: ranged from 3,5% to 5%) per anmum.

26.3  This includes cash in transit of Bs. Wil (200 8: Rs. 9,25 million).

2019 201%
27 MNet revenue (Rupees in ")
Sulen
- local 10,093,816 % %39 696
= EXport 18,160 14,186
Sales retumn (42,966) (17.988)
10,069,010 BH35E%4
Sales tax (1,126,652) (966,824)
Trade discount (2,123.952) (1879460
(3.250,604) (2,8546,284)
6,818, 406 S.989.610

271 Revenue from contracts with customers relates to both local (Pakistan) and foreign (Afihanistan)
markets and represents sale of domestic consumer produets,

2019 2018
28 Cost of sales Nate {Rupees in "000)
Choentng stock - fintched ooy
- o manufactured 950,659 1,025,714
- purchased for resale 287 668 192,055
1,238,327 4 By s L
Purchases 102,608 659,215
Cost of goods manufactured 28.1 5,665,584 4,800,150
7,006,519 6,677,134
Cloging stock - finished goods
- own manufaciured (1.053.251) (950.659)
- purchased for resale - (287, 668)

{1,053,251) (1,238,327)

Less: Export rebaie - (54}
5953268 5438753
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2019 2018
28.1 Cost of goods manufactured Mae (Rupees in ")

Baw and packing materials and stores consumed 5018674 4110226
Salaries, wages and other benefits . 371,963 AR1 298
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 14 134,887 108,080
Fuel and power 88,223 67,215
Freight charges 49,197 5,645
Insurance expense T.636 8,433
Repairs and maintenance 22,740 32,117
Printing and stationery 15,248 6,183
Provision against slow meving and damaged stock 23.3 - -
Travelling sand conveyance 3.562 3,298
Rent, rates and taxes - 46,736
Cominumication D46 BRE
Entertainment 518 128

5,713,594 4,503,043
Work-in-process
Orpening stock 164,841 el 946
Closing stock {212,851) (164,841 )

(45.010) (2.895)

Cost of goods manufactured 5,665,584 4 800,150

28.1.1 These include reversal / provision of Rs. (7.63) million (20018: Bs. 2.84 million), Rs. (8.52) million
(2018: Rs LB+ mullion) and Bs, 1026 million (20018 Ra. 9.5] million) in respect of gratuity, pension
and provident funds rezpectively,

2019 201%

29 Marketing, selling and distribution costs Mote (Rupees in ")
Salanes and benefits 201 99,141 63,891
Rent, rates and taxes 17,27 24524
Publicity and sales promoticn 36,020 28976
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1814 50,321 6,343
Warranty obligations 44,586 7718
Uitilities i, 040 4,875
Printing and stationery 9749 3071
Travelling and convevance 14,729 TA454
Amaortisation of mtangible assets I3 15370 1236
Communication 3a0 3670
Repair and maintenance 1,148 154
Training and sundries - 621
Insurance expense z.247 344
Oithers S92 261

288824 |68 438

9.1 These include reversal / provision of Rs. (2.94) million (20018: Bs. 2.4 million), Bs. (3.28) million
(2018: Rs. 1.55 million) and Rs. 4.95 million {2018: Rs. 2.16 million} in respect of gratuity, pension
and provident funds respectively.
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2019 2008
A0 Administrative expenses MNoe (Rupees in "000)

Salaries and benefits S 6,044 3LaT
Legal and professional charges 21,969 38,0010
Auditors” remuneration .3 4,169 3,790
Depreciation on property; plant and equipment 1814 41,983 33,327
Commumication 7302 2537
Travelling and conveyance 8,234 2,991
Repair and maintenance 1.440 Bl
Litilieies 5970 1.70%
Printing and stationery 3,129 1.876
Fent, rates and taxes 494 321
[msurance expense 5352 1306
Entertainment expense 2,054 424
Fees and subscription 5,693 i
Amortisation of intangible assets 193 9071 F909
Charity and donations 2 S61 470
Others 1629 355

195,144 125,613

3.1  These inchide meversal ¢ provision of B (117 mitlion (2018; Rs, 2.4 million). Rz (1.31) million
(201%: Rs. 1,55 million) and Rx. 3.33 mallion (2008 Rs. |87 million) in respect of gratuity, pension
and provident funds respectively.

3.2  None of the donations were made to an entity in which any director or his ! her spouse had an interest.

2019 2018
(Rupees in "G00}
3.3 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee 2,750 2,500
Fee for the review of interim financial information 424 AR5
Fee for the review of code of corporate governance and
other certifications ! reports under agreed upon procedures 52 0
Out of pocket expenses 644 385
4,169 3,790
31 Other expenses Moe 2019 201%
(Rupees in "000)
Provision for doubtful debis and others assets - net - 10,348
Woikers' profits participation fund (WPPE) 132 32,313 27.33]
Exchange loss - net 33,796 44,459
Research and development expenditure 4,097 3,637
fmpairment on investment in subsidiany 2.3 61,480 -
ljarah rentals - 1.447
Workers' welfare fund 9,243 AL
Loss on propesty, plant and equipinent and equipment
- die to fire - hH3E
- due 10 disposal - 5,550
Other cxpenscs 5,799 -

146,728 108,768
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209 2018
32 (mher income Nore (Rupoees in "004)
Income from financial axsers
Profit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance 4 24
Income from non-financial instraments
Cinn on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
investment property - net 1,940 -
Lnrealized gain on fair value measurement of investment propeny 210 - 4,799
Beversal of provision pgainst doubtfsl trade debts 33,821 :
Dividend income il a0, 0 i), 000
Mark-up on receivahles from subsidiary companies g2 129,186 79,797
Rental income 20 5,053 4 DR
Service income and others - 6,379
Lizbilitics no longer payable wnitten back 9062 21,134
Secrap sales 7,107 408
Amortisation of deferred income Iz 6,117 6.322
Cthers . T0
953,186 665, 989
953,100 666,013

32.1 This represents dividend income from Waves Marketing {Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, Out
of this, Bs, 360 million has been received,

F2.2  This represents mark-up charged against net amount receivable from the subsidiary companies. Mark-up is
caleulated at an average quarterly bormowing rate of the Company. The quanterly borrowing rate is applied
on the outstanding balance receivable that exceeds the credit period of 30 days,

2019 208
33 Finance costs Mot (Rupees in "000)
lelamic mode of financing
- Shott term borrowings 49,507 25,420
Interest ¢ mark-up o inferest © mork-tp baved loons
- Long term loans 183,524 H3.805
- Short term bormowings 546,001 273,932
- Finance lease 25570 6,825
Interest on workers' profits participation fund - AER
Bank charges 21,606 32034
RB26,208 423474
14  Taxation
Current:
- for the year 341 29,800 5,497
- prior year - (5,649)
209800 {152)
Deferred;
- Froup faxation - {B6,4300
- othery i 71,449 23.490
71.449 {62.940)

101.249 (63.092)
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3.1 The Company has opted for Group taxation and the Groop taxation has been determinéd under
‘Minimum Tax on Turnover” under section |13 aof the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The current tax
includes tx under the final tax regime amounting to Rs, 5,92 million (2014; Ra. 5.50 million).

M1 Tax charge reconciliation

Mumerical reconciliation betwesn lax expense and accounting profit;

X9 2018
(Rupees in "000)

Profit before tax 361,334 IR9.577

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 20% (2018! 2094) 104,787 FLZEFT

Tax effect of permanent differences:
- Inrespect of differential under normal and  final { minimum

tax regime 115416 (6,845)
- Exempt income dividend from subsidiary (exempt due
to group taxation) (198, 400) {1 56, 600)
- (iher permanent differences (163) {136}
Tax credit : {41.742)
Change in tax rate 43,103 (4%,5326)
Prior year tax charge - 55,164
Oithers 29,506 22616
101,249 (63,002)

3.3  In prior years, the Company has not recorded provision for minimom tax ander the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance) amounting to Rs: 44.60 million and Rs: 1510 million in respect of year
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2015 respectively as the management expects to adjust
the same against its future tax liability under the normal tax regime withim the time limit as specified
for adjustments of mmimum Ex in the Ordinance. Similarly for the year ended 31 December 2016,
prowision for Allernate Corporale Tax (ACT) (bemng higher than the minimum fax) amounting to Rs.
23,07 has also not been recorded on the same hasis,

35 Earnings per share - hasic and diluted

The calculation of carnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on camings attributable to the owners of
ordinary shares of the Company.

Mo figure for diluted camings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments
garmying options which would have an impact on carnings per share when exercised.

Company's earnings per share have been calculated as follows:

2019 2018
(Restated)
Prafit fior the year Rupees in 000 2al.085 452 669
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Shares 187,604 LE7.604

Eamings per share - basic and diluted Rupees 1.39 2441
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42

Fimancial instruoments

The Company's Board of Directors (“the Board™) has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the
Company's nisk management framework, The Board has developed a risk policy that sets oot fundamentals of tisk
management framework, The Company has exposure to the following risks from its wse of financial instriments:

= Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk

This note presénts information about the Company's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Company’s
abjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing sk, and the Company™s management of capital.

42.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
Company by failing to discharge.an obligation.

42.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Company anses principally from trade debts, advances, deposits, other recetvables and
bank balances, The carmying amount of financial assets represents the maximum eredit exposure,

The camrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure
to eredit risk before any credit enhancements at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

2019 2018
(Rupees in "(003)
Security deposity 27.535 22 e
Trade debis 3,230,704 1982 771
Oither receivables 1,171,427 926,767
Balances with banks 111,524 74 570
4,550,280 3006977

42.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arses when o number of copnter parties are engaged n similar business
activities or have similar economic features thar would canse their abilities 1o meet contractoal obligation
to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions, Concentration of credit
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance for developments affecting a particular
industry, Oul of total receivable, 96% (2018: 96%) relates to regeivable from subsidiary companies.
Maximum exposure to credit nsk by type of counterparty is as follows:

Net receivable

{net of provisions)
2019 2014
(Rupees in "000)

Trade dehiy

- athers 1,643,362 247548
- suhsidiary companics 1,596,432 | 725223
Securily deposits

- individuals 22.162 19,835
- lease 85373 3,034
Other receivable from subsidiary Company 1171127 026, | 38
Insurance Company (claims) ] 629
Banks 111,524 74,570

4,550,280 3006977
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42.1.3 Credit guality and impairment

Credal quality af Enencial agseis 9 sgsesind by rolerencs to external cnedst ratings, whers available, of bistoncad mformision shoud
thve counterparty defoult rates. ALl counterpamees. with the exception of customers, have extermal credit ratings desermaned by
varices credit mting ogendies and other regulntory authonties, Credil guolity of oastomer is sssessed by refensnce to historical
default rates and present ages

42 1.3l Coumierparties witl xternel credif ratings

Theesie tnclisde hankmg conpantes: amd fnameial imstotions, which sre counterparties 1o Bank balances and deposite. Credit risk s
conssdered minamal ps these eoumierpanies have rezsonably high credii mifings as determined by vanous crédif tating apencics.
Thee o fong stnnding business relationships with fhese coumterpartics and considering their srong financial standing, manngement
dused ot expect non-porformance by these comterparties on thesr ohligations G the Compnny. Following are the éredil rtings of
commterparties with extemnal eredit ratings:

Rating Shart Lang e 2018
Banks Ageney term term (Rupees in ")
AlHaraka Bank {Pakistan) Limited FACHA Al A L1 ] 2
Alliex] Bank Limibed FACEA Al AAA 10,2500 1,313
Askan Bank Limited PACRA A~ AA+ T 2.964
Hank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al= AAE 4068 ER N
Bank Eslami Pakistan Liinited PACRA Al A+ 1 21
Thi Bunk of Khyber PACRA Al A 13,525 214
The Bark of Pugjab PACRA Al AN 4894 1K15
Duthag Islumac Bank Limited RIS Al= A 51 165
Fuysnl Hank Limitesd ICR-VI5 Al= LY. 1295 | 328
Finea Microfimancs Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al 4 3950 -
Halib Bank Limited ICR-VIS Al+ AdA 21,870 45018
Habib Metropoliten Bank Limized PACRA Al= A 36 236
15 Bank Limite] PACRA A= A 4 4
MCH Bank Limited PACRA Ad= AAA 1973 TaT
Fleeram Bank ICR-WI15 Al AA+ a8 20
Maticmal Bank Of Pakistan FACHA Al= AAA 42459 192
Silk Bank Lumited JCR-AIS Al A- 393 393
Semeri Bank Lindted FACEA Al A iR L6
Seandard Chortered Bank (Pakisem) Limited PACRA A= AAA 1111 1211
United Bank Limited ICR-VIS Al+ AdA 1300 4621
111,524 T45T0
Securin D :
The Bank of Tunjab PACHA Als A oy 282
Askan Bank Limited FACEA e Ad 2412 3
Sinelh Lessing Company Limited ICR-VIS At Al Ffin-r s Tl
5473 3034
116897 1604

431308 Couperpartics withouy extermal crediy rofings

These include customers: which are counter parizes oorade debis, The Company's exposune 1o credit risk {5 inflogsced maimly by
thr malividual characicrisncs of cach customer | dealers. Major portion of sales made (o customers ane 1o the sebsidiary companics.
As explained in node 4,125 and 419, the Compuny applics the IFRS % simplified spproach o messure expected credi losses, The
analysis of ages of rde debts and loss allowance usimg the aforementioned approach was determined as fallows:

2019 201K
Ceross Impalrment loss Giross _ Imppirment loss
------- (Rupees ln ) - - - - - - - - === - - - (Rupeze in W00} - - - - - -~
Mo yer due TT3, 903 - B4, 714 -
Past due 1 = W) daye 695 644 . U5 873 -
Tast due 31 days < 5 days 847,407 - G50, 454 .
Past due %1 - 180 days 1009951 - A5, 1t -
Paat due 188 - 3ol daye 102,909 - 15,4007
Paat due by more tian | year 166,503 Tiva, 243 347 kB4
Teal 3,406, THT 146,593 21,183 SRS 2RI

The masagement has esiablished a credit policy under which each pow customer is analyvsed individially for credit worthiness.

mane of the fnuncel assets of the Company ane secured or impaired excepl a5 those menbioned i thess onoonsolidated Rnsncial giadements,
Dieposits and sdlver recervables are mostly due from subsidiary companics, banks and individoals. Based on past experence the management
believes that no impairment allowance is neces=ary in respect of these financial ssacts. There are ressonable. grounds @ beliewe that these amoumnis:
willl be recovered in short course of time,
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423 Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that changes in markel proice. such as foreign exchange riles, mterest rates amd equity prices
will effect the Company's income or the value of its haldings of financial instrumenis, The Company is exposed to
currency, risk and interzst rate risk.

4231  Currvency risk
The Company i expesed to carrency risk to the extent thar there is 3 mismaich between the currencies in which sales
and purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Company. The functional corrency of

the Company is Pak Rupee. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are Buros and U3
didLars.

42.3. 1w} Exposure (o chrremcy risk

The Company is mainly exposed to cummency sk on impoit of raw materizls and merchandise denomingted in US
dodlars. The Company's exposure 1o foreign currency nsk at the reporting date is as follows:

09 18 pAl L 2018
(Rupees in ")
Trade creditors (LISTY im "OHMD} RE9 2180 133,274 303238
Trade creditors (Euro in "0 - 14 - 2227
Off balance sheet ftemy
Cutstanding letters of credit (USD im "0(MY) 2056 1.782 3159“?4 247.876
Oustanding letters of credit (Enro in ") f - 1.088 -
Foltowing significant exchange rates have heen applied:
Average rate Reporting date Spot rate

2009 2018 209 2018
LSD e PKR 150,14 121.62 155.15 136, 10
EUR to PKR 168,02 143.35 174,00 159,10

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 0% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other varizbles held
constant, profit for the year would have been lower by the amoumt shown below, as a result of net foreign exchange
enin on tenslation of foreign currency bills payables.

e 2018
{Rupees in “(40)
Effect on staterment of profit or loss 13,327 30,547

The weakening of the PER by 10% against U'S Dollar would have had an equal bul opposite impact on the profit for
the year,

The mmitivil}' analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the wyear and liabilities of the

Company.
423.2 Interest rate risk
Interest mate nsk i the risk that far values or fufure cash ows of a Grancial mstroment will Oectuste bechnse of

changes in interest rates. Sensitivity 10 interest rate risk anses from mismatch of fnancial assets and financial
labilities that matare or re-price in-a given period,
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d2.3.2(a) Fair valae sensitivity analysis for fived rate insiruments

423 2(l

The Company does nol account for any. fixed rate financial assets and liabilies @ Bar value through statement of
profit or loss. Theretore o change in inferest rate at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss.

Mismaich of interest rave sensiiive financiol assers and Treanciel Bebiliies

The Company's tnterest  mark-up and non-interest / mark-up bearing bearing fnancial mstruments as al the reporting
date are as fiolloes:

2019
Carrying Interest hearing /| Non-interest
amonnt variable bedring / fixed
rate financial rate financial
instruments instruments
(Rupees in "000)
Financial avsets
Secunty depogits 17,535 - IT.535
Irade debts 3,239,794 - 3,239,794
Other receivables 1,171,427 871,127 308,300
Cash and bank balances 116,344 - 116,344
4,555,104 871,127 3,683,973
Einagnoial tabilites
Loog term louns - secured (1,732,271} (1,732,271} -
Lease fnbilities {263, 148) {263, 148) -
Employee retirement benefits {23,08K) - {23,08R)
Trade and other payables {11946, 1 340y - {1, 1%6,1 30}
Mark-up accrued on borrowings (216,566 (216,564)
Short terim borrowings = secured and urgecured (4,113,581) (4,113,581} -
(7,544,784 (i, 1009, 0HNy (1,435,784
(2,959, 684) {5.237,873) 2,245,159
2018
Canrving Interesi bearing / Mon-interest
gmount variahle bearing
rute froarcial finumcial
mstruments mstruments
Financial assers { Rupecs mn 1040} —_—
Secunty deposits X2 864 - . i
Trade debts 1982771 - 1,982,771
Oither receivihles 926, T6T ¥26 138 h24
Cash and bank balance M1 a6 41,349 50,311
3023067 Gin, 457 2,056,580
Fi Jatl Babilities
Long term loans - secured (1,013,521} {1.013.521) -
Liahilities against assets subject to finance lease (65 528} {65,528} =
Emploves retirement benefit {42 480} - (42 450}
Trade and other pavahbles (15518100 (.55 L5107
Mark-up accried on borrowings (97338} - (9733}
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured (2,505 286 (2,995 286) -
(3.765.961) (4074335} [ LG9 1.628)
{2,742,895) (3,107 84K} 34052
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42.3.,2.1 Effective interest / mark-up rates for the financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

2019 2018
Percentage
Financial liabilities
Long term loans - secured 12.60% to 16.86% 9.16% to 13.40%
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 11.00% to 17.09% 2.43% to 14.07%
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured 10.56% to 18.54% 7.66% 10 12.94%

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
{decreased) profit for the yvear by Rs, 61.33 million (2018: Rs. 40.34 million). This analysis assumes
that ‘all other variables; in particular foreign currency tales, remain constant, The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018,

41.33 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or fumure cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk). At reporting date the Company did not have financial instruments exposed to other
price risk,

424 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value 15 the price that would be received (o sell an assel or paid o transfer a hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants al the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumiption thal the Company is a going concern
without any miention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are
based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market
prices used for financial assets held by the Company is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service. or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurming market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measorements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements, The Tair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date (level 1).

- Inpuis other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability {level 3).
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4241 The fodlowimg tahbe shows the carrying amomis and fuar values of firarcial instroments and non- fmencisl isstnosests meluding therr leveds in the fuir value heemrckae:

On-halance sheet finnocial instruments

31 December X019
Carrying Adsini Falr valint
Financial aseets Other Mnamcial
FEiTo Ny Tatal Laeved I Level 3 Lavel 3
ol anmwnriied cos Habiliries
{Rugrses In N0}
Limavicial axiers - antartisd oo
Siguriiy deposiie 17,535 - IT.535 - - -
Tradie debis 3230, Ty - 3,239, 7 - - -
Caher récelvnbles LAT1ALT - LITEHA2T - - -
Caah ond Bank kabimces 116344 - 116,344 - - -
4,555,180 - 4,555,100 - - -
Fimoaclal = Ha
|oerg 1erm. boars - secured - 1,732,171 1,732171 - - -
| iabileties agningt assets subgect 1o fisance lense - 23148 63,148 - - -
Faonploves retivement hengk - 23088 13 1% - - -
Tade and oehir pavabis - 1,1 A0 1,196,130 - - -
M- acgrued on bommowmgs - 116,566 116,566 - - -
Bhitet ferm borrowisgs - secunad and mnsecured - 4,113,581 4,113,581 - - -
- T.544. THd T.544, TR - - -
Om-halnmee sheel Anancial stromens
31 Decenher 3018
Carpying Asmint Fair vahie
Lawins: ane] Orher financisl T - =
peeivabies sseis ! akiliies o Lawich ESEY S boat
{Rupses m THHI
Security ez L1 He - i - - -
T detts |92, T - 1982771 - - -
Onher receivabes 916,767 - 926,767 - - -
Cashand hank balances, Sl A0 - G066 - - -
5021 067 - 30231067 - - -
vt fabilivkes mor msaspred of faie vilae
Lamg termy loams - secured - 1013, 521 1,003,521 - s =
Lishilitkes against 2esets swhject to finimos lease = Hi5 528 [l | = 5 =
Empdoyes retpeimnem benefit - 42,480 A2 AR - - -
Trads and other pavailes - LASLAR LESERLD - - -
Blark-up pocrund om slueel femm Aumming - 97338 Fr.354 - - -
Shaon Term Barmesanp - 2.595 186 2,005 2R6 - - -
- 5.MR5.563 5765963 = ] =

The Ciomguny has not disclosed the for valoes for these finanoial sssers and financial labilities. a5 these are either shor tenn in pabare or repriced pemodically,
Therefore, thetr carmyving mmeeants are reasonable approxomastion of fir valees.

Davrefinencial avvees mssientd ar fale vaiie
Laped, basilideng sl plast and muchinery

Marvealind Property, plart and sglpmieir ez of valugtion i1 Diecember 2019
T Vel prapieTy Drargaf valusices 31 Diecember 2019

Virduansivess prpgprrorcs el deprasts svsarad

The vakusion model for land wnd buslding 15 based on price per sguare meme, [n determinmg e valumson for land and bailding ihe valuer mefers 1o munserous
independent market inguiries from local estate agents | realtors in the vicindty 1o estabdish the present market valoe, Tha syalaation for plant and mechinery is based on
psenrt operntional conditen aml age ol plinl sl meckineny. The Gir saluation of lind bihding amd plao sl machinery ane comsidered ba represent 8 el 3 valustion
e an signifieant noi-chesrmbde inpucs: beig the kacation and eonditeom of the assets,

The Eair walus fe subject i cliange awing 16 clangts in npul Howewer, nsanagensit doss nol expecl thare 1obe 3 maserial ssmitiviny bo e far value arising from the
mim-ohserymble inputs,
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43  Capital risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

a) to safegpard the entity’s ability to continue a5 a poing concern, so that it can continue to provide
retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

i1] to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital struciure in the contexi of economic conditions and the nsk
characteristics of the underlving assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may., for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital ‘on the basis of the geanng ratio calculated as
total debt {current and non-current borrowings) to debt plus equity,

The debt to equity mtios were as follows; 2019 201%
(Rupees in "000)

Total debt 5.851,500 4,014,923

Total equity and debt 14,535,440 12,390,222

Drebt to equity ratio 40% 32%

The Company is not subject to extemnally imposed capital requirements,
44 Subsequent event - Impact of COVID-19

Subsequent 1o the year end. on 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavins
(COVID-12) outhreak to be a pandemic in recognition of s rapid spread across the plobe. The potential
impacts from COVID-19 remain uncertain, incleding, among other things, on economic conditions, businesses
and eonsumers. Many governments are taking increasingly stringent steps to help contain or delay the spread of
the virus including orders to close all businesses not deemed essential, lockdowns, travel restrictions and
practice social distancing when engaging in essenfial activities. Like other countries, the Government of
Pakistan also tmposed lockdown effective 24 March 2020 to slow the spread of wirus that has been
continuoushy reviewed based on coonomic conditions, The Company has been allowed 1o resume operations
under strict standard operating procedures with effect from 11 May 2020,

Governments and regulators in Pakistan have taken different operational and financial measures so that the
temporary lockdowns required (o slow the spread of the virus does not disrupt the economy permanently. In
context of financial reporting and areas which may impact the financial statements and offer businesses to
manage operational liguidity, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) and State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) have provided guidance and offered companies regulatory reliefs. SECP, among other measures
refated to finarcial reporting, through cireular & and 10 of 2020, provided relaxation from certain provisions of
Companies Act mcluding but not limited to general relaxation m holding of annual general meeting and filling
of statutory returns for Companies having year end of 31 December 2009, SBF, among other measures, through
BPRD circular letter mo 13 of 2020 provided common relief o bomowers and allowed banksfinancial
imstitutions to defer the repayment .of principal loan on financing facilities availed for one year on written
request. The Company has obtained this regulatony relief on s financing facilities (both long and short term) to
menage its operationa] liquidity, Similarly the Company has also obtained hnancing for payments of salames to
employees in respect of relief granted by 5BP

Due to lockdown, the Company anticipites slower consumer demand, constraimed supply and reduced
economie activity and consequently have taken vanous financial measures (as referred to above) to manage
operational liquidity a5 a result of business disruption caused, However, the extent of the impact of COVID-1%
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on the operational and financial performance of the Company will depend on certain future developments,
including, damong others, the duration and severity of the COVID-1Y pandemic, public health developments,
lockdown measures taken by Federal and Provincial Governments in response to the pandemic and it impacts
on economic and busmess activity, all of which are uncertaim. The Company could experience material impacts
due 1o COVID-19 on the carrying value of its assets and liabilities, including, but not limited to, valuation of
intangibles, trade debtors, retrement plans and deferred taxation but for the Company’s 31 December 2019
financial statements, the Coronavirus outbreak and the related impacts are considered non-adjusting events.
Consequently, there is no impaci on the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities. Due o the
uncettainty of the outcome of the current events including the duration and impact. the Company cannot
reasonably estimate the impact these events will have on the Company”s financial position, results of operations
or cash flows in the future.

45 Ewvenis after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 08 June 2020, have proposed a hnal  cash
dividend for the vear ended 31 December 2019 of Rs. Njl per share (2018: Rs. 125
per shate), amounting to Rs. Wil million {2018 Rs. 203917  million) for appreval of
the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 June 2020, These unconsolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend.

46 Corresponding figores

Comesponding figures have been re<arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison
and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been made,

47  Date of authorization of issoe

These unconsolidated financial statements were mithorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 08 June 2020,

Moazzam A. Khan Haroon A. Khan Nadeem M. Butt
Director Chiefl Executive Chief Financial Officer
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

Registered Office:
9k Multan Road, Labore - 54790, Pakistarn
Pho (d2-35415421-5, 042-354271 BO2-4

UAN: 042-111-31-32-33

http: /fwww.wavessinger. com/
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